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Chairman’s Statement
B X

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of Directors (the
“Director”) of Perfect Group International Holdings
Limited (the “Company”), it is my pleasure to present to
you the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2022.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK AND FUTURE
PROSPECTS

The principal business of the Group is designing,
manufacturing and sales of high-end fine jewellery
(primarily mounted with diamonds) (the “Jewellery
Business”) and the investment in and development and
sales and rental of properties for the Group’s integrated
and comprehensive industry park located at 1st Ring
Road South Extension Foshan, Guangdong Province,
the PRC (the “Property Business”) as an integrated and
comprehensive industry park (the “Perfect Group Jewellery
Industry Park”).

Jewellery Business

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
continued to be affected by the outbreak of the 2019 Novel
Coronavirus (“Covid-19”) which restrained the Group from
participation in various shows, fairs and exhibitions held
in both Hong Kong and overseas. However, our sales team
was able to visit our overseas customers more frequently
which in turn generated more sale orders during the year
ended 31 December 2022 as compared to the year ended 31
December 2021.
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Property Business

Construction work of the Perfect Group Jewellery Industry
Park has already completed. Pursuant to the Group’s
accounting policy, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the property and
the Group’s present right to payment and consideration
is probable. Since the second half of 2018, the Group has
started to deliver the completed units in Perfect Group
Jewellery Industry Park to its customers. As the units sold
have been delivered, revenue recognition has proceeded as
scheduled. The Group has also leased out part of the units
of Perfect Group Jewellery Industry Park. The leasing of
properties and the provision of management services in the
Perfect Group Jewellery Industry Park have generated stable

income for the Group.

The recognition of sales of properties will primarily be
the delivery of sold units pending delivery and the sales
of remaining unsold units to the purchasers. The rental
and management fee income will continue to make stable
contributions to the Property Business. The performance
of the Jewellery Business will be highly dependent on the
state of recovery of the global economy, the relaxation of
travel restrictions and the number of exhibitions and shows
being held in various locations. Following the relaxation
of Covid-19 measures starting from the fourth quarter
of 2022, the number of shows, fair and exhibitions held
has resumed and the sales teams of the Group are able
to visit overseas customers more frequently. The Group
is optimistic about the Jewellery Business in the coming
months and will focus on the development of the Jewellery

Business in overseas markets.
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Chairman’s Statement

EEe

APPRECIATION LY |

On behalf of the Group, I would like to thank the AAREKALE - HERFLC ALEES
effort from my fellow directors, senior management and MEHMANB KB TS M — 4 h%H
employees of the Group during this difficult year, and the AR AT R R A 3l RO G ROR
trust and support from our shareholders, business partners EBEEBHEMEF B MG -

and customers.

Kan Kin Kwong FE
Chairman fifj {8 Y6
Hong Kong, 27 March 2023 ks > 202343H27H
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Overall Revenue

The revenue decreased moderately from approximately
HK$407.0 million (restated) from the year ended 31
December 2021 to approximately HK$374.0 million for
the year ended 31 December 2022, representing a decrease
of approximately HK$33.0 million or 8.1%. The decrease
was primarily due to the decrease in recognition of revenue
from sale of properties in the PRC of which a significant

portion was recognised in the previous years.

The revenue from the Jewellery Business and the Property
Business represented approximately 87.3% (for the year
ended 31 December 2021: approximately 83.2%) and
approximately 12.7% (for the year ended 31 December
2021: approximately 16.8%), respectively, of the total
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Jewellery Business
Revenue

The revenue from the Jewellery Business decreased from
approximately HK$338.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2021 to approximately HK$326.6 million for
the year ended 31 December 2022, representing a decrease
of approximately HK$11.9 million or 3.5%.

The sales to Hong Kong increased from approximately
HK$180.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2021
to approximately HK$227.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2022, representing an increase of approximately
HK$47.0 million or 26.0%.

The sales to Dubai decreased slightly from approximately
HK$68.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2021
to approximately HK$68.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2022.

The sales to the PRC decreased significantly from
approximately HK$89.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2021 to approximately HK$31.1 million for the
year ended 31 December 2022, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$58.8 million or 65.4%.

The significant decrease was mainly due to deterioration
in the PRC economy as a result of the restrictive measures

against Covid-19.
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Gross profit and gross profit margin

The gross profit increased from approximately HK$66.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to
approximately HK$85.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2022, representing an increase of approximately
HKS$19.0 million, or 28.7%, which is in line with the
increase in sales in the Jewellery Business in Hong Kong
and Dubai. The gross profit margin was approximately
28.1% in Hong Kong and Dubai Region which increased
when comparing with the year of 2021 (for the year ended
31 December 2021: approximately 24.6%). Despite a
significant increase in gross profit in the Jewellery Business
in Hong Kong and Dubai, the overall gross profit margin
was dragged down by the PRC market for a lower gross
profit.

Property Business
Revenue, gross profit and gross profit margin

The revenue decreased significantly from approximately
HK$68.4 million (restated) for the year ended 31
December 2021 to approximately HK$47.5 million for the
year ended 31 December 2022, representing a significant
decrease of approximately HK$20.9 million, or 30.6%
for the Property Business. The significant decrease in the
revenue was mainly due to the decrease in number of units
of properties delivered to customers as a significant number
of units were delivered and thus the revenue was recognised
in the previous year. Rental income for the year ended 31
December 2022 was approximately HK$15.9 million (for
the year ended 31 December 2021: approximately HK$14.3
million), representing an increase of approximately
HK$1.6 million, or 11.2%. The gross profit recognised
for the year ended 31 December 2022 was approximately
HK$29.6 million (for the year ended 31 December 2021:
approximately HK$35.7 million (restated)) and the gross
profit margin was approximately 62.3% (for the year ended
31 December 2021: approximately 52.2% (restated)).

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Overall gross profit and gross profit margin

The overall gross profit increased from approximately
HK$101.8 million (restated) for the year ended 31
December 2021 to approximately HK$114.7 million for the
year ended 31 December 2022, representing an increase
of approximately HK$12.9 million or 12.7%. The gross
profit composed of approximately HK$85.1 million from
the Jewellery Business for the year ended 31 December
2022, representing an increase of approximately HK$19.0
million or 28.7% as compared to the year ended 31
December 2021, and approximately HK$29.6 million from
Property Business for the year ended 31 December 2022,
representing a decrease of approximately HK$6.1 million or
17.1% as compared to the year ended 31 December 2021.

Other income

The other income increased from approximately HK$1.9
million (restated) for the year ended 31 December 2021
to approximately HK$3.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2022, representing a significant increase of
approximately HK$1.6 million or 84.2%. The significant
increase was mainly due to the increase of government
grants of approximately HK$0.7 million (for the year ended
31 December 2021: Nil) in respect of Covid-19 related
subsidies provided under the Employment Support Scheme
of the HKSAR government.

Other gains and losses

The other gains and losses mainly include gain from fair
value changes upon transfer of properties held for sale to
investment properties of approximately HK$5.4 million
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (for the year ended
31 December 2021: approximately HK$19.1 million) and
loss from changes in fair value of investment properties
of approximately HK$2.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2022 (for the year ended 31 December 2021:
gain from changes in fair value of investment properties of

approximately HK$3.0 million).
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Impairment losses under expected credit loss
model

The impairment losses under expected credit loss model
mainly include impairment provision resulting from the
trade receivables in the PRC of approximately HK$16.9
million (for the year ended 31 December 2021: reversal of
impairment losses resulting from the trade receivables in
Hong Kong and overseas of approximately HK$2.6 million)
and impairment provision resulting from a loan receivable
from an associate in the PRC of approximately HK$3.8
million (for the year ended 31 December 2021: Nil).

Finance costs

The finance costs of approximately HK$1.0 million for
the year ended 31 December 2022 (for the year ended 31
December 2021: approximately HK$0.8 million) related
to interest expenses on bank loans and lease liabilities for
the operation of the Jewellery Business and the Property

Business.

Selling and distribution costs

The selling and distribution costs increased from
approximately HK$10.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2021 to approximately HK$10.8 million for the
year ended 31 December 2022, representing an increase of

approximately HK$0.2 million or 1.9%.

General and administrative expenses

The general and administrative expenses increased from
approximately HK$42.6 million (restated) for the year
ended 31 December 2021 to approximately HK$49.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2022, representing
an increase of approximately HK$6.7 million or 15.7%.
The increase was mainly due to the increase in staff salaries
of approximately HK$2.7 million for the year ended
31 December 2022 as the increase was in line with the

development of new projects during the year.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Profit for the year

As a result of the above factors, profit after taxation for
the year ended 31 December 2022 was approximately
HKS$27.4 million (for the year ended 31 December 2021:
approximately HK$38.3 million), representing a decrease
of approximately HK$10.9 million or approximately 28.5%
over the year of 2021.

Financial position
Non-current Assets

The property, plant and equipment as at 31 December
2022 of approximately HK$60.1 million (as at 31
December 2021: approximately HK$67.3 million) mainly
represented leasehold land and buildings of approximately
HK$57.8 million (as at 31 December 2021: HK$64.5
million) and plant and machinery, furniture and fixtures
and motor vehicles of approximately HK$2.3 million (2021:
approximately HK$2.8 million).

The Group changed the use of certain property of
approximately HK$9.5 million (as at 31 December
2021: approximately HK$68.8 million) from leasehold
land and buildings to investment properties for leasing
to independent third parties during the year ended 31
December 2022.

Current assets

The current assets decreased slightly from approximately
HK$526.5 million as at 31 December 2021 to
approximately HK$482.6 million as at 31 December 2022,
representing a decrease of approximately HK$43.9 million

or 8.3%.
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Current liabilities

The current liabilities decreased from approximately
HK$186.7 million as at 31 December 2021 to
approximately HK$158.2 million as at 31 December 2022,
representing a decrease of approximately HK$28.5 million
or 15.3%.

The trade and other payables which amounted to
approximately HK$60.7 million as at 31 December 2022
(as at 31 December 2021: approximately HK$57.3 million)
comprised of trade payables of approximately HK$40.0
million (as at 31 December 2021: approximately HK$40.6
million) and accruals and other payables of approximately
HK$20.7 million (as at 31 December 2021: approximately
HK$16.7 million). The accruals and other payables mainly
consist of amounts payable for staff salaries and benefits

and provision for certain construction obligations.

Included in contract liabilities was mainly the deposit
received from customers of properties in the PRC, which
amounted to approximately HK$6.3 million as at 31
December 2022 (as at 31 December 2021: approximately
HK$32.5 million). The decrease was mainly due to the

delivery of completed properties to the customers.

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2022, the current assets of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$482.6 million (as at 31
December 2021: approximately HK$526.5 million) and
current liabilities amounted to approximately HK$158.2
million (as at 31 December 2021: approximately HK$186.7
million). Accordingly, the current ratio, being the ratio
of current assets to current liabilities, was approximately
3.1 as at 31 December 2022 (as at 31 December 2021:
approximately 2.8).

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Gearing ratio

Based on total borrowings divided by equity, the gearing
ratio was approximately 0.03 (as at 31 December 2021:
approximately 0.04).

Foreign exchange exposure

During the year, certain group entities have foreign
currency denominated sales and purchases; and monetary
assets and liabilities which expose the Group to foreign
currency risks on the currencies of HKD, USD, RMB,
and AED. The sales are primarily made in USD while the
expenses, including purchase of raw materials are mainly in
USD and HKD with immaterial portion of cost, primarily
being staff cost and factory overheads, in RMB.

Despite the expenses are mainly settled in HKD and
USD and substantial portion of the sales and expenses are
made in either USD or HKD, with HKD and AED being
pegged with the USD, the impact of fluctuation of USD
to the operational and financial performance would be
immaterial, hence the Group’s exposure to currency risk is
not significant.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations,
businesses and prospects may be affected by a number of
risks and uncertainties. The followings are the key risks
and uncertainties identified by the Group. There may be
other risks and uncertainties in addition to those known
to the Group or which may not be material now but could
turn out to be material in the future.

Business and financial risks

(i) The profitability and financial position may be
materially and adversely affected if any of our major
customers ceases their business relationship with us;
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(i) COVID-19 adversely affected our jewellery business
in the years 31 December 2020, 2021 and 2022 and
may continue to affect us going forward. In addition,
the business and financial position may be materially
and adversely affected if there is a global economic
downturn, epidemic and pandemic similar to the
coronavirus (COVID-19), in particular, Dubai,
China and Hong Kong, the locations from which the
Group’s jewellery business customers are principally
based and China where the Group’s property business
is located; and

(iii) We are susceptible to material and adverse change
in both Hong Kong and the PRC tax laws or
unfavourable interpretation regarding apportionment
claim of profits in cross-border processing business
and on our revenue generated in the PRC.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
through the impact of rate changes on interest bearing
financial assets and liabilities, mainly interest-bearing bank
balances and bank borrowings (see note 30 for details) at
variable interest rates. The Group currently does not have
an interest rate hedging policy. However, the management
will consider hedging significant interest rate risk should
the need arise.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations at
the end of each year in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position. In order
to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure

that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.

The Company has taken out insurance policy to enhance the
recoverability of trade debtors. The Company has also received
all the monies for the units sold in the Property Business and
should have no difficulties on the recoverability of any possible

outstanding balance due from these purchasers.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Charge on assets

None of the assets of the Group was charged as at 31
December 2022 (as at 31 December 2021: Nil).

Dividend policy

The Board intends to create long term value for the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) through
maintaining a balance between dividend distribution,
adequate cash flow and reserve to meet its working capital
requirement and capturing growth opportunities. The
Board may propose or declare the payment of dividends
after taking into account the current financial performance,
the future financial requirements and any other factors that
may deem relevant to the Company. The Board may decide
the frequency of dividend payment and further declare or
recommend any special distributions. Dividends may be
declared or paid by way of cash or scrip or by other means
that the Board considers appropriate. The payment of
dividend is also subject to compliance with applicable laws
and regulations including the laws of Cayman Islands and
the Company’s memorandum and articles of association.
The Board will review this dividend policy from time to
time and there can be no assurance that dividend will be

paid in any particular amount for any given period.

Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have
significant commitments contracted but not provided for

in the consolidated financial statements (as at 31 December
2021: Nil).

Material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries and affiliated companies

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, save
as disclosed elsewhere in this report, the Group did not
have any material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries

and affiliated companies.
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Employee and remuneration policy

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had approximately
150 employees (as at 31 December 2021: 128 employees)
in Hong Kong and the PRC. The total salaries and related
costs for the year ended 31 December 2022 amounted to
approximately HK$29.7 million (for the year ended 31
December 2021: HK$28.2 million).

The Group offers competitive remuneration package as an
incentive to staff to improve their work performance. The
Company has a share option scheme in place as a means
to encourage and reward the eligible employees’ (including
Directors) contributions to the Group’s performance
and business development based on their individual
performance. The employees’ remuneration, promotion and
salary are assessed by reference to their work performance,
working experiences, professional qualifications and the

prevailing market practices.

Contingent liabilities

The Group provided guarantees amounting to
approximately RMB13.0 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$14.7 million) as at 31 December 2022
(2021: approximately RMB45.7 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$55.9 million)) to facilitate mortgage
bank loans applications of purchasers of the properties
that were developed by the Group. Such guarantees will
be released by banks upon delivery of the properties
to the purchasers and completion of registration of the
relevant mortgaged properties. In the opinion of the
Directors, the fair values of these guarantee contracts of
the Group are insignificant at initial recognition and the
Directors consider that the possibility of default of the
parties involved is remote. Accordingly, no value has been
recognised at the inception of the guarantee contracts and
at the end of the reporting period as at 31 December 2022
and 31 December 2021.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Executive Directors

Mr. Kan Kin Kwong, aged 64, was appointed as the
Director in June 2015 and was appointed as the chairman
of the Board and the chief executive officer, and designated
as the executive Director in August 2015. Mr. Kan is the
founder of the Group and was appointed as a director of
HK Perfect in October 1986. Mr. Kan is also the director
of Perfect (BVI) and Perfect Group HK, the wholly-
owned subsidiaries. Mr. Kan is mainly responsible for
managing the overall operations of the Group and planning
our business development and strategies, in particular,
overseeing the business activities of the Group, supervising
the operations and resources allocation of the Group and

driving the Group to attain performance targets.

Mr. Kan has over 30 years of experience in the fine
jewellery industry. Currently, Mr. Kan is the president
of the Hong Kong Gold and Silver Ornament Workers
& Merchants General Union, the honorary president of
the Hong Kong Gemstone Manufacturers’ Association
and the 20th honorary president of the Hong Kong Jade
Association, Mr. Kan was also awarded “2017 Honorary
Fellows” by the Professional Validation Centre of Hong
Kong Business Sector on 13 July, 2017, in recognition of

his contribution to the local jewellery industry.

Ms. Shek Mei Chun, aged 58, the wife of Mr. Kan, was
appointed as the executive Director in August 2015. Mrs.
Kan was appointed as a director of HK Perfect in March
1990. Mrs. Kan is mainly responsible for managing the
sales operations of the Group, in particular, overseeing
the sales activities of the Group, leading the sales team
to attain sales targets and devising sales plans based on
the varying demands and customer behaviour in different

markets.

Ms. Shek has over 30 years of experience in the fine

jewellery industry.
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Mr. Chung Chi Keung, aged 61, was appointed as the
executive Director in August 2015. Mr. Chung joined HK
Perfect as an accountant in March 1990. Mr. Chung was
appointed as a director of HK Perfect in November 2006.

Mr. Chung was awarded a higher stage certificate for
proficiency in accounting and a certificate of proficiency
in cost accounting, both issued by the London Chamber
of Commerce and Industry in 1982 and 1985 respectively.
Mr. Chung also passed the intermediate examination of
the Association of Accounting Technicians in December
1991. Mr. Chung has over 30 years of experience in the

accounting industry.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mzr. FAN Chor Ho, SBS, BBS, JP, aged 81, was appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
in December 2015. Mr. Fan currently also acts as a member
of the Audit Committee of the Company. Mr. Fan was
an independent non-executive director of Tysan Holdings
Limited (Formerly known as Hong Kong International
Construction Investment Management Group Co.,
Limited), a company listed on the Stock Exchange stock
code: 687) from August 1993 to July 2020. He was a non-
executive director of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited from 3 April 2000 to 15 April 2003. He was a
member of the Advisory Committee to the Securities and
Futures Commission from 1993 to 1997 and again serving
in the same capacity since 2001 until 2007. He was holding
appointments on Government boards and committees,
including chairman of the Chinese Medicine Council of
Hong Kong from 13 September 2005 to 12 September
2011. He was awarded the Badge of Honour in 1991 and
was made a Justice of the Peace in 1993, and was awarded
Bronze Bauhinia Star in July 2005 and the Silver Bauhinia
Star in July 2011.
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Mr. Lee Ka Wing, aged 49, was appointed as the

independent non-executive Director in May 2020.

Mr. Lee, graduated from the business school of The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology in 1995. He
also obtained a master’s degree in business administration
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2001 and
a master’s degree in Accounting from Curtin University in
2003. He has been a member of CPA Australia since 2007.
He also holds the Chartered Financial Analyst qualification
from CFA Institute and is a member of the CFA Society
HK. Mr. Lee has over 20 years of experience in investment
banking and corporate finance and has ample experience
in initial public offerings, takeovers and privatisation.
Currently, he acts as a co-head of corporate finance and
a sponsor principal of Zhongtai International Capital
Limited. Before joining Zhongtai International Capirtal
Limited, he worked at GF Capital (Hong Kong) Limited.

Mr. Wong Wai Keung Frederick, aged 67, was appointed
as the independent non-executive Director in December
2015.

Mr. Wong received a master’s degree in electronic
commerce from Edith Cowan University in Western
Australia in February 2002. Mr. Wong has been a fellow of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
since June 1991 and a fellow of the Institute of Chartered

Accountants in England and Wales since December 1993.
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Mr. Wong has over 40 years of experience in accounting,
finance, audit, tax and corporate finance with an
international certified public accountant firm and listed
companies in the United Kingdom, New Zealand, Hong
Kong and Thailand. From April 1996 to March 1999, Mr.
Wong was an executive director of Hwa Kay Thai Holdings
Limited (currently known as China Solar Energy Holdings
Limited), a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 155). From January 2001 to January 2011, Mr. Wong
was the chief financial officer and company secretary of
China Infrastructure & Logistics Group Ltd. (formerly
known as CIG Yangtze Ports PLC), a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 1719 (since 29 January 2018)),
and had been an independent non-executive director and a
member of the audit committee, remuneration committee
and nomination committee of such company since April
2014 and the chairman of the nomination committee of
such company since October 2015 until he resigned from
such positions in May 2022. Mr. Wong had been the chief
financial officer of APAC Resources Limited (stock code:
1104), a company listed on the Stock Exchange, since
January 2011 and also acted as the company secretary of
the company between April 2011 and December 2011 and
since February 2013 until he resigned from such positions
in July 2016 and served as a consultant to the company
between August 2016 to October 2016. Mr. Wong had
been the chief financial officer of Asia Investment Finance
Group Limited (currently known as International Genius
Company) (stock code: 0033), a company listed on the
Stock Exchange, since 18 September 2017 and also acted as
the company secretary and authorised representative of such
company since 25 September 2017 until he resigned from
such positions on 3 November 2017. Mr. Wong has been
an independent non-executive director, chairman of the
audit committee and the risk management committee and
member of the remuneration committee and nomination

committee of Wah Sun Handbags International Holdings
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Limited (stock code: 2683), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, since 22 January 2018. Mr. Wong has been an
executive director of CF Energy Corp. (formerly known
as Changfeng Energy Inc. (stock code: CFY), a company
listed on the Toronto Venture Exchange (TSXV), since 22
February 2019, an independent non-executive director, a
member of the audit committee, remuneration committee
and nomination committee of China Aoyuan Group
Limited (stock code: 3883), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, since 24 February 2023, an executive director
and member of the risk committee after his redesignation
from his former roles as an independent non-executive
director, chairman of the audit committee, a member of the
nomination committee and the remuneration committee of
Da Sen Holdings Limited (stock code: 1580), a company
listed on the Stock Exchange, since 26 November 2020
until he resigned from such positions on 24 January 2022
and being retained as a consultant to the board of the
company; and an independent non-executive director and
chairman of the audit committee of Burwill Holdings
Limited (Provisional Liquidators Appointed) (stock code:
24), a company listed on the Stock Exchange, since 14
September 2020 and 20 October 2020 respectively until he
resigned from such positions on 11 August 2021.
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Senior Management Personnel

Other than the Directors, the senior management team
together with the executive Directors, are responsible for
the day-to-day management of the Group. The following
table sets forth certain information in respect of our senior

management personnel:

R LR B B JE R

mEEHAR

B HE S A o R AR B B B B AT g R
ALEEPHEERRL - TRBEIARE
HAEHNBWA TER:

Date of
appointment as

Date of joining HK senior management
Name Age Perfect/the Group Present Position personnel Key role and responsibility
LY 33 Ve BZEBRS
¥ L3 AL H i Bk CEINCLLR FEAMERRE
Mr. Tam Chun Wa 60 7 February 2017 Chief financial officer and 7 February 2017 Responsible for financial
wEELE 607% 201752871 company secretary 201742A7H reporting and compliance

ERMBERAANE

Mr. Tam Chun Wa, aged 60, has been appointed as the
chief financial officer, the company secretary and the
authorised representative of the Company, all with effect
from 7 February 2017 and a director of some subsidiaries of
the Company. Mr. Tam is mainly responsible for financial
reporting and compliance. Mr. Tam holds a master degree
of business administration from University of Sydney and is
also a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, CPA (Australia) and Institute of Singapore
Chartered Accountants. Mr. Tam has more than 30 years
of experience in the areas of auditing, accounting, tax,
investment banking and company secretarial works. He was
the executive director of Chinasing Investment Holdings
Limited, a company the Shares of which was listed on the
main board of Singapore Exchange Limited from 2009 to
2015, and chief financial officer and company secretary
of Code Agriculture (Holdings) Limited, a company the
Shares of which is listed on the Growth Enterprises Market
of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, responsible
for the merger and acquisition activities from 2016 to
2017. Mr Tam also worked for some listed companies in
Hong Kong prior to these engagement and currently, Mr.
Tam is an independent non-executive Director of Green
Energy Group Limited, being a company listed on the Stock
Exchange with stock code 979.
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Report of the Directors

EH TS

The Directors are pleased to present the annual report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 to all
Shareholders.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding and those of the principal subsidiaries of the
Company are set out in note 38 to the consolidated

financial statements.

Results and appropriations

The financial performance of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022 and the financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2022 are set out on pages 103 to 106 of

the consolidated financial statements.

Dividend

The Group did not declare any interim dividend for the six
months ended 30 June 2022 (for the six months ended 30
June 2021: Nil). The Directors propose the payment for a
final dividend of HK$0.02 per share for the year ended 31
December 2022.

28  Petfect Group International Holdings Limited {7845 5] [5 B 428 A5 PR 7]

KSR 18] BT A B R AR 2R R AR 2022
F12H31H 1F4F E 1 4 B 3 A 48 K %
AWM B EE -

FEER
ANFZFEFEEFHBBTELER  ANAE
LN O /NI e ol O N
R M EE38 o

5 8 Koy i

7 45 B £ 20224E12 31 H 1F 4F B R BE B
F B KA R 2022912 A31H 19 B 5 ik
LR BE103 8 106 E Z 45 & W B i & -

Jit 8

A 42 E I 4R E R % £2022F6H30H 1E S
i A AT a7 3 B S (B 220216 H30H
1B A - ) o 3 R TR AT 8K 220224
12431 H 1k 4F B /9 K A i B4 11 0.02% ¢ -



Closure of Register of Members

In order to establish the identity of the Shareholders
who are entitled to the proposed final dividend, all duly
completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Union Registrars Limited, at
Suites 3301-04, 33/F., Two Chinachem Exchange Square,
338 King’s Road, North Point, Hong Kong, no later
than 4:00 p.m. on Thursday, 8 June 2023. The register
of members of the Company will be closed from Friday,
9 June 2023 to Wednesday, 14 June 2023, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be registered. Subject to the approval by the
Shareholders on the proposed final dividend at the annual
general meeting to be held on Monday, 5 June 2023, the
final dividend will be paid on or around Tuesday, 20 June
2023 to the Shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Wednesday, 14
June 2023.

Business review

Schedule 5 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
requires companies to include a business review in the
directors’ report. Specifically, the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance requires a business review to cover a number of
areas which are also approved by the board of directors and

included in this report as follows:

1. A fair review of the Group’s business

Pages 11 to 17 of this report

2.  Principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group

Pages 18 and 19 of this report

3. Indication of likely development of the Group
Pages 8 to 9 of this report
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Segment Information

The executive Directors of the Company, being the
chief operating decision maker, regularly review revenue
analysis from the sales and manufacturing of Jewellery
products, including rings, earrings, pendants, bangles,
necklaces and bracelets, and by location of delivery to
customers and development and sales of properties. The
executive Directors considered there were two operating
activities which were manufacturing and sales of jewellery
products and development and sales of properties. The
operating segment has been identified on the basis of
internal management reports prepared in accordance with
accounting policies conform to Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, and is regularly reviewed by the
executive Directors. The executive Directors review the
overall results, assets and liabilities of the Group as a whole
to make decisions about resources allocation. Accordingly,

two analysis of this operating segments are presented.

Five-year financial summary

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
245 of this report. This summary does not form part of the

consolidated financial statements.

Share capital

Details of movements in share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 32 to the consolidated

financial statements.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 107 to 108 and
in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements,

respectively.
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Distributable reserves

As at 31 December 2022, the Company had a reserve
of approximately HK$327,486,000 (as at 31 December
2021: reserve of approximately HK$355,502,000) in its
distributable reserves, calculated under the Companies Act,
Chapter 22 (Act 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of
the Cayman Islands.

Major customers and suppliers

Sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer and
the five largest customers accounted for approximately
14.1% and 36.5% of the Group’s total revenue for the year,
respectively. The purchases made by the Group from its
largest supplier and the five largest suppliers accounted
for approximately 54.5% and 84.2% of the Group’s total

purchases for the year, respectively.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, neither the
Directors, their close associates, nor any Shareholders who
owned more than five percent of the Company’s issued
share capital, had any beneficial interest in any of the

Group’s five largest customers or suppliers during the year.

Subsidiaries

The details of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out

in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

Property, plant and equipment

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment
during the year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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Directors and directors’ services contracts

The Directors who hold office during the year and up to
the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Kan Kin Kwong (Chairman)
Ms. Shek Mei Chun
Mr. Chung Chi Keung

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Fan Chor Ho
Mr. Lee Ka Wing
Mr. Wong Wai Keung Frederick

Each of the executive Directors has renewed a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 4 January 2022, which may be
terminated by, not less than three months’ notice in
writing served by either party on the other and is subject to
termination provisions therein and provisions on retirement
by rotation as set forth in the articles of association of the

Company (the “Articles of Association”).

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has
renewed/entered into a letter of appointment or a service
agreement with the Company for an initial term of
three years commencing from 4 January 2022 or the
date of appointment, subject to retirement by rotation
and reelection at annual general meeting set forth in the
Articles of Association and until terminated by not less
than three months’ notice in writing served by either party

on the other.
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No Director has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries
within one year without payment of compensation, other

than statutory compensation.

The Company has received annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing
the listing of securities on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
(the “Listing Rules”) and all of them are considered to be

independent.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, one-third
of the existing Directors shall retire from office, at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr. Wong Wai
Keung Frederick and Mr. Chung Chi Keung will retire
at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being

eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Permitted indemnity provisions

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2022 and
up to the date of this report, there was or is, any permitted
indemnity provision being in force for the benefit of any
of the Directors and Supervisors (whether made by the
Company or otherwise) or an associated company (if made

by the Company).

Appropriate insurance covers on directors’ liabilities have
been in force to protect the Directors and officers of the
Group from their risk exposure from the business of the

Group.
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Directors’ interest in contracts

Save as disclosed in the section headed — “Continuing
connected transactions” of this report, no contract of
significance to which the Company or its holding company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director had a material interest subsisted at the year ended

31 December 2022 or at any time during the year.

Continuing connected transactions

On 5 August 2022, Perfect Group HK renewed the existing
tenancy agreement (the “Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement”)
with HK Perfect, pursuant to which Perfect Group HK
continues to lease premises from HK Perfect for a term
of one year commencing from 5 August 2022 for the
purpose of the Group’s offices in Hong Kong. The terms
of the renewed tenancy are similar the expired agreement
except that the rent has been decreased from monthly rent
of HK$320,000 to monthly rent of HK$310,000. The
transactions contemplated under the Hong Kong Tenancy
Agreement are subject to reporting and announcement
requirements but exempt from circular and shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Aggregate amount for
the financial year ended
31 December 2022

# £2022412H31H 1k
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Annual Cap amount

the financial year ended
31 December 2022

# £20224-12H31H Ik
L i - il o (L

Lease of premises from Hong Kong Perfect

Jewellery Company Limited (Note)
Ie] £ 8% TR B A FR 2~ =] AR R P (Bf )

Note: Hong Kong Perfect Jewellery Company Limited is a company
incorporated in Hong Kong. It is an associate of Mr. Kan Kin
Kwong, a controlling shareholder, an executive Director, and a

connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
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The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and confirmed
that:

(1) the terms of the Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement
are on normal commercial terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Company and

the Shareholders as a whole;
(2)  the proposed annual caps are fair and reasonable; and

(3) the continuing connected transactions contemplated
under the Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement are and
will be conducted in the ordinary and usual course
of business of the Group and in the interests of the

Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

According to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the
Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements other than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 (Revised) “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules”. The auditor of the Company (the “Auditor”)
has issued an unqualified letter containing its findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed above by the Group in accordance

with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

Biographies of directors and senior
management

The biographical details of the Directors and senior
management of the Group are disclosed in the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 22 to 27 of this report.
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Controlling shareholders’ interest in
contracts

Save as disclosed in the section headed — “Continuing
connected transactions” of this report, there was no
contract of significance to which the Company or its
holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and
in which any of the controlling sharcholder (as defined in
the Listing Rules) had a material interest subsisted at the

end of the year or at any time during the year.

Non-competition undertaking by controlling

shareholders

Each of the controlling Shareholders has made an annual
declaration in respect of their compliance with the terms of

non-competition undertaking.

Details of the non-competition undertaking are set out
in the section headed “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders” of the Company dated 22 December 2015 of

the Prospectus (the “Prospectus”).

Non-competition undertaking by executive
directors

The non-competition undertakings in respect of the
executive Directors have become effective from the Listing
Date.

Each of the executive Directors has made an annual
declaration in respect of his/her compliance with the terms
of non-competition undertaking from the Listing Date to

the date of this report.

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed and
confirmed that the executive Directors have complied with
the non-competition undertaking and the non-competition
undertaking for the period set forth in the paragraph above
has been enforced by the Company in accordance with its

terms.
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Details of the non-competition undertaking are set out
in the section headed “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders” of the Prospectus.

Share option scheme

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set

out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

Disclosure of interests

Interests of Directors and chief executive
officers

As at 31 December 2022, the Directors and the chief
executive officer of the Company had the following
interests in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company, its associated corporations (within the
meaning of the Securities and Future Ordinance (“SFO”))
as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Companies.
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Ordinary shares of one-third Hong Kong cent each of the

Company

Name of Director/
chief executive officers

Capacity/nature of interest

Number of shares
(Long Position)

A ) A BT = 23 22— Al Y 3 2 A

Approximately
percentage of
shareholdings in
the Company

Al A 2> W ik HE

B EETHRABEAS Y/ VR E Rk Bty ¥ H (4 A7) BE #1782 e
Mr. Kan Kin Kwong (“Mr. Kan”) Interest of controlled 886,959,000 shares (note 1) 67.90%
flfjfa S e 2B (T e 2k D) corporation 886,959,000 % (Fff 5:1)

2 5 ) 1 R 45

Beneficial owner 21,027,000 shares

A A 21,027,000

Beneficial owner 1,350,000 shares (note 3)

g X XN 1,350,000 % (Bff 5% 3)

Interest of spouse 1,260,000 shares (note 4)

e 1H #E £k 1,260,000 B (Kff 53:4)
Mr. Chung Chi Keung Interest of controlled 30,375,000 shares (note 2) 2.36%

(“Mr. Chung”) corporation 30,375,000 1% (Fff 5:2)

sEE e A ([8E e A4 2 YR T RE A

Beneficial owner 1,260,000 shares (note 3)

JLETE ZEDN 1,260,000 B (Fff 55:3)
Ms. Shek Mei Chun (“Ms. Shek”) Interest of spouse 909,336,000 shares (note 5) 67.90%
AXBL (ALt Hic {8 HE 4 909,336,000 i (Fff 5% 5)

Beneficial owner 1,260,000 shares (note 3)

Ha AN 1,260,000 /B (Bff 5 3)
Mr. Fan Chor Ho Beneficial owner 900,000 shares (note 3) 0.07%
oAk i S A Ha AN 900,000 % (Fff 5% 3)
Mr. Wong Wai Keung Frederick Beneficial owner 900,000 shares (note 3) 0.07%

RS

R X ZEUN
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Notes:

Save

Among these 886,959,000 shares, 729,000,000 shares, 57,339,000
shares and 100,620,000 shares are held by Immaculate Diamonds
Limited, King Jewel Limited and Classic Sapphire Holdings
Limited, respectively. The entire issued capital of Immaculate
Diamonds Limited and King Jewel Limited are owned by Mr. Kan.
50% of the issued capital of Classic Sapphire Holdings Limited
are held by Mr. Kan. Under the SFO, Mr. Kan is deemed to be
interested in all the shares of the Company held by Immaculate
Diamonds Limited, King Jewel Limited and Classic Sapphire
Holdings Limited.

These shares are held by Classic Emerald Holdings Limited, the
entire issued capital of which is held by Mr. Chung. Under the
SFO, Mr. Chung is deemed to be interested in all the shares of the
Company held by Classic Emerald Holdings Limited.

These underlying shares represent the shares of the Company to
be issued upon the exercise of the share options granted by the
Company to the Directors or chief executive pursuant to the share

option scheme of the Company.

Mr. Kan and Ms. Shek are spouses. Under the SFO, Mr. Kan is
deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company which may
be issued upon the exercise of the share options granted by the
Company to Ms. Shek.

Mr. Kan and Ms. Shek are spouses. Under the SFO, Ms. Shek is
deemed to be interested in all the shares of the Company held by
Mr. Kan and all the shares of the Company in which Mr. Kan is

deemed to be interested.

as disclosed above, none of the Directors, nor their

associates had any other interests or short positions in any

shares, underlying shares of the Company or any of its

associated corporations as recorded in the register required

to be

kept under section 336 of the SFO.
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Substantial shareholders

As at 31 December 2022, the following persons or
corporations, other than the Directors or chief executive
of the Company disclosed above, had interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register of the substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to

Section 336 of the SFO:

Ordinary shares of one-third Hong Kong cent each of the

By

R20224FE12 H31H > #2 BEA A A AR 58 3% 7%
T W 8 o 191 233606 i £7 B 1 £ B R R B
TR > SRR N1 N ool /N1 G O
EOINT/NET I A o O S QN = I 73/ D7
OS] 2 B Ay B A B B 4y o A R R SR B

A ) A T = 23 22— Al Y 3 2 A

Company
Approximately
percentage of
Capacity/nature Number of shares shareholdings in
Name of shareholder of interest (Long position) the Company
Al 2 2y ) Ji% HE i
e Wbk By HE 25 MR & by B H (4 ) BE £ 8 4 He
Immaculate Diamonds Limited Beneficial owner 729,000,000 shares 54.36%
Immaculate Diamonds Limited BREEAAN 729,000,000 /1%
Richemont Asset Management Limited Beneficial owner 91,460,997 shares 6.82%
Richemont Asset Management Limited BREEAN 91,460,997 ix
Chow Chin Yui Angela Interest of controlled 93,436,782 shares (note 1) 6.97%
JA2E % corporation 93,436,782 1 (Fff 5E1)
2 P52 B RE £5
Classic Sapphire Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 100,620,000 shares 7.50%
Classic Sapphire Holdings Limited Hi A N 100,620,000 A%
Chan Wing Sum Interest of a controlled 100,620,000 shares (note 2) 7.50%
B i Fx corporation 100,620,000 A% (B 5E2)
2 YR T RE A
Classic Amber Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 101,250,000 shares 7.55%
Classic Amber Holdings Limited Hi A N 101,250,000 A%
Luo Jacky Interest of a controlled 101,250,000 shares (note 3) 7.55%
I corporation 101,250,000 A% (Bff 513)
Z P T A
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Notes:

These shares are held by Richemont Asset Management Limited
and Cachet Asset Management Limited, the entire issued capital of
which is held by Ms. Chow Chin Yui Angela, Under the SFO, Ms.
Chow Chin Yui Angela is deemed to be interested in all the shares
of the Company held by Richemont Asset Management Limited
and Cachet Asset Management Limited.

These shares are held by Classic Sapphire Holdings Limited, 50%
of the issued capital of which is held by Mr. Chan Wing Sum.
Under the SFO, Mr. Chan Wing Sum is deemed to be interested in
all the shares of the Company held by Classic Sapphire Holdings
Limited.

These shares are held by Classic Amber Holdings Limited, the
entire issued capital of which is held by Mr. Luo Jacky. Under the
SFO, Mr. Luo Jacky is deemed to be interested in all the shares of
the Company held by Classic Amber Holdings Limited.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified

by any persons or corporations, other than the Directors

or chief executive of the Company, who had interests or

short

positions in the shares or underlying shares of the

Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by

the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO as of the

date of this report.

Emolument Policy

The

Group’s employees are selected, remunerated and

promoted based on their merit, qualifications and

competence.
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The Company adopted the model set out in Code Provision
E.1.2(c)(ii) of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as its
remuneration model for determining the emoluments of
the Directors. This model stipulates that the remuneration
committee of the Company shall make recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management. The remuneration
committee of the Company would take into consideration,
among other things, the duties and responsibilities of the
Directors and senior management and prevailing market

conditions when determining their remuneration.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme to
provide incentives to eligible persons, including Directors

and employees of the Group.

Related Party Transactions

Particulars of the Company’s Related Party Transactions
are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial

statements.

The related party transactions also constitute continuing
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules and the Company has complied
with the relevant requirements of Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules in relation to these transactions. Continuing
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules are disclosed in the section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions” above. Related party
transactions other than those disclosed under the section
headed “Continuing Connected Transaction” are fully

exempt connected transactions as defined under the Listing

Rules.

Pre-emptive rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s memorandum and articles of association or
the Laws of Cayman Islands, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing

Shareholders.
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Purchase, sale or redemption of listing
securities

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company
repurchased 8,991,000 of its own shares from the market
which were subsequently cancelled (for the year ended 31
December 2021: Nil).

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the

Company has maintained sufficient public float.

Corporate governance report

Details of the Group’s corporate governance practices can
be found in the Corporate Governance Report set out on

pages 44 to 61 in this report.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2022 have been audited by Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forth coming annual

general meeting of the Company.

Review of Results by Audit Committee

The Group’s final results for the year ended 31 December
2022 have been reviewed by the audit committee of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Kan Kin Kwong
Chairman
Hong Kong, 27 March 2023
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The Company strives to attain and maintain a high
standard of corporate governance as it believes that
effective corporate governance practices are fundamental to
enhancing shareholders’ value and safeguarding interests of
shareholders and other stakeholders. Accordingly, the Board
attributes a high priority to identifying and implementing
appropriate corporate governance practices to ensure

transparency, accountability and effective internal controls.

Code on corporate governance practices

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules. Up to the date of this report, the Company
has complied with the code provision under the CG Code,
except for the deviation from code provision C.2.1 of the
CG Code as explained below. The Company will continue
to enhance its corporate governance practices appropriate

to the operation and growth of the business of the Group.

According to the code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code,
the role of the chairman and the chief executive officer
of the Company should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. The role of the chief
executive officer is performed by Mr. Kan Kin Kwong (“Mr.
Kan”), who is also the chairman of the Company. Mr.
Kan as the founder of the Group has extensive experience
and knowledge in the business of the Group. The Board
believes that vesting the roles of both chairman of the
Company and chief executive officer of the Company in the
same person, namely Mr. Kan, has the benefit of ensuring
consistent leadership within the Group and enables more
effective and efficient overall strategic planning for the

Group.
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transaction by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as
the code of conduct for Directors in their dealings in the

securities of the Company.

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, the
Company is satisfied that the Directors have complied with
the Model Code.

Board of Directors

The Board is responsible for formulating business strategies
and monitoring the performance of the business of the
Group. Other than the daily operational decisions which
are delegated to the management of the Group, most of the
decisions are taken by the Board. All Directors, including
independent non-executive Directors, have brought a wide
spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and
professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective

functioning.

The Board constituted by six members, including three
executive Directors and three independent non-executive

Directors.
The composition of the Board is as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Kan Kin Kwong (Chairman)
Mr. Chung Chi Keung
Ms. Shek Mei Chun

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Fan Chor Ho
Mr. Lee Ka Wing
Mr. Wong Wai Keung Frederick
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Biographical details of each Director and relationship
between board members are set out on pages 22 to 27 of

this report.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made
an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view
that all independent non-executive Directors meet the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and are independent in accordance with the terms
of the guidelines. At lease one of the independent non-
executive Directors possesses the appropriate professional
accounting qualifications and financial management
expertise. The Board is of the view that the following
mechanisms adopted by the Company are effective in
ensuring that independent views and inputs are available to
the Board:

. The Board is represented by sufficient number of
non-executive Directors which meets the requirement

of the Listing Rules.

. In assessing suitability of the Director candidates,
the Board will consider their profiles, including
their character, experience, qualifications and time
commitment; the Board will also consider to the
Board’s overall composition and skill matrix as well as

the Company’s diversity policy.

. The Board will review each Director’s time

commitment to the Company’s business annually.

. The Board will assess non-executive Directors’

independence upon appointment and annually.
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. Directors are required to abstain from voting in

matters in which they have material interest.

. Directors can upon reasonable request seek
independent professional advice at the Company’s

expenses to discharge their duties.

The quality of deliberations at meetings of the Board
are reviewed during the annual evaluation of the Board’s

performance.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance
and Indemnity

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and
Officers’ Liability Insurance for its Directors and officers
covering the costs, losses, expenses and liabilities arising
from the performance of their duties. The insurance policy
covers legal action against its Directors and officers to
comply with the requirement of the Code. During the year,
no claim was made against the Directors and officers of the

Company.
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The attendance records of each Director at the various £ FEHRA N AR F£20224F12 4318 1E4F
meetings of the Company during the year ended 31 T B AT 2 2R R 2 RC Bk A
December 2022 are set out as follows: LI

Attended/Eligible to Attend

th /4
Remuneration Audit  Nomination Risk
General Board  committee  committee  committee management
meetings meetings meetings meetings meetings meeting

iM% L1733 RA% B
R¥Af #%@6% Read  HEER  AEEE HHOR

Executive Directors UrHES

M. Kan Kin Kwong it % 0 55 0/0 0/0 11 11
M. Chung Chi Keung g 11 515 11 0/0 0/0 0/0
Ms. Shek Mei Chun hEL It 1N 505 0/0 0/0 0/0 11

Independent non-executive Directors B . 3 ¥4 17 # %

Mr. Fan Chor Ho Wk %A 1 505 0/0 1 1 0/0
M. Lee Ka Wing BRELE 11 55 11 /1) 11 11
Mr. Wong Wai Keung Frederick o 111 5/5 111 22 0/0 0/0

Every Director is entitled to have access to Board papers g o7 5 19 H HE A& B B U AR BB
and related materials, and the advice and services of PR AT [ NN /N1 o/ = A (/A /3= !
the company secretary of the Company (the “Company A E R RRE - K ESGHENIER TS
Secretary”), and has the liberty to seek independent KRBy HEZR - BRABALIAKYE - #
professional advice at the Company’s expense if so R AN e A B b R R R At 8
reasonably required. Directors will be continuously updated BB R ZERERE > DI R A A R ST
on the major development of the Listing Rules and other B HE+F R A B9 AR SE IR WL o

applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance

and upkeep of good corporate governance practices.
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Board Committees

The Board has established four committees, namely
the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”),
the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and the risk management committee (the
“Risk Management Committee”). The table below provides
the membership information of these committees on which

certain Board members served:

Corporate Governance Report
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Risk

Audit  Nomination Remuneration Management

Committee Committee Committee Committee

Directors JA i
EH HBZEE RALEZEEG FiMZHEE HHZEE
Mr. Kan Kin Kwong i f ok e 4 - C - C
Mr. Chung Chi Keung HEm e = = M =
Ms. Shek Mei Chun AEBLL = = = M
Mt. Fan Chor Ho O E M M = =
Mr. Wong Wai Keung Frederick HEE LA @ - M -
Mt. Lee Ka Wing EREEE M M C M
Notes: B 5E

C — Chairman of the relevant Committee

M — Member of the relevant Committee

C-fRWZRGEN
M-fHZBEWA
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Audit committee

The Audit Committee was established with written terms
of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 and Rule 3.22
of the Listing Rules. The written terms of reference of
the Audit Committee have been modelled off the Code
Provisions. Its terms of reference are available on the

websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Throughout the year, the Audit Committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Fan
Chor Ho, Mr. Lee Ka Wing and Mr. Wong Wai Keung
Frederick. Mr. Wong Wai Keung Frederick is the chairman
of the Audit Committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include:

= Consider the appointment, reappointment and
removal of the external auditor, the audit fee
and terms of engagements, and any questions of

resignation or dismissal of that auditor;

—  Review the financial statements and provide material
advice in respect of financial reporting of the Group;

and

= Oversight of internal control procedures and risk

management of the Group.

Meetings of the Audit Committee shall be held no less than
two times a year. Two meetings of the Audit Committee

were held during the review year.
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Nomination committee

The Nomination Committee was established with written
terms of reference with effect from 14 December 2015 and
throughout the year, comprises one executive Director,
namely Mr. Kan Kin Kwong and two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Fan Chor Ho and Mr.
Lee Ka Wing. Mr. Kan Kin Kwong is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

The duties of the Nomination Committee shall be:

= Review the structure, size and composition (including
the gender, age, cultural background, education
background, skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board at least annually and make recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement
the Company’s corporate strategy;

—  Identify individuals suitably qualified to become
board members and select or make recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated

for directorships;

—  Assess the independency of independent non-executive
Directors;

- Make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the
chairman and the chief executive; and

—  Review the board diversity policy (including
the gender, age, cultural background, education
background, skills, knowledge and experience) as
appropriate and to review the measurable objectives
under the board diversity policy and the progress
of the attainment of the objectives, so as to ensure
effective implementation; and make disclosure of its

review results in the corporate governance report.

Meetings of the Nomination Committee shall be held no
less than once a year. One meeting of the Nomination

Committee was held during the review year.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the
“Diversity Policy”) which embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance.
Pursuant to the Diversity Policy, the Company would try
to seek board candidates with Company’s business model
and specific needs, including (but not limited to) gender,
regional and industry experience, skills, knowledge and
educational background. Currently the Board comprises
five (83.3%) males and one (16.7%) females. The Company
will continue to enforce and review the Diversity Policy.
In particular, when the Board identifies potential Director
candidates in the future, it will ensure that sufficient
consideration will be given to gender diversity in light of
the gender distribution of the boards of listed issuers on the
Stock Exchange which operates in the same industry as the

Company.

The Board will review such objectives from time to time
to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress

made towards achieving those objectives.

52  Perfect Group International Holdings Limited %842 5] [5 B2 A5 PR 7]

EHEEWEA ZIULEOR

AANFCHRMNEFGRBEZCILBR(Z
AL BURD > R E H &M B £ ouik #iR
ARLAFAMERREHGERZ - RIFEL T
L BCSR > A28 w5 AR 4 AR 2 W) 2 S8 K

STEREYOERGMREAN L (H
AR PRI Hb I R AT 2 RE R~ BERE -
MEEALEE R B EFFTOLHE AL
(83.3%) 1 It — % (16.7%) & 1 = A 3w #%
A EBAT IR B Zon b BUR - RHRE
HHGHBREY O EAAEEFHARE H
THERAERBEARNGER —TENRE
Bt 22 it b T B AT MR R4 A UL o B R
Lk TRSFE -

EEGNARFNZEAE > ARG HE
JE J e 52 2 A a% 55 A BRI R o



Remuneration committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 14
December 2015 and throughout the year, comprises one
executive Director, namely Mr. Chung Chi Keung and two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lee Ka
Wing and Mr. Wong Wai Keung Frederick. Mr. Lee Ka

Wing is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.
The duties of the Remuneration Committee shall be:

= Make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all Directors’
and senior management’s remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure

for developing remuneration policy;

—  Review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate

goals and objectives;

= Make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive

Directors and senior management;

= Make recommendations to the Board on the

remuneration of non-executive Directors;

= Consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment

conditions elsewhere in the Group;

—  Review and approve the compensation payable to
executive Directors and senior management for any
loss or termination of office or appointment to ensure
that it is consistent with contractual terms and is

otherwise fair and not excessive;

= Review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for
misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with
contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and

appropriate; and
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—  Ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates — TR PR M M EE o B BN O
S kAR 2 B E A B E B

(as defined under the Listing Rules) is involved in

deciding his/her own remuneration.

Meetings of the Remuneration Committee shall be held not FME B BFHEBITADR —KE® -
less than once a year. One meeting of the Remuneration 3 I &= A 5] A { =

Committee was held during the review year.

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of CG Code, the R4 A 38 R <7 Bl 2 <7 RIG SC36 stk -
remuneration of members of senior management by band B, F2022F12H31H 1L 4F > = K E e
J% 5 e A SR 3 2 2 S AR A AT

for the year ended 31 December 2022 is set out below:

No. of
Remuneration Band Individuals
i B i N
Nil — HK$1,000,000 041,000,000 %5 7T 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001%5 JC 1,500,000 %5 JC 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001%5 7T %2,000,000% G =
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7€ % 2,500,000 %5 7T -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T 23,000,000 % 7T -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001% JC £ 3,500,000 #5 JC =
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001%5 7T %.4,000,000%5 7T =
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001%5 JC £4,500,000%5 7T 1

Rk EEEE

The Risk Management Committee was established on 14 JE B & FE 2 B g 220154 12 H14H i or
December 2015 and throughout the year, comprises two DL B R AR > i W % AT S faok
executive Directors, namely Mr. Kan Kin Kwong and HERARE L LUK — LB IF AT E
Ms. Shek Mei Chun and one independent Non-executive HA R e A A R o il MR O o AR T R B
Director, namely Mr. Lee Ka Wing. Mr. Kan Kin Kwong is EHEEGIER -

the chairman of the Risk Management Committee.

Risk management committee

The duties of the Risk Management Committee shall be JE B B 2R B e 0 Bk OE A B AR N A T
monitoring the Company’s exposure to sanctions law risks ) Tl 3% 7 A L B B 34T R B A AR
and its implementation of the related internal control HAEEFE:

procedures, and shall include:

— Reviewing and approving all relevant business - Fi wt B At ME B B AT ] 32 i ER B K 8
transaction documentation from suppliers or JER S EF R BAEREF (AREF)

(9 BT A A B 3 B 58 B SCAF

customers or potential customers from any
country that is subject to sanctions (the “Relevant

Counterparty”);
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—  Reviewing the information (such as identity
and nature of business) relating to the Relevant
Counterparty to the contract along with the draft

business transaction documentation;

—  Checking the Relevant Counterparty against the
various lists of restricted parties and countries
maintained by the United States of America, the
European Union, the United Nations and Australia,
including, without limitation, any government,
individual or entity that is the subject of any United
States Department of Treasury’s Office of Foreign
Assets Control-administered sanctions which lists
are publicly available, and determining whether the
Relevant Counterparty is, or is owned or controlled
by, a person located in any country that is subject to

sanctions or a sanctioned person;

= Reviewing on a semi-annual basis internal control
policies and procedures with respect to sanctions law

matters; and

— If any potential sanctions risk is identified, or
if the Committee considers necessary, retaining
external international legal counsel with necessary
expertise and experience in sanctions law matters for

recommendations and advice.

Meetings of the Risk Management Committee shall be
held no less than once a year. One meeting of the Risk

Management Committee was held during the review year.

Continuous professional development

According to the code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code,
all directors shall participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. During the year, the Group has
provided training materials for all the Directors to keep
them abreast of the latest development of legal, regulatory
and corporate governance. The Group, together with its

compliance adviser, continuously updates the Directors
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on the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules
and other applicable regulatory requirements, to ensure
compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate

governance practices.

Company secretary

Mr. Tam Chun Wa, aged 60, has been appointed as the
chief financial officer, the company secretary and the
authorised representative of the Company, all with effect
from 7 February 2017. Mr. Tam holds a master degree of
business administration from University of Sydney and is
also a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, CPA (Australia) and Institute of Singapore
Chartered Accountants. He has fulfilled the 15 hours of
relevant professional training requirement under the Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December
2022.

Accountability and Audit

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2022. The
Directors aim to present a clear and understandable
assessment of the Group’s financial position and prospects.
The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, the Board therefore continues to adopt the going
concern approach in preparing the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. The Board acknowledges
its responsibility to present a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment in the Company’s annual and
interim reports, inside information announcements and
other financial disclosures required by the Listing Rules,

and reports to the regulators.

The responsibilities of the external auditor with respect
to the financial reporting are set out in the Independent

Auditor’s Report of this report.
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Disclosure of Long Term Basis for Generating
or Preserving Business Value

A discussion and analysis of the Group’s corporate strategy
and long term business model is set out in the Chairman’s
Statement and the Management Discussion and Analysis of

this report.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for the maintenance of a stable
and effective risk management and internal control
systems for the Group and also responsible for reviewing
their effectiveness. The Board, with the assistance from
the Audit Committee, conducted annual review on the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems as required by the Code Provisions,
covering financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management functions, and including reviews on the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programs and budget of the Group’s accounting,
internal audit and financial report function for the Period

and considered they were effective and adequate.

The Group complies with requirements of Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) and the Listing Rules. The
Group discloses inside information to the public as soon as
reasonably practicable unless the information falls within
any of the safe harbours as provided in the SFO. Before
the information is fully disclosed to the public, the Group
ensures the information is kept strictly confidential. If the
Group believes that the necessary degree of confidentiality
cannot be maintained or that confidentiality may have
been breached, the Group would immediately disclose the
information to the public. The Group is committed to
ensure that information contained in announcements or
circulars are not false or misleading as to a material fact, or
false or misleading through the omission of a material fact
in view of presenting information in a clear and balanced
way, which requires equal disclosure of both positive and

negative facts.
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Conflicts of Interest Declaration

The Group adopted conflict of interest declaration policy
as one of the important internal control procedures.
Employees are required to provide annual declaration of
conflict of interest, and strictly comply with the policy to
ensure that the Group and its customers, business partners,
Shareholders, employees and business community of the
transactions and dealings are in line with the highest

standards of business conduct and ethics.

Whistleblowing Policy
The Group established a whistleblowing policy for

employees under confidentiality to file complaint and
report any suspected misconduct, fraud and irregularities,
in an orderly manner. A designated director is assigned for
receiving, reviewing complaint and report, to investigate, to
draw conclusion and to make appropriate recommendations
for improvement, and inform the relevant departments

senior management to implement corrective action.

The review covers all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions. During the year ended 31 December 2022,
the Board engaged Apec Risk Management Limited to
conduct an independent review of the systems of internal
control and risk management of the Group. Weakness
and inadequacies identified during such review together
with recommendations for improvement thereon had
been accepted and implemented in full by the Company
and reviewed by the Audit Committee. Based on this,
the Company is of the view that the systems of internal
control and risk management in place for the year ended 31
December 2022 is sufficient to safeguard the interests of
the Shareholders and the Group’s assets.
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Auditor’s remuneration

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group had
engaged external auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, to

provide the following services:

Corporate Governance Report
WSEE R

¥ B hib T

a8 2 20224F12 A31H 1L 4F > A £ H
AT N W8 A S 7 B o TR B BR U7 | HT R AT
12 4N 51 IR s

Service Fee

Mk B

HK$

T

Audit services % B B 1,230,000
Tax advisory Tl 75 37,000
Interim review services o 10 2 B R S 305,000

Investor relations and communication with
shareholders

The Board recognizes the importance of good
communication with the Shareholders. The Company
believes that maintaining a high level of transparency is the

key to enhance investor relations.

The Company has established several communication
channels, including (a) the annual and extraordinary
general meetings which provide a forum for Shareholders to
communicate directly with the Board; (b) printed corporate
documents mailing to Sharcholders; (c) announcement
disseminating the latest activities of the Group on the
web-sites of the Company and the Stock Exchange; and (d)
the Company’s web-site providing an electronic means of

communication.
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Annual General Meeting

The Board and senior management are well aware of their
important tasks of acting on behalf of the interests of all
the Shareholders and raising the Sharcholders’ returns. The
Board considers that AGM is an important opportunity for
direct communication with the Shareholders. Code A.6.7 of
the Code Provisions require that independent non-executive
directors and non-executive directors should attend general
meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the
views of the Shareholders. The Board encourages all the
Shareholders to participate in the AGM where the members
of the Board and external auditors will be present and

communicate with the Shareholders.

Shareholders’ Rights

How Shareholder Can Convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting

In accordance with Article 58 of the Articles of Association,
the Board may whenever it thinks fit call an extraordinary
general meeting. Any one or more Sharcholders holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up share capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to
require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within
two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself/herself (themselves) may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to

the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Procedures by which Enquiries may be Put to the
Board

Shareholders may, at any time, direct enquiries to the
Board. Such enquiries can be addressed to the Company
Secretary in writing by mail to the Company’s registered
office in the Cayman Islands at Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands or its principal place of business in Hong Kong and
headquarters at 26th Floor, YHC Tower, No. 1 Sheung
Yuet Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at
Shareholders” Meeting

There are no provisions in the Articles of Association or
the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands for Shareholders
to put forward new resolutions at general meetings.
Shareholders who wish to put forward a new resolution
may request the Company to convene a general meeting
in accordance with the procedures set out in the above
paragraph heading “How Sharecholder Can Convene an

Extraordinary General Meeting”.

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person
for Election as a Director

If a shareholder wishes to nominate a person to stand for
election as a Director at a general meeting, the relevant
documents must be validly served on the Company’s
registered office in the Cayman Islands or the place of
business in Hong Kong and headquarters within the
requisite period of time. The full details of the procedures
for Shareholders to propose a person for election as a
Director were posted on 31 December 2015 on the web-site

of the Company at http://www.hkperjew.com.hk.

Significant Changes in Constitutional
Documents

As of the date of this report, there were no changes made

to the constitutional documents of the Company.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BREL - A E RBREG

ABOUT THIS REPORT

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the
“Report”) of Perfect Group International Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) provides an update information on the
environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) work of the
Group from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022 (the
“Reporting Year”). The Report is principally prepared with
reference to the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide (“the ESG Reporting Guide”) issued by
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) and key performance indicators with reference
to Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of

Securities on the Stock Exchange.

REPORTING SCOPE

The Group operates its principal business in the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region (“Hong Kong”) and
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) and therefore the
Report only covers the Group’s operation in these two
areas. The Report also focuses on the following two subject

areas during the Reporting Year:

A. Environmental (emissions, use of resources
consumption, together with the environmental and

natural resources and climate change)

B. Social (employment, health and safety, development
and training, labour standards, supply chain
management, product responsibility, anti-corruption

and community investment)

For details of the Group’s corporate governance, please also
refer to the Corporate Governance Report included in the
Annual Report 2022 of the Group.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

THE ESG GOVERNANCE
STRUCTURE

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company has
overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG strategy and
reporting. The Board is responsible for evaluating and
determining the Group’s ESG-related risks and ensuring
that appropriate and effective ESG risk management
and internal control systems are in place. The Executive
Directors are responsible for formulating ESG management
policies, strategies, goals, and annual reporting and
promoting related implementation. They also identify,
evaluate, review, and manage major ESG issues, risks and
opportunities while other departments are responsible for
organizing, promoting, and implementing various ESG
related tasks under the Group’s ESG management policies
and strategies, including collecting and analysing relevant
information and data on the ESG aspects, supervising and
evaluating the Group’s ESG performance relating to various
aspects such as the environment, health and safety, labour
standard and product and service responsibility, ensuring
that the Group abides by relevant laws and regulations
and assisting to formulate ESG priorities. All tasks will be
reported to the Board regularly in order to review and re-
formulate the policies and plans for achievement of goals
and targets. The progress of target implementation and
the performance of the goals and targets would be closely
reviewed from time to time. Rectification may be needed
if the progress falls short of expectation. As a responsible
enterprise, the Group considers the commitments of the
ESG be part of its responsibility and is dedicated to embed

the ESG factors into the decision-making process.

BN e LG
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REPORTING STANDARDS AND
PRINCIPLES

The Report has been prepared in accordance with the
“mandatory disclosure requirements” and “comply or
explain” provisions of the ESG Reporting Guide under
Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of

Securities on the Stock Exchange. During its preparation,

the Group adheres to the reporting principles of materiality,

quantitative, balance and consistency by:

Reporting Principles

e # D

Interpretation

i B

e A5 AR 1 B

A 5 AR B B 5 P @ R b T AR A T Bk
— B ESGH 5 51 A A [ 58 i 5 55 L
VAR SN AN TR TRy
e AREMEEREEZENE - B FER
— Pk A s A

The Group’s Application
A £ T B W

Materiality

#HEM

Quantitative

e

Balance

¥

The report should disclose significant
impacts on the environment and society,
or aspects that materially affect how the
stakeholders assess the company and make
decisions.

ot B4 e B BRI A I E R B
B 3B 35 1 A0 T 5T A 2 AR R R
FERZEWIT@E -

The KPIs disclosed in the report shall
be calculable and comparable where

applicable.

ot b B B 0 B S BRSO —

(RN I R R T e i = A

The Group should objectively and
truthfully report its ESG performance for

the Reporting Year.

— AEHEEE - WEBREARRSFE —

ERESGHE B -
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— The Group conducts questionnaire to

understand stakeholders” expectations.
Based on the results of the questionnaire,
the Group identifies and reports the
Group’s material sustainability issues.

A AR B R G T AT R R
2o RIEME AR AR > A
] 7 e A S I Y R A AR A

Under feasible situation, the Group records,
calculates and discloses quantitative
information and conducts comparisons
with past performance.

TEFATEOL T » AL BT 8k - 7HE R
P dEmALE R 0 B R BUEAT I
B o

The Group follows the principles of
accuracy, objectivity and fairness to
report its achievements and challenges in
sustainable development.
AR - B P E IR
i ot AE T 5 5% R O T A RCR K Bk
B o
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Reporting Principles Interpretation The Group’s Application
e o JRU i B A 55 1 i i
Consistency — The ESG report should be prepared in — The Group ensures consistency in
a consistent manner, its ESG’s KPIs can preparing the report and manage its ESG

be compared to understand corporate

data for future comparison. If there are any

performance. changes to the methodologies, calculations,
or any other factors that affect meaningful
comparison, the Group will make a clear
explanation
— — ESGH#k # M ML — By o A > — A AR A R — Bt >

ESGH 8 SRR B ] TH - T BOHESGHHE - LIt A AR e o fi

fift A SR B -

CONTACT INFORMATION

The Group welcomes your feedback on the Report for
our sustainability initiatives. Please contact us by email to

info@hkperjew.com.hk.

APPROVAL OF THE REPORT
The Report was approved by the Board of the Group.

Jr v~ RS A B AL A b
2 A0 [ 3 8 2 9 - A S T A 1
e FE

Wi &% 7 X

AL O BT AL AN B AT A B R AR
a4 S B L o A B AT W A%
iH 4% 25 % ¥ & info@hkperjew.com.hk °

it o e A
A% R A S 0 o
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Materiality Assessment

With a growing population, challenges such as climate
change, energy supply and security, raw material scarcity,
human health and safety, and employment must be
addressed to ensure that people can lead healthy and
fulfilling lives. Faced with a wide range of issues, the
Group is keen to identify those that have a great impact
on its stakeholders and business, and then to develop its
strategic priorities. This is why materiality assessment is

an essential part of the Group’s ESG management and

o2 A

BE N DR > FRAM 2 ZH R B S A L -
AE VR It E AN 2 &~ RO OREJE B - N B R
e 2Dl Rk E S PR > DURE (R K K Ag A
R AN o W EZ R E
A 45 [ B 7 Ak R KR 0 3 N 2E B A AR
HREEWME KRB CRMEEDR - &
A7 R R > EE B R AN S A £ B ESG
FHF 5 1Y S A R A e

reporting.
Materiality Matrix during the Reporting Year
o A 8 E PR AR
= A fi
Development and training}
- PR KI5
(¢]
©) e
Z .
&) ﬁ Environment and Emissions ® Health Aandﬁsafety
B | mawanin o o
IRER e E]
Z { BRI oy
o=
253
é = Labour standards
2 e eI
‘g @ @
5] [Community investment }
~ o AL I 3
@
@ ®

Product responsibility °
7 AT

Supply chain management
A A B

Lo BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT SIGNIFICANCE High
fik BT B R ) i

The Group has established a stakeholder-driven approach to
analysing the importance of ESG and identified 12 issues
most relevant to the Group’s business. A questionnaire
was then conducted, in which stakeholders were invited to
rate the issues based on their importance to the Group’s

business and to the stakeholders themselves.

66 Perfect Group International Holdings Limited i %555 [ [5] [ 42 e A R4
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A. Environmental

1.

Emissions

The Group’s operation does not result in
significant air and greenhouse gas emissions or,
discharges into water and land. The wastes
created during the operation are mainly
generated from electricity consumption and
usage of vehicles fleet. During the Reporting
Year, the Group has complied with all relevant
laws and regulations which have significant
impact on us. Such laws and regulations include
but are not limited to Law of the PRC on
Environmental Protection* (7 #HE A K 3L A0
IR O R # 1£ ), Law of the PRC on the
Prevention and Control of Water Pollution* (H
IENCR A K V5 e B IR 35), Law of the
PRC on the Prevention and Control of Pollution
from Environmental Noise* (7% A R 3 F0
BRE M B Y5 YL B VR 15), Law of the PRC on
the Prevention and Control of Environmental
Pollution of Solid Waste* (FF 3 A B FL Al
B B W) 75 YL IR % B IR 1), the Regulations on
Environmental Protection Management of
Construction Projects™ (AR IE H IR 55 (R o
HLE ), the Air Pollution Control Ordinance
(Cap. 311 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the
Water Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 358 of
the Laws of Hong Kong). During the Reporting
Year, the Group did not receive any notification on
non-compliance with laws and regulations that

have significant impacts on the Group.

*  For identification purpose only

*

BN e LG

PE ik ¥

A K 1 EOR & B K &R
BB R PR > IR R € % R
K Bttty Gy o AE i R PR
AR BEEY FEIREE T FE &
BB - RIREFERN > AL
B O S T A B IR A R
T AR B S R - RS R
IS H AN PR C EE N R 3L
B R B AR L) ~ Ch#EAR LM
B 7K 75 G B jR R ~ (P EE N R L
B B B MR R S YL B IR EED) ~ (R
# N B R0 [ [ B BE ) 75 U R AR
BiiR k) (R E BB BT R v
G ~ (22 505 Y 5 i i I
% B SE311EE) Ok s G A il
& 19> (Fr W5 1% 19 55358 %) » it it
AR > AR 4R [E] NI A 2 AT T
A OB E R B KRB H OB 4R
BAREKYEZBEM -

1 (i
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During the Reporting Year, most of nitrogen
oxides (NOx), sulphur oxides (SOx) and
particulate matter (PM) were emitted from fuel
consumption of electricity and vehicle fleet.
During the Reporting Year, it is estimated
that 3,831 litres (2021: 8,793 litres) of petrol
and 0.9 million kWh (2021: 1.0 million kWh)
of electricity was consumed. The decrease in
petrol used was mainly due to the temporarily
impacted operation in view of COVID-19
during the Reporting Year. The Group has
policy and guideline to maintain the efficient

use of electricity and use of petrol.

During the Reporting Year and the

corresponding year in 2021, the air pollutant

RN RE S AELY
(NOx) ~ #iit & Ak ¥ (SOx) I %& 77 Kr
T (PM) B BT8R B B 1 S BB P
THFE A o A B AF BE A > Al
7L THAE3,831FF (20214F : 8,793 7F)
VR 52091 & T FLIRF (20214F © 1.0
HE TR TN - R WEHFEE
ZNED kﬁf%ﬁﬁﬁiﬁd*a‘z%ﬁ%dﬂﬂﬁ
HEHESES YRR R

Jr gk o A SEEE I E BUK KT
DUAEFE R S R = s R A e

ﬁ/\iﬁ'ﬂ:@ Ko A E BI20214F > 4
P 3 R R Y 22 TS e W BE iR

emissions from the operation are set out below: T :
Air Pollutant Emission
22 RA5 R i &
2022 2021
20224 20214
Air Pollutant Air Pollutant
Type of Air Pollutants EREGRMER Emission (kg)  Emission (kg)
ERERY ERIBREY
P = B g
(F3) (F32)
Sulphur Oxides (SOx) i AL ¥ (SOx) 0.21 0.13
Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) A ALY (NOx) 1.99 2.48
Particulate Matter (PM) % E R (PM) 0.31 0.54
Intensity (kg/Revenue HK$°000) EE(TR,/BTHBITkA) 0.000007 0.000008
Note: R 5T -
1. The air pollutants emissions include the Sulphur 1. 22 S5 Y W HE R ﬁ‘ B 950

Oxides, Nitrogen Oxides and Particulate Matter
generated by vehicle petrol consumption.

2. The emissions data of Sulphur Oxides, Nitrogen
Oxides and Particulate Matter are based on “the
Preparation of Air Pollutants Emission Inventory
for Road Vehicles (Trial)”, “How to prepare an ESG
Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange.

Perfect Group International Holdings Limited %% 5 [H 58 P42 A BR 2

FEANR ALY - ARALY LB
FHRF o
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During the Reporting Year and the
corresponding year in 2021, the greenhouse gas

(“GHG”) emissions from the operation are set

BN e LG

T AR I M RE f920214F > AR
4 1 7 0 AR P Y SR B
R

out below:
(tonnes of CO2-¢)
(2 W — S AL B =)

2022 2021
Scope i & 20224 20214F
Scope 1: Direct GHG emissions HE: H B S PR 9.34 22.27
Scope 2: Indirect GHG emissions a2 : W B % P ik 495.03 590.47
Total ME 504.37 612.74

. , B

Intensity (tonnes/revenue HKD$000) ETQWF@:E:?(%JTZW)\) N0 0.002

Note:

The calculation of the greenhouse gas emission is based on
the “Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard” from
greenhouse gas protocol, “How to prepare an ESG Report
— Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental
KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange, latest released emission
factors of China’s regional power grid basis, the emission
factor released by the Hong Kong Electric Investments in
2020, Calculating Methods and Reporting Guidelines for
Greenhouse Gas Emissions from Land Transport
Enterprises (Trial)* (P I =z 4 v w4 2 0 = SO PR
% 557 3 B 15 i GRUAT)).

Scope 1: Refers to direct emissions from vehicles owned by

the Group;

Scope 2: Refer to indirect emissions mainly from the

generation of purchased electricity consumed by the Group.

Scope 3 is not disclosed as it is an optional disclosure.

For identification purpose only

(EE

T 2 SR HR A U9 AR B P I R SR R A
ko TR [ 26w B B AE ] B 52
Jov A G o] A fE BR G AR B R R
Wt — BBk ¢ BR 0 B S A B
851D ~ BT 28 M (Y rb I i Jak R A 2 E AR
PERC R - s 8 T 1 4 R 202048 B A
B PR T~ B b s i A 2R E R
B PR A U i B 4 e (RUAT)
FHH

1 A AR B AT VR Y B PR

i 132 + 4 35 2 b A 4 1 0 R O R BT R
f 1] 4 B i o

R AP0 9% A (3 - B T g8 A o I o
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AR B M R B920214F > A
AF [ S E A A E M E R

and non-hazardous waste generated from the Mnr

During the Reporting Year and the

corresponding year in 2021, the hazardous

operation are set out below:

2022 2021

Category | 20224 20214F

Hazardous waste (tonnes) HEBEEY (A 403 935

Non-hazardous waste (tonnes) $E 8% B W) (/> M) 1 2
Hazardous waste intensity HEBEYEE

(tonnes/revenue HKD$°000) (2 Wi T Tl A) 0.001077 0.002329
Non-hazardous waste intensity mEBEEYEE

(tonnes/revenue HKD$’000) (W4 T Tl A) 0.000002 0.000004

The primary hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes generated from our production processes
are wastewater and commercial wastes
respectively. To ensure the operation of our
factory is in compliance with the applicable
environmental law, we have entered into a waste
water treatment agreement with a qualified water
treatment service provider which is responsible
for collecting the wastewater produced in our

factory’s production process.

During the Reporting Year, the Group did
not generate/consume significant hazardous
and non-hazardous waste and water due to its

business nature.

In addition, the Group advocates emission
reduction, and is committed to achieving
sustainable operations and compliance with
emission requirements permitted by the local
authorities. To this end, we have set preliminary
directional targets in terms of reducing
emissions (including air pollutants, greenhouse

gas, hazardous and non-hazardous wastes,

Perfect Group International Holdings Limited %% 5 [H 58 P42 A BR 2
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and sewage). For the coming year in 2023,
the Group is committed to actively implement
the environmental initiatives, including the
air pollutants control plan, electricity-saving
measures, material-saving plan and waste
reduction plan. These efforts will be based on
the progress made in 2022, with the target
of maintaining or reducing the intensity of
waste production, air pollutants emissions and
GHG gas emissions. The Group will review
the progress and explore more opportunities for
various environmental protection goals. In the
future, we will set more specific quantitative
environmental goals to nurture the environment
and cherish natural resources. Moreover, we are
investing more resources in recycling to help the

development of circular economy.

The Group had developed the 2022
environmental targets for air pollutants emission,
GHG emissions and waste production, and the

result as at the end of Reporting Year are as

follow:
Environmental KPI Targets
L EE e H &2

BN e LG

KEGREDER G E - & EH
Tt~ A RHET B R B B g EEE o
3 T AE M AR 95 202248 22 AR 1Y ¥
JEREB > B2 4R K E Y
FE A~ KORTE B B R E R
S PRy BT o A A T A A
B W ASKSHRRAEREREZS
BE o Rk AR E A
MEARERE > UIRERE R
B AKRER - A > A BB
IEFE BRI A 7 A E 2 &R
DL B 8% R 10 BR AR o

A 4R [ BB ¥ 2 R e W BE R
B REREEKRE LBEEY
FE A E20224F IR B B AR > it IR
HEERZEERBI W

Results as at

Baseline the end of

Year Reporting Year
T e AR Z

B 4 BR

Air pollutants emissions

ERIE R E
GHG emissions

i % 58 PR R
Waste production

BRWEL

Maintain or reduce the intensity of air pollutants 2021

emissions by 2022
TR 20224F 3¢ 15 B W 1 22 SR 5 e W B o
Maintain or reduce the intensity of greenhouse
gas emissions by 2022
TR 20224 T 45 55 1 1K 1ht % SR HR Pl o 2
Maintain or reduce the intensity of waste

production by 2022
TR 20224F {1 5 1 1K B W) 2 AL

Target achieved

20214 ER Ik
2021 Target achieved
20214 B K
2021 Target achieved
20214 B K
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For each target established, the Group has placed
the following measures to achieve the rtargets
for air pollutants emission, GHG emissions and

waste production.

Carrying out regular maintenance
of vehicles with good condition for

operational efficiency

Encouraging the use of hybrid or electric

vehicles whenever possible
Replacing aging lamps with LED lamps

Installing blackout curtains to reduce

energy loss

Switching off lights and unnecessary
energy-consuming devices when they are

not in use

Promoting environmental protection such
as saving water and electricity by means of

slogan or poster in office

Using electronic document processing

system to minimise the use of paper

Encouraging printing or photocopying on

both sides of paper, where applicable

Focusing on quality management to
reduce wastage and scrap for less pollution

resulted

Perfect Group International Holdings Limited %% 5 [H 58 P42 A BR 2
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Use of Resources

The Group’s production plants and business
operations are strictly abide by all relevant
environmental laws and regulations, including
but not limited to the Energy Conservation Law
of the PRC* ("3 A R 4L 0[5 i 4 A& Wi 1%),
Waste Disposal Ordinance of Hong Kong and
other laws and regulations. We have
implemented energy & resources conservation
measure in our operations including having
energy & resources conservation procedure in
place in the course of business operation. We are
committed to advocating conservation of
resources, and improving the efficiency of

energy and resource consumption.

During the Reporting Year, the electricity
consumption by the Group was approximately
0.9 million kWh (2021: 1.0 million kWh).
During the Reporting Year, Hong Kong
operation has consumed approximately 0.1
million kWh (2021: 0.1 million kWh) and the
PRC operation has consumed approximately 0.8
million kWh (2021: 0.9 million K\Wh).

BN e LG

B IR

A SR T B A EE R B M E S R
F AR ST BT A A B B BR Bk A
B B AR (P AR
AR B A BB IR IE) - B COK
15 L il R 19D B H Ak A A B -
A © 7 B P it B e M R
B A9 5 0 - LA (ER BR R AE 26 85
T AR o S B AR A TR B A0
PREFE R o FAM B R A8 H i 4

R EFEERN ALBHER
#5090 B TR (20214F : 1.07A
BT R EFEEN F
% E I FE A9 0.1H B T BL RF
(20214F : 0.1H & T B KF) > 1M
B ) 5 9 L9 AR £90.8'F B T BL KR
(20214F : 0.9F & T KL W) »

< fE A

*  For identification purpose only
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Energy consumption by the Group during the
Reporting Year and the corresponding year in

2021 are set out below:

Energy Consumption

A SE [ i 20214 AH B
EERNREEMEEBN T

e IR T #E
Energy consumed (kWh)
& U5 1 #E (7 B k)

2022 2021
Type of energy fi U R 20224 20214
Unleaded petrol M 5 37,128.26 85,213.47
Liquefied Petroleum Gas WAL AR — 638.89
Purchased electricity MEEN 846,170.04 1,016,959.00
Total A5t 883,298.30 1,102.811.36

Energy intensity (kWh/revenue fit U5 %
HK$°000) (TRFETHETRA) 2.36 2.75

As the Group subcontracted the canteen
operation out during the Reporting Year, no
liquefied petroleum gas was used under our
control and therefore data was unavailable.

The water consumption by the Group was
approximately 3,101 cubic meters (0.008 cubic
meters/revenue HKD$’000) (2021: 935 cubic
meters, 0.002 cubic meters/revenue HKD$’000).
Most of them are consumed in the PRC as
Hong Kong office is for general administrative
and sales purpose. The increase in water
consumption in the Reporting Year is due to
the increase of the leasing of properties and the
provision of management services operation
in the Perfect Group Jewellery Industry Park
(f* %% Bk & & 2 ). The Group, same as
last year, has ensured the consistent efficiency
in the use of water. The water in the PRC
are mainly supplied by the state-owned water
utility company while the water in Hong
Kong are mainly supplied by the Water Supply
Department of the Hong Kong Government,

which we have no issue in water sourcing.

Perfect Group International Holdings Limited %% 5 [H 58 P42 A BR 2
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Packing material the Group used are light and
recyclable. The packing material used during
the Reporting Year was mainly paper estimated
0.20 tonnes (2021: less than 0.02 tonnes). The
increased use of packing materials during the
Reporting Year was related to the higher demand
for storage and the need to ensure that goods
remain safe and secure during transportation
and storage.

In addition, the Group advocates energy and
resources saving, and is committed to achieving
sustainable operations and compliance with
emission requirements by local authorities. To
this end, we have set preliminary directional
targets in terms of energy use efficiency and
water efficiency, in order to perform better
energy conservation and water conservation.
For the coming year in 2023, the Group is
committed to actively implement the electricity-
saving plan and water-saving plan and measures.
These efforts will be based on the progress
made in 2022, with the target of maintaining
or reducing the intensity of energy consumption
and water consumption. The Group will review
the progress and explore more opportunities for
various environmental protection goals. In the
future, we will set more specific quantitative
environmental goals to nurture the environment
and cherish natural resources. Moreover, we are
investing more resources in recycling to help the
development of circular economy.

BN e LG

A 4 3] {5 A 0 AU Rz n] (] i Y A 2
YroRL o i i A R R TR Y B
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The Group had developed the 2022

environmental targets for energy conservation

end of Reporting Year are as follow:

AL B Ot AR M B K A R T
FE20224F 3R 35 H AL > it R A AR B
and water conservation, and the result as at the RKEEERW T :

Results as
Baseline at the end of
Environmental KPI Targets Year Reporting Year
T 8t 38 47 B K B
TR0 B B AR R HE A AR
Energy consumption Maintain or reduce the intensity of energy 2021 Target achieved
consumption by 2022
i U I FE R 5 ¢ 15 20025 BB U538 76 9 20215 HHCH R
Water consumption Maintain or reduce the intensity of water 2021 In progress
consumption by 2022
k& PR 5 B 1 20225 K o 20214 AT H
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To achieve the goals of environmental protection
and reduction of its production costs, the Group
has placed the following energy and water
conservation measures in the production plants
and the office:

1. Adjusted the central air-conditioning
control system to reduce electricity

consumption.

2. Electricity-saving fluorescent tubes are
installed to save energy and reduce energy

consumption.

3. Stipulating employees to turn off the lights
and air-conditioning system after office or

when not in use.

4. Encourages employees to use electricity
or hybrid motor vehicles and provides

facilities whenever possible.

5.  Utilising materials that facilitate clean
production environment to effectively
reduce the consumption of detergents and

running water.

6. Promoting environmental protection such
as saving water and electricity by slogan or

poster in office.
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Environmental and Natural Resources

The Group raises staff’s awareness on
environmental issues through education and
enlists employees’ support in improving the
Group’s performance, promotes environmental
awareness amongst the customers, business
partners and shareholders, supports community
activities in relation to environmental protection
and sustainability, and evaluates and monitors
regularly the impact of past and present business
activities impacting upon health, safety and
environmental matters. With the integration of
policies and impacts of the Group’s activities
on the environment and natural resources
mentioned in the aforesaid sections headed
“Emissions” and “Use of Resources” of this
ESG Report, the Group strives to minimise
the impacts to the environment and natural
resources. The operation of the Group does not
constitute any material adverse effects on the
environmental and natural resources. The Group
promotes green office to raise the environmental
protection awareness of the employees and
implements the following measures to achieve

our goal.

(i)  Encouraging employees to treasure food

and reduce food wastes;

(if)  Staff canteen provides healthy meal with
less oil and salt to encourage our employees
to pay attention to healthy diet and reduce

consumption;

(iii) The Group strives to facilitate paperless
office with more frequent use of electronic
forms, electronic photo picking system and

recycled papers;
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(iv) The Group compares the utility expenses
each month to look for ways to reduce
the impact on natural resources and

environment; and

(v) Incorporate the green concept when
designing the production plants and the
Perfect Group Jewellery Industry Park.

Climate Change

Climate change has caused frequent extreme
weather and has a major impact on business
operations. Therefore, the Group has formulated
working mechanisms and contingency plan to
identify, prevent and mitigate climate change
issues that may have a significant impact. At
the same time, we would adjust the use of
resources and energy. In response to disasters
and accidents that are easily induced by extreme
weather, we always enhance the capability to the

disaster response.

Physical Acute Risk

The Group has identified extreme weather such
as typhoons, heavy rain, thunder and lightning
and flooding that can cause physical acute risk.
The potential consequences include damage
to documents, material, equipment, buildings
and even employees’ health and life. The above
potential consequences could possibly cause
economic losses and increase operating costs to

the Group.
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The Group has established different measures

as below to prevent and minimise the negative

effect of extreme weather.

W o
=

Physical Acute Risk

B % 0 A B

Extreme weather Preventative and mitigation measures
ik dii K SR e B A 5% A 5 it
Typhoons — Close doors and windows with advance notice

— Move materials and equipment to safety areas in advance, or covered

with a tarp

— Reinforce equipment and components that may be blown away

it — 4 i 4 0 B P

Heavy rain and Flooding

& AL K

Thunder and lightning

By

55N

A5 B BHFN 5% A 4R AT B A% 2 A A s > SR DLR K A B
T I AT BE A IR E B9 5% A AN A

Clean up trash and make sure drains unblocked

Check that all windows and doors are shut as secure as possible
Maintain drainage equipment

Reinforce equipment and components that may be washed away
I B 57 3 0 e DR D K A W 0l

M B A PR R 3 R RE % 4 B P

A T DK B

T [ AT BE A I E B % A A0 A

Keep good conditions of earthing devices

Remind employees to save data and turn off computers
PR e i 3 B R4 IR AR

& 18 B T 0R A7 Bk I BR PH &1 59 0
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Physical Chronic Risk

The Group has identified extreme weather such
as extremely hot weather can cause physical
chronic risk. The potential consequences include
an increased chance of getting heatstroke for
employees working outdoor or in the workshop,
increasing turnover rate and work-related
injuries. The demand for cooling for the working
environment will be increased, which may lead
to an increase in power demand and operating

costs to the Group.

The Group has established different measures
as below to prevent and minimise the negative

effect of extreme weather.
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Physical Chronic Risk

T T R B
Extreme weather Preventative and mitigation measures
ik 3 KR, T B A 5% A 4 it
Extremely hot weather — Open windows to allow the air to circulate

— Keep a First-aid kit convenient

— Keep cold water available 24 hours a day

it i T 2K SR — TR T % R
— il PR SRR 7 BT

— &R 24/ R e K

Transitional risks: 4 JE B -

The Group has identified climate-related
transitional risks and opportunities such as
advancement of low-emission technologies,
carbon pricing and new developments and
taxation. The advancement on lower emission
technologies may contribute to expenditure in
researching in and developing new low-carbon
technologies. Also, the latest development of
carbon pricing and taxation in geographies we

operate in may lead to rise in operational costs.
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The Group has established different measures
as below to prevent and minimise the negative

effect of transitional risks.

A L5 B B 2 AR A A B R - DL TR BT R
B D A A B ) BT 2 e

Transitional risks

8 90 I B
Climate-related risks description Preventative and mitigation measures
SR 00% T A D i i e T Il A 4% At 4
Technology risk — Planned to invest in the innovations of energy saving products
Advancement of low-emission — Examined the feasibility and benefits of applying the latest low-carbon and

technologies

1 Jal B — wHEBCE Al
AR B B H T 9 o 25 — FE RN R &

energy-saving technologies into our operation
5]
ET]

5 B FEY S AP 22 0 T ATV I A

Policy risk — Monitor the updates of the local policies and relevant environmental laws and

Development of carbon pricing and

regulations against existing products and services, to avoid the unnecessary

taxation increase in cost and expenditure due to non-compliance
— Planned to conduct a carbon footprint survey, in order to work out the
company’s footprint, to prioritise energy and waste reductions
B3R A B — RUEUA b SR o B R R AN B BRI A A A > L
Bk 2 B % T AL HY % G DA 5 LTI 2 B0 A BB A B B S

— RFEDETTIROR I A o DUEH A AR AR B B o 8 O B AR R -

Social Employment and labour Practices

In order to create a united and harmonious
professional team, the Group provides the employees
a fair working environment, and enhance their
knowledge and skills for discharging duties at work
and thereby their work efficiency.

Employment

To retain talents, the Group develops and provides
incentives to its employees based on their performance
and productivity. In terms of recruitment, promotion,
remuneration, working hours, leaves and benefits, the
Group ensures the conditions of which are competitive
and in compliance with relevant laws. The Group also
provides Share Option Scheme to give incentive to

staff to share the growth of the Group.
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The Group pursues equal opportunities in terms
of recruitment policy. The Group also ensures the
fairness of process without any violation of the
local laws and regulations such as Sex, Disability,
Family Status and Race Discrimination Ordinances,
Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of
Hong Kong).

The Group focuses on investing in talents and
offering a promising career path. Thus, internal re-
designation and promotion of potential employees
will be first considered to fill any vacancies within the
Group. Promotion criteria are based on various factors
such as employees’ working performance, leadership
and cooperation.

The Group ensures the employees’ remuneration
be competitive in the labour market. Moreover,
in assessing the rate of annual salary adjustment,
the Group takes into account the annual financial
results, make reference to the economic environment,
inflation, salary trends and industry salary reference,
and base on appraisal reports and work performance

of the employees to make revision.

The Group ensures that the requirements of relevant
laws and guidelines have been compiled with. The
Group participated retirement benefits scheme in
Hong Kong and PRC such as Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws
of Hong Kong), Pension insurance system* (EEMR
B i &) in PRC. Besides, the Group strictly complies
with national and local government regulations,
including but not limited to the Labor Law of the
PRC* (3 N R ILAE 55 8 %), the Employment
Promotion Law of the PRC* (" % A B 3L Al 5wt 2%
i #E 7%), the Labor Contract Law of the PRC* (H %
N B 3L B 45 8 4 7 75) and the Employment
Ordinance of Hong Kong.
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The Group also provides its employees with a quality
working environment. A spacious staff canteen and
floor lounge in the office building are available for
the employees to use. The Group organises staff
buffet and dinner from time to time and distributes

gifts to employees at festivals.

During the Reporting Year, the Group strictly
complied with labour laws and relevant regulations of
the PRC and Hong Kong, and had not been involved
in any event of breach of laws and regulations
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits
and welfare, which had a significant impact on the

Group.

As of 31 December 2022, the Group employed
approximately 150 (2021: 128) full-time employees.
The total number of employees classified by gender,
function, age group and geographic region are as

follows:

Total number of employees by gender:

AL H N 7 R B4R A TARBR BT
e KM R T B TR
RS E AR B 6 o A 4R F R By 22 o
B TR KO o H e R B G A

el AE LA A B B AR T P
o 55 B 5 AR B R R > S R W AT AT
B A 4R B A R ORI A B R T
B MR AR - RS KB T - TR R - K
SWFH PSR - R R AR
I Y 7 35 8 AT

H E20224F12H31H » A 4 H 14
15044 (20214F : 1284%) =W E B - &t
A~ Bk BE K AE B4 AR B B4 1 R B A
mr:

vk B3 23 1 R B AR

2022 2021

20224 20214F

Male X 66 54
Female g 84 74
Total K5t 150 128

Total number of employees by function: i W e By 1) B B AR B

2022 2021

20224 20214F

Directorate and managerial staff — # F & H A B 40 14
Clerical employees SR B 110 114
Total 5T 150 128
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Total number of employees by age group:

BN e LG

Fe A i AL &) 0 ) R B AR o

2022 2021

20224 20214F

18 to 30 18 E 305 44 32

31 to 50 31 E505% 74 65

Over 50 50 UA b 32 31

Total A 150 128
Total number of employees by geographic region: ¥ b £ [ gl B o0 ) R B AR

2022 2021

20224 20214F

Hong Kong i 33 34

PRC [ 117 94

Total ek 150 128

The employee turnover rate during the Reporting Year

and corresponding year in 2021 by gender, age group

and geographical region are as follows:

The employee turnover rate by gender:

A AR S A ERY20214F > FRPER -
AE B AR K M PR R E ) B R B

B ZWMT

e P 5145 1 1 B o 2 %

2022 2021

20224F 20214F

Male Bk 8.33% 14.41%

Female Y 3.80% 13.64%
The employee turnover rate by age group: i AF % 20 0 B 2 1O A B R R

2022 2021

20224 20214F

18 to 30 18 E 305% 7.89% 14.29%

31 to 50 31 £ 50 2.88% 16.18%

Over 50 505% DA b 9.52% 9.23%
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The employee turnover rate by geographical region:

e S 16 3 1 5 0 0 0 0% %

2022 2021

20224F 20214

Hong Kong w 8.96% 6.25%

PRC o[ 4.74% 16.76%
Note: R 51

Turnover rate for employees in the relevant categories = (Number
of employees leave in the specified category/Average number of
total employees in the specified category at the beginning and the
end of the Reporting Period) x 100%.

In respect of dismissal policy, the Group offers those
underperforming employees or those who make
general mistakes a chance to improve. Should the
employee not make considerable improvement within
a reasonable time, the Group then considers to dismiss
them and handle it in accordance with the labour
laws and regulation in Hong Kong and the PRC.

The Group was not aware of any material non-

compliance with relevant labour laws and regulations.

Health and Safety

The Group strives to provide the employees with a
safe and harmonious working condition. The Group
provides suitable training to the employees whenever
possible. The staff are also provided with pay leave
whenever they attend suitable course to upgrade their
work ability and performance. The Group is always
taking steps to advance the health and safety of its
employees and comply with relevant regulatory
requirements in all regions in which it operates,
including the Production Safety Law of the PRC* (7
ENRILAMBE L 2L EE) and Occupational
Safety and Health Ordinance of Hong Kong, as well
as the latest safety procedures and guidelines.

*  For identification purpose only
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The Group has appointed a staff who is responsible
for the promotion, training, supervision and
management of occupational health and safety to

enhance the employees’ occupational safety awareness.

During the Reporting Year, there were 2 work-related
injuries (2021: 1; 2020: 1) with 19 lost days (2021:
135 2020: 39) due to work injury. The Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that would have any significant
impact on the Group. And our Group did not have
any incidents of work-related fatalities for the latest 3

financial years including the Reporting Year.

Note: The Group has reviewed the number of work-related injuries
and lost days in 2021 and 2020 and restated the relevant
data accordingly.

Response to the COVID-19 Pandemic
To cope with the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group

has strictly complied with official regulations and
guidance to promote public health in all workplaces
and point-of-sale (POS) and has set up special work
arrangement plan and adopted enhanced health and
anti-pandemic measures in its premises to minimise
disruption brought by the pandemic to its operation.
To secure employees’ health and safety and control
the risks arising from the pandemic, the Group
has stringently monitored the health and safety
inspections, routinely disinfected and maintained the
cleanliness of its premises and reminded its employees

of personal hygiene and social distance.

BN e LG

AEEOZER TARHER - Hil
EEREHMERRELLEFE D
1 e R E 3 % A R -

WHREFEAN RBEHLZE2A
(20214F 1 1N 520204 1 A) » AL
B TAEH19K (2021 1 13K 5 2020 :
39K) o A4 [H ok B B AT o] Bk O R
A B 2 9 KRR ) L S A A T R K
OB L o A AR R B A R 45 AR
TE TR Y e # = A8 B B A JE NI 40 A Ao (A
TAT-H A -

Bff 550 A 45 H B $20214F 202045 0 B L%
15 N B R R TR 2% TAE H3oE 4T 4865 >
S 365 A B R A AT A RE 4 o

J#E ¥ COVID-19%% 1

1y FE ¥ COVID-19% 1 > A 4 H Bt 4%
WSFE T E RIEE > TR TAE
% BT I 8 8 25 (POS) 1 3 A i A
3 il Ik T AE % PE 5T 8 KA HOR
PR o e K pU o HE R o DA 3 U
I PR e A S L AR T o Ay
PRAR B fil B K & 2 DL R B ) % 1 AT
A1 JE B > AN B B A B MR R K
LA BHE AT B AT # R
PRFFIEE > $E M H R B 28 AN A
T AR H5 AL 22 05 o

2022 Annual Report 4EfE#HE 87



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

B e R w

88

Development and Training

The Group provides employees at all levels with all-
around technical training, to ensure the employees
proactively equip themselves with skills and thus
attain outstanding performance The Group also
provides the employees with relevant courses and
seminars to enable them to grasp the work-related
knowledge, skills and attitude to keep abreast of the

latest trend.
The training activities include:

(i) organise training courses and seminars on a

regular basis for the employees to attend;

(ii)  distribute training materials on a regular basis to

the employees for them to review;

(iii) arrange external professional training courses for

the employees to attend.

42.7% (2021: 35.2%) in terms of number of staff had
received formal training course during the Reporting
Year. The rest were provided with reading materials,
business updates notes, circulation of study materials
etc., to enhance their knowledge. Of this 42.7%
(2021: 35.2%), 28.1% (2021: 20.0%) were senior
management and the rest of 71.9% (2021: 80.0%)
were other employees. 42.2% (2021: 42.2%) of this
42.7% (2021: 35.2%) were male and 57.8% (2021:
57.8%) were female.
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Training sessions and context of training were
provided to staff varied on the needs of the staff
and varied to each staff based on the relevancy and
needs of the operation. On average, they received
9.8 hours (2021: 9.7 hours) of training. On average,
11.3 hours (2021: 7.4 hours) and 8.7 hours (2021:
11.4 hours) of formal training course were received
by male and female staff respectively. Senior staff
received approximately 14.3 hours (2021: 12.9 hours)
of formal training while the other employees received
approximately 8.2 hours (2021: 9.3 hours) of formal
training. Staff are provided with training sessions
based on the needs of the job to keep current about
policies, procedures, and knowledge.

Labour Standards

The Group has formulated policies to ensure all
employees and job applicants are entitled to fair
opportunity and treatment. The Group strives to
complies with the local laws and regulation
throughout the recruitment and employment process.
The Group prohibits any employment of child labour
under certain laws including the Law of the PRC on
the Protection of Minors* (7 % A 3L A1 B & A% 4
AN & # ¥ ), the Employment of Children
Regulations(Chapter 57B of the Laws of Hong Kong)
and Employment of Young Persons (Industry)
Regulations (Chapter 57C of the Laws of Hong
Kong). The human resources department in each
location is instructed to inspect the identity of the
applicants to ensure any employment of child labour.
The Group has a clear staff manual to prohibits
forced labour and ensure legal and volunteer
employment of all employees. If any violation is
discovered, it will handle it in a serious manner,
depending on the actual situation, it will be handled
in accordance with national and local laws and
regulations.

During the Reporting Year, the Group was not aware
of any material non-compliance with relevant labour
laws and regulations that would have any significant
impact on the Group.
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Operating Practices
Supply Chain Management
The principal business of the Group is in the design

and manufacturing of high-end jewelry and therefore
precious metals are the major resources consumed
by the Group. Our major suppliers are suppliers of
raw materials, in particular, diamonds and gold.
Significant portion of raw materials and processing
materials (in term of dollar value) are sourced in
Hong Kong and these suppliers sources their products
through India or China. During the Reporting
Year, there are approximately 8 (2021: 14) and 13
(2021: 9) major suppliers from Hong Kong and PRC

respectively.

The Group pays much attention to the suppliers.
During supplier selection process, it takes into
account the price, stability of goods as well as
reputation. Afterwards, the department head and
management head will review and approve in order
to ensure the procured equipment and raw materials
come with good quality at reasonable price. In
order to ensure that the diamonds we purchase
are legitimate and come from suppliers who are
in compliance with the Kimberley Process, our
administrative department carries out periodic reviews
of diamond purchase invoices on which the suppliers
undertake the legitimacy of the supplied diamonds.
Apart from product quality, price and delivery time,
we evaluate if the suppliers consider the environmental
and social criteria including the prohibition on the
recruitment of child and forced labour, eliminating
discrimination to employees, providing a safe working
environment, considering if the products provided are
beneficial to environmental protection and fulfilling
the Group’s internal environmental requirement
while minimizing the negative impact to natural

environment, and strictly obeying the law. We also
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conduct annual evaluations on our suppliers. The
Group also reviews the quality of stock or materials
with sophisticated machines from time to time. The
selection and monitoring mechanisms are applicable
to all suppliers. With the above assessment processes,
the Group can minimise potential environmental and

social risks of supply chain.

During the Reporting Year, the Group is not aware
of any major suppliers had any significant impact on
business ethics, environmental protection, human
rights and labour practices, nor did any of them have
any material non-compliances in respect of human

rights issues.

Product Responsibility

Due to the nature of our products, the Group seldom
subjects to recall for safety and health reasons. The
Group always review the quality of the stock with
sophisticated machines from time to time, before,

during and after the production.

Generally, products sold can only be returned if our
products are defective or do not meet our customers’
specification. In general, if our customers request
for sales returns within a week upon receipt of the
products, the products will be delivered back to us.
Our quality control team will check on the quality of
the products and confirm if the returned products are

defective or fail to meet customers’ specifications.

The Group has team of management, including the
sales director, to look after the complaints received
and in case the Group received any complaints, the
Group targets to resolve the issues with customers
within the shortest possible time. During the
Reporting Year, the Group did not receive any
material service-related complaints and there are
significant no cases of product recalls for safety and

health reasons.
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The Group understands the importance of intellectual
property and makes every effort to safeguard and
protect the intellectual property. By the same token,
the Group places much emphasis on the infringement
of other intellectual property rights. During the
Reporting Year, the Group had not been subject to

any material claim in this matter.

We generally own the intellectual property rights in
the design that we create except for designs provided
by our customers an adopted by us. To protect our
intellectual property rights, our designers are required
to sign an agreement to acknowledge that the designs
produced by them during their employment are the
intellectual properties of our Group. For designs
which are based on our recurring customers’ specific
raw design ideas, as an attempt to protect our
recurring customers’ interest, we typically restrain
from producing the same jewellery product for any

other customers or for our sales to general customers.

The Group keeps reminding the employees of and
emphasizing the importance of safeguarding the
security of personal data. When collecting and
processing such data, the Group will comply with the
local laws, regulation and guidelines to protect the
privacy. The Group also has measures designated to
prevent unauthorised access to personal data such as

password and code.
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The Group is not aware of any material
non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations,
including but not limited to the Product Quality Law
of the PRC* (" 3 A [ JL A 2 iy B & %), che
Trademark Law of the PRC* (7 3£ A R 3t A1 B pij 42
%), the Advertising Law of the PRC* GiE VNE:S
FE & 15 1%%), the Cybersecurity Law of the PRC* (H?
N R L3 A B & A k), the Sale of Goods
Ordinance (Cap 26 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the
Trade Descriptions Ordinance (Cap 362 of Laws of
Hong Kong), the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance
(Chapter 486 of the laws of Hong Kong) and the
Trade Marks Ordinance (Cap 559 of the laws of Hong
Kong), that have a significant impact relating to
health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters regard to products and services provided by

the Group during the Reporting Year.

Anti-corruption

The Group recognises the importance of the
ethical conducts and integrity of each director
and all employees in order to maintain a fair,
honest and integrity-based business environment.
Hence, we strictly adhere to all the applicable
laws and regulations, including but not limited
to the Anti-Money Laundering Law of the PRC*
(Hp 2 N R JE N P 88 9%, the Anti-Unfair
Competition Law of the PRC* (% A [ 4t F1 [ Jz
ARIEE 5 F15), the Anti-Money Laundering and
Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance (Chapter
615 of the Laws of Hong Kong), and the Prevention
of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201 of the Laws of
Hong Kong). The Group has formulated a clear code
of conduct in respect of the prevention of bribery,
employees’ interests, conf licts of interest, prevention
of extortion and fraud in the employee handbook.
Besides, the Group has an anti-bribery policy in place
to further provide clear guidelines in respect of anti-

bribery and maintaining honesty and integrity. Such

*  For identification purpose only

*
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policy applies to all directors and employees of the
Group, together with the agents acting on behalf
of the Group. The Group reminds the employees
by internal notice to avoid bribery and acceptance
of advantages as and when appropriate. During the
Reporting Year, the Group organised trainings on
anti-corruption for directors and staff to strengthen
the relevant management on the prevention,
implementation and oversight of anti-corruption
measures in the Group. Furthermore, the Group
encourages its employees to report any suspected
corruption, bribery or misconducts through the
whistle-blowing mechanism established by the Group.
Such reports are kept confidential and the Group has
established a procedure to protect the whistleblowers

from unfair treatment.

During the Reporting Year, the Group was not aware
of any material non-compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that would have any significant
impact on the Group, nor any corruption litigation

against the Group or its employees.
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Community
Community Investment

The Group participates in and promotes various
community and volunteer activities for helping
the needy in the society, promoting environmental
awareness, fostering and facilitating industry
development, with an aim to contribute to the society
and fulfill our corporate social responsibility. During
the Reporting Year, the Group donated a total sum
of approximately HK$175,000 (2021: HK$36,800)
to a number of charity bodies. Health, social culture
and sport will be the focus areas of our community

investment strategy.

In response to the call of the local government,
during the Reporting Year, we participated in the
Guangdong Poverty Alleviation Day (/& 3 % £ i
H) charity activity to contribute to the achievement
of common prosperity and the building up of a
harmonious society. The Group also encouraged staff
to participate in the other industry-related charity
or social welfare activities by providing monetary
sponsorship or pay leave to staff. In appreciation
of our efforts put into community involvement
and dedication to corporate social responsibility,
the Group has received the Outstanding Small and
Medium Enterprise Social Responsibility Award ({4
o 4 2 e AT R during the Reporting

Year.
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Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

PERFECT GROUP INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS
LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Perfect Group International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) set out on pages 103 to 247, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional

judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the

consolidated financial statements of the current period.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit

of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and

in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Allowances of inventories — finished goods

We identified allowances of inventories
for finished goods as a key audit matter
as the Group had significant amount
of finished goods which are jewellery
products as at the end of the reporting
period. These finished goods may be
subject to impairment due to changes
in selling prices. In determining the
allowance to be made on the finished
goods, management considers the current
market conditions, ageing and conditions
of the finished goods, inventory
realisation plan for slow-moving items,
and estimated selling prices, subsequent
sales of similar products and the valuation
of selected inventory items performed by
an independent valuer.

The Group’s finished goods as at
31 December 2022 amounted to
HK$102,358,000 as disclosed in note 21

to the consolidated financial statements.

Our pl‘OC€dLl1'CS in relation to management’s

allowances of inventories for finished goods included:

* Obraining an understanding from the
management about their estimation techniques,
significant assumptions adopted, key inputs and
data used in the assessment;

* Testing the subsequent sales of finished goods
or similar products, if any, on selected finished
goods items;

* Obtaining an independent valuation report on
selected items of finished goods and evaluating
the independent external valuer's competence,
capabilities and objectivity as well as comparing
valuer's results with our own estimation, on a

sample basis;

¢ Discussing with management and evaluating
the impairment assessment by management on
finished goods with no subsequent sales after
the reporting period, if any; and

¢ Assessing the reasonableness of the estimation
of the net realisable value of finished goods
with reference to the current market conditions,
ageing and conditions of the finished goods,
inventory realisation plan for slow-moving items,
and estimated selling prices, and subsequent
sales of similar products.
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Key Audit Matters — continued

Key audit matter

Valuation of investment properties

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We identified the valuation of investment  Our procedures in relation to the valuation of

properties as a key audit matter due to  investment properties included:

the significance of the balance to the
consolidated financial statements as a ¢
whole, combined with the significant
management judgements and estimates
associated with determining the fair

value.

As set out in note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements, the investment
properties are located in the People’s ¢
Republic of China (the “PRC”) with
carrying amount of HK$283,267,000 s
at 31 December 2022 which represents
approximately 33.9% of total assets of
the Group as at 31 December 2022, and
net loss from changes in fair value of the
investment properties of HK$2,367,000
was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the year

then ended.

The Group’s investment properties are
stated at fair value based on the valuation
performed by an independent and
qualified professional valuer. Details of
the valuation techniques and key inputs
used in the valuations are disclosed in
note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements. The valuations have been
arrived at using income approach, which
is dependent on certain key inputs and
assumptions in respect of prevailing
market conditions such as term yield,
reversionary yield and market rental.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those
Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Independent Auditor’s Report

30 S A B Rl

At & B

B v EHHE H A E R AR - HAbE R
55 47 45 A0 VR - (LR 5 0 R
B i e B S O B AR R R

B A S B IR S A B
(RS = I IV i U S
A AT 300 PR 7 A o

HAE T3 H:.lf"j Jﬂlgﬂ flﬂz%ﬂ&*‘%fgﬁ
Wﬁﬂ/\‘m/\ﬁffﬂ%ﬁiﬁéﬁ*ﬁ#f%*

T o BT 0 2% 1Y N L A2 ﬁfﬁjﬁ?&ﬁ%j
%Mﬁf%jﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ"%ﬁ/\ﬂffaﬂk
M AR - 5 4R A H M & B F 7E B R
B B BR A m%ﬁ'ﬁ%%& ZEE - BEM
I NI AT o] 2 TH ZEH i o

% £ W85 R 3 R

g Rl [N
%@EU&%{%“?%WJ

fﬁ%%AWﬁﬁ%H’%Eﬁﬁ?
fi BEEFEKLENRES > WAAEH NN
DUT iR R RS A B R S IE > LR AR
AfFERER G ER RIEERAFE
A 5 B AR U L KR B A
HEWERTE -

E]ﬂ

RHEHA R EE
e o

AR R B A R

2022 Annual Report 4EE#H{E 99



Independent Auditor’s Report

308 > A Sl e R

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated

financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements —
continued

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going

concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance

regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,

including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.

Independent Auditor’s Report

30 S A B Rl

P B Rl A R A B B i R R IS
B - 8

B R RN R g R LR R
VR A A o Sl AR R O
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P o B A B AE S R R R
T AR A S R P A B
B A B B A2 > AME ST & 5
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o HO J Ak PO B IR E o AR
Mo RACEIHBE O ATREE S HE
FRBERR A R o

RF A 5 B B R ) R S O 5
MMAANE (UEEEFRE ULES
W5 R R RN R B B X ) K
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Independent Auditor’s Report

308 > A Sl e R

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements —
continued

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Kwok Lai Sheung.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 March 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

B 7 R i B HL Al 2 i WAL i R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
= 2022 4 12 A 31 HIEFE

2022 2021
20224 20214F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
fif 5 T# T T 7T
(Restated)
(%8 & %))
Revenue I 4 5 374,049 406,967
Cost of goods sold B (259,380) (305,123)
Gross profit E A 114,669 101,844
Other income oAbk A 6 3,469 1,877
Other gains and losses HoAh e 25 K s 48 7 2,885 23,029
(Impairment losses) reversal of impairment T8 {5 ¢ 5 48 8 & T 19
losses under expected credit loss model CCREN 2RO REY R A0 8 (20,661) 1,427
Selling and distribution costs B B K 4y 8 AN (10,773) (10,612)
General and administrative expenses — M B AT BB 32 (49,258) (42,600)
Finance costs B 9 (1,003) (797)
Share of result of an associate A3 4G — T T A v 3 AR (884) 40
Profit before taxation i B Al Vi A 10 38,444 74,208
Taxation i TE 12 (11,029) (35,931)
Profit for the year AF I Y A 27,415 38,277
Other comprehensive income (expense) for 4 A HoAh 2 Tl 45 (B S2)
the year
Items that will not be reclassified to profit ¥ A~ & M #7 4> 5 % 48 4 (1
or loss: HA :
Revaluation of property, plant and EBEREYEZEMNY
equipment upon transfer to investment ERN &
properties
— Surplus on revaluation — EAN BB — 9,610
— Deferred taxation — R 4E Bl IH — (2,403)
— 7,207
Item that may be reclassified subsequently 7% n] BE 5 B /0 $H &2
to profit or loss: B4 W IEE -
Exchange differences arising on i 58I D ST IR A Y
translation of foreign operations ifE 50, 2 %A (38,189) 13,736
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

f 7 R A B LAt 2 v Y i R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 2022 4 12 A 31 HIREE

2022 2021
20224 20214F
NOTES HK$’°000 HK$’000
Fff 5% Tt T T
(Restated)
(%8 & 41])
Other comprehensive (expense) income for  4F A FAth 4> i (BH 32) Wi 25
the year (38,189) 20,943
Total comprehensive (expense) income for — 4F [N 4 [ (BH 32 ) U 2 48 %0
the year (10,774) 59,220
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to: T F N A RE AL AR A R i )
(E14R) -
Owners of the Company EN/NEIE: DN 29,400 38,758
Non-controlling interests IE 22 % WE 25 (1,985) (481)
27,415 38,277
Total comprehensive (expense) income for I 5 A 1 JRE A A 4F 3 A TH]
the year attributable to: (BH 57 ) i 2 48 %A -
Owners of the Company VINUNEIE: F DN (8,776) 59,672
Non-controlling interests JE 5 WL HE 25 (1,998) (452)
(10,774) 59,220
Earnings per share i I 21 14
— Basic N HK cents ¥ il HK cents # Il
2.18 2.87
— Diluted - HK cents # fili HK cents # Il
2.18 2.87
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MBI DL
At 31 December 2022
72022412 H 31 H

2022 2021
20224 20214F
NOTES HK$°000 HK$°000
Fi 5 Tt T
Non-current assets I By G
Property, plant and equipment LENN =Y &L 15 60,115 67,285
Right-of-use assets i R & 16 8,858 11,411
Investment properties g g7/ 17 283,267 300,256
Interest in an associate A — T Bk 7 s Y RE 2 18 — 932
Equity instruments at fair value through 4% 2% “F-{H # A H Ath 2> i
other comprehensive income W 25 2 I HE T A 19 1,043 e
Rental deposits AR % & 232 252
Deferred tax assets % HE B IE K R 20 429 432
353,944 380,568
Current assets Wit W)
Inventories 8 21 152,061 150,583
Properties held for sale FEm &% 22 129,735 158,625
Trade and other receivables B 5 T HoAth Wik IE 23 71,780 105,789
Loan receivable from an associate JRE iz — FH] T 4 N\ A 3K 24 9,343 14,132
Financial assets at fair value through i/ /N KR NG = E R L)
profit or loss 05 25 7,551 18,474
Bank deposits AT FE K 26 63,632 —
Cash and cash equivalents e kBl &% EY 26 48,481 78,935
482,583 526,538
Current liabilities i B & K
Trade and other payables 5 5 B Ho At e A 3K TH 27 60,671 57,268
Contract liabilities ERON=Ki 28 7,398 35,612
Lease liabilities & A 29 1,725 1,818
Taxation payable JRE 55 Bt I 66,576 65,569
Bank loans — amount due within one WATE R — R —4FN
year 7 14 30 20,203 26,391
Bank overdrafts WATE X 26 1,610 e
158,183 186,658
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

BT BN DL R
At 31 December 2022
2022412 H31 H

2022 2021

20224 20214F

NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000

Fff 5% T 0 T T

Net current assets i B 324,400 339,880

Total assets less current liabilities B A WO B A 678,344 720,448
Non-current liabilities FE i E) A&

Lease liabilities HEAaE 29 110 1,994

Provision for long service payments = 1 I B <6 488 A 31 898 898

Deferred tax liabilities i SiE B VE & £ 20 30,432 32,268

31,440 35,160

Net assets BT E 646,904 685,288
Share capital and reserve e A T fids A

Share capital B A 32 4,470 4,500

Reserves it 642,076 679,774

Equity attributable to owners of the A% 0N ) AN E AL HE 25

Company 646,546 684,274

Non-controlling interests I T HE fi 358 1,014

646,904 685,288

BIBE247THEZ A M B M EKHES G
202343 H27 H L vE K B HE R B > N R

The consolidated financial statements on pages 103 to 247

were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of

Directors on 27 March 2023 and are signed on its behalf Y EFHMAQREE:
by:
Kan Kin Kwong Chung Chi Keung
i {6 8B & IR
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
o HH
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2022
= 2022 4 12 A 31 HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARAEANER
Property Share  Statutory Non-
Share Share  Special revaluation  Exchange  options  surplus  Retained controlling
capital  premium reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  profits  Sub-total interest Total
LES WhRE  EE TR
Bk RbiE SAME ERE EARG  GE BREE REEA AR BE 4R
HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS000 HK§000 HKS000 HK$000 HKS'000
Tin Téx T#x Téx  Téx Tiéx  TEx  TEx  TEx  TEx  TiEx
(note a) (note b)
(Wika) (BEED)
Al January 2021 R202F1A1H 4500 93840 (377200 26386 15984 10001 29085 50926 651,602 3651633
Profc (los) fortheyear £ il (5 ) - - - - - - — BT RTS8 U8 827
Revaluation of property, #7541 G £ %
plantand equipment upon R
transfer to investment -
properties KEERR
- Surplus on revaluation  _ F {8 g - - — 9600 - — - — 9600 — 960
- Deferred axarion -EERA - - -y - - - -y -
Exchange differences arising 31 o ¥ 4 2 %5 5 4 ff
on translation of foreign By L%
operations — — — — 13,707 — — — 13,707 29 13,736
Total comprehensive income 4. 1§ 4 T i 5
frpens fortheyar (g3 3 - - - W W = - BT S )
Share options lapsed and & e 253 |
transferred to retained BEEETE
pofs e 33 (K3 - - - - ) = - -
Contribution from non- 3 % it B ik &
controlling sharcholders — — — — — — — — — 1,435 1,43
Dividend (note 13) & (B s) - (7000) - - - - - — (@000 — (000
Transfer L 41 - - - - —~ — 1% (139) - - -
Ac31 December 2021 jhogui 121310 4500 66840 G7720) 33493 91 880 0678 S4TI9 G844 1014 GB5288
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2022

#HE 2022 F 12 A 31 HIL4EE

Attributable to owners of the Company

LYNCE XN
Property Share  Statutory Non-
Share ~ Share  Special revaluation Exchange  options  surplus Retained controlling
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  profits Sub-total interest Total
Ik T e e F R
Bk Tihik CA 1 Gl BEGG REEA it 4 At
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$000 HK$000 HEKS000
Tin F#x Tn FEx  F#x  FEx  FEx  FEx  FEx FEx
(note b)
(M3 b)
At1 January 2022 200251118 4500 66840 (377200 33493 29,691 8850 30,678 547,942 684274 1,014 685288
Profit (loss) for the year ERERER) _ _ _ _ _ _ — 29400 294400 (1985) 27,415
Exchange differences arising ~ J4 4 g 5 £ 75
on translation of foreign EHEL L
operations - - - —  (38,176) - - —  (38,176) (13)  (38,189)
Total comprehensive (expense) 4F. iy 4 fij (F %)
L Wk — - = — 0 @70 099 (0774

Repurchase and cancellation of R[a] J; 2F & it fi

shares (30)  (1,922) — — — — — - (19 - (1,952)

Contribution from non- FEBRRTS

controlling shareholders - - - - - - - - — 1,342 1,342

Dividend (note 13) BB (H &13) - (27,000) - - - - - — (27,000 — (27,000

Transfer 414 _ _ _ _ — 1258 (1,258) - - -

At31 December 2022 20225121310 4470 37918 (37720) 33493 (8485) 8,850 31,936 576,084 646,546 358 646,904

Notes: B 51

(a) Special reserve represents the reserves arising from the business (a) FE R A6 45 1 20154E 6 A 26 B i & Wy I R 2 Bk
transfer of the jewellery business of the shareholders by then to the B35 TS RS & AR 4 N R A 2 6 il SO 2019 4F
Group on 26 June 2015 and acquisition of additional interests in 107 22 H 5 Ji% B Jag 23 ) 9 JFG A B 4 -
subsidiaries on 22 October 2019.

(b) In accordance with relevant laws and regulations for enterprises (b) MR 0 MBI AR PR E A
in the PRC, the PRC subsidiaries are required to transfer 10% A T N i RO TR P B R oL 2 A AR
of their profit after taxation reported in their statutory financial & R K B B BB AR R 2 vk E B ik
statements prepared under relevant accounting principles and JT 2 i 2 W BEAR U R 2 109 T S vk E R
financial regulations applicable to enterprises established in the Lo

PRC to the statutory surplus reserve.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GaBleRia®k

For the year ended 31 December 2022
= 2022 4 12 A 31 HIEFE

2022 2021
20224 20214F
HK$’000 HK$°000
T ¥ o0 AR
Operating activities £ )
Profit before taxation ¥ A Vs A 38,444 74,208
Adjustments for: BLARIHE fF
Share of result of an associate A — B E AR R 884 (40)
Loss (gain) on changes in fair value of BEMENTHEE)
investment properties JiEs 18, Ol %) 2,367 (2,962)
Gain on fair value changes upon R R B Yk
transfer of properties held for sale to BREYERN
investment properties ARRIE L (5,399) (19,127)
Depreciation on property, plant and ) % ik 7 B A 4 #
equipment 2,559 3,090
Depreciation on right-of-use assets i FHE I 1,694 4,313
Dividend income from financial assets at /NS O - WNE = E 40
fair value through profit or loss B R AR
A (711) (932)
Impairment losses (reversal of TE A5 B R AT N Y
impairment losses) under expected W (E B 18 G {E S 48
credit loss model ) 20,661 (1,427)
Interest income 2 A (755) (273)
Interest expenses R B 32 1,003 797
Loss (gain) on changes in fair value of N EFFA R W
financial assets at fair value through MBS EEZ AT EE
profit or loss E) ZEAUES) 318 (307)
Gain on fair value change of derivative MEemTHZ
financial instruments O T (B 5 B 0 £ — (861)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and ke E BN SN
equipment ELiLLE (72) )
Operating cash flows before movements in EEE S S HU i
working capital BEH B R 60,993 56,475
(Increase) decrease in inventories & (8 m) i (2,792) 11,505
Decrease in properties held for sale FrF LY 20D 12,614 25,412
Decrease (increase) in trade and other B G T HoAb JE U FE DL K
receivables and deposits % & W0 (3 m) 15,102 (30,842)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 B H At e A 3K IE S 5,026 5,408
Decrease in contract liabilities & H AE Y (26,287) (43,749)
Cash generated from operations HEmAHE S 64,656 24,209
Tax paid e A B (4,899) (6,763)
Net cash generated from operating activities A6 15 B T A5 I 4 0 A 59,757 17,446
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

A BB ER
For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 2022 4 12 A 31 HIREE

2022 2021
20224 20214F
HK$’000 HK$°000
T T
Investing activities BE B
Placement of bank deposits FHBRIT R (63,632) —
Purchase of financial assets at fair value R /N S [ WA = 4]
through profit or loss W& E (7,347) (26,640)
Purchase of equity instruments at fair value — Ji B % 22 {8 5F A H At
through other comprehensive income A TR 48 2 OHE T A (1,043) —
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  fi§ & ¥ 3 ~ W5 Kk i (636) (1,634)
Proceeds on disposal of financial assets at HEL AT EFTA RGN
fair value through profit or loss B AR A 17,952 8,473
Dividend income from financial assets at /N O R WANE = E N 1]
fair value through profit or loss T BT A Bl A 711 932
Interest received E i A B 755 273
Proceeds on disposal of property, plancand 1 & ¥ % ~ Wi 5 K 3% i
equipment i 18 #K 30 78 28
Proceeds on disposal of derivative financial 3 8 fiT £ 4 @ T H 7 1%
instruments FIH — 1,885
Net cash used in investing activities G B & A (53,162) (16,683)
Financing activities Mg
Dividends paid oA B (27,000) (27,000)
Repayment of bank loans % RAT AR K (6,188) (3,609)
Payments for repurchase of shares e B B 4 B A5 0E (1,952) —
Repayment of lease liabilities HEMEARE (1,725) (4,079)
Interest paid A B (1,003) (797)
Contribution from non-controlling F PR R R G
shareholders 1,342 1,435
New bank loans raised B RAT B — 30,000
Net cash used in financing activities Al O Y BT B 0 (36,520) (4,050)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents B R B Y W
(e (29,931) (3,287)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the A ¥ 1 B & K B & S {H W
year 78,935 81,201
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes A HEE R % %5 ) iy 2 (2,133) 1,021
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the R & K
year, represented by &% EY - W 46,871 78,935
Bank balances and cash SRATE: R LBl & 48,481 78,935
Bank overdrafts RITIE L (1,610) =
46,871 78,935
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Perfect Group International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 16 June 2015 and its shares were listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 4 January 2016. The registered office
of the Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KYI1-1111, Cayman
Islands and the principal place of business of the
Company is at 26/F, YHC Tower, 1 Sheung Yuet
Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong. The Company’s
ultimate holding company is Immaculate Diamonds
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin

Islands (“BVT”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries of the Company
are designing, manufacturing and exporting of fine
jewellery and property development. Particulars of the

subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 38.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HKS$”), which is different
from the functional currency of the Company. The
reason for selecting HK$ as its presentation currency
is because most of the sharcholders of the Company

are located in Hong Kong.

B 3 A e Wik

For the year ended 31 December 2022
= 2022 4 12 A 31 HIEFE

— B & B

PR 8% 40 1 B PR P A R & R (A 2
") k201546 H 16 H 76 B 2 BE & 1
BAL e H 0 R 20164F 1 H4H 1E 5
W oA R w (TB 2R ]) B e
A 2% B B 5E A 9 2 BE /% Cricker Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KYI-1111, Cayman Islands ° 74
2 E R B S G A LRE R
DA 5% S B R P26 o AR 24 R
1 B A& 2 BBE 2N w1 7 — ] E 3 JB8 g L T
5 (T3 J88 B8 Lo B B )) 5T M oz 19 22 W)

Immaculate Diamonds Limited °

AN E By — BB EBR AT - A RF
Wi JB8 2 W A T BESE B A BeEt ~ R R
MO EREL XY EER - ARA
ox ) W 2w A R R MY RE3S

B B Eok DLl o ([ o)) 241
BLA N AR I RE B R - U T
R K 2SN BN EE A LR ZH
JBe SR T A U o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f 7 S 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
U 2022 FF 12 A 31 HIL4FE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the
following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2022 for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual

Framework

W R A 8 B B o e (T
e B 5 e e ) 2 A& T AR

T A A B 5 AR 2 2 A T B B
e A5 1 0 & 5T AR

AR > AEBERER T &
& 51 A g (T W & 50 A &) 36
2B W RS R E S BT A > HOR
20224F1 H1H 8% 2 1% B i 09 4F B 1A
g0 AR R DA AR S BB R

A B O ER BESHE 2 R A
3t 2 B RT A

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond
30 June 2021

Property, Plant and
Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use

Onerous Contracts — Cost
of Fulfilling a Contract

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018 — 2020

Tl W A ) 20214F6 H30H 1% 2
1695 2 B FT A Covid-19+H BF 1 4
)
W ) EDN. §EN & ]
H1695 2 & FT A — FE JH AT
ST 45 3K IH
W g e EIRES A - BAT
H379E 2 B R A G K AR
W R W W5 R e
HE Al 2 5] A 20184 £ 20204 2
4 BE i

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs has
had no material impact on the Group’s financial
positions and performance for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — continued

New and amendments to HKFRSs in
issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new
and amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective:

HKEFRS 17 (including Insurance Contracts!
the October 2020
and February 2022
Amendments to
HKEFRS 17)

Amendments to
HKAS 1 and
HKEFRS Practice

Statement 2

Disclosure of Accounting Policies!

Amendments to Definition of Accounting

HKAS 8 Estimates!
Amendments to Deferred Tax related to Assets and
HKAS 12 Liabilities arising from a Single

Transaction'
Amendments to Classification of Liabilities as
HKAS 1 Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)"
Amendment to Non-current Liabilities with
HKAS 1
Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and

HKAS 28

Covenants®
Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture?

Amendments to

HKEFRS 16

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2023.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to

be determined.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or 1 January

2024.

3 A e B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
= 2022 4 12 A 31 HIEFE

2. BE R A U BB Rk e ([

%g%ﬁ%@%bzgﬂﬁ

A i H 0 R A R Y B 6T A o
St B e o e N R 5 BT AR

7 4 1 3l R B2 A RE R R 5 L A EL
L B2 W RT AU s HE A &

BEwT A

W W A e I
1798 (1 1520204
108 % 20224F2 A 1Y
T Vb o 5 ik 4 e )
F179E 2B FTA)

B s & T E RIS 15
T A s B s 4 e
FIEL T i A SR 2 9
ZAEFT A

s o FhE R S8 uY
ZAEFT A

s g EHHERI 1298

R G &1

it B 2 B

e

ELRE—-R G52

ZEFT AR B M A E AR
R 4 Rl TED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2022
U 2022 FF 12 A 31 HIL4FE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — continued

New and amendments to HKFRSs in
issue but not yet effective — continued

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all the above new and amendments
to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable

future.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Basis of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated financial statements,
information is considered material if such
information is reasonably expected to influence
decisions made by primary users. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap.622).

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
investment properties and certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values, as

explained in accounting policies set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.1 Basis of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements —
continued

Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange for

goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated
using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
takes into account the characteristics of the asset
or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in the consolidated financial statements
is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 16 Leases, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not
fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS

2 or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of
Assets (“"HKAS 367).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2022
U 2022 FF 12 A 31 HIL4FE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.1 Basis of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements —
continued

For financial instruments and investment
properties which are transacted at fair value
and a valuation technique that unobservable
inputs are to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique
is calibrated so that at initial recognition the
results of the valuation technique equals the

transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes,
fair value measurements are categorised into
Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to
the fair value measurement in its entirety, which

are described as follows:

C Level 1 inputs are quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the entity can

access at the measurement date;

* Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than
quoted prices included within Level 1, that
are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for

the asset or liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued
3.2 Significant accounting policies
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is

achieved when the Company:
. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns

from its involvement with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its

returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the

three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the

subsidiary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2022
U 2022 FF 12 A 31 HIL4FE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 Significant accounting policies —
continued

Basis of consolidation — continued

Profit or loss and each item of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners
of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-

controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with the Group’s

accounting policies.

All intragroup assets, liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated

in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries
are presented separately from the Group’s
equity therein, which represent present
ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant

subsidiaries upon liquidation.

118 Perfect Group International Holdings Limited %842 5] [5 B22 fBA5 FRZA 7]

3.

fo 7 B B o A AL e e W
2w EOR - 8

3.2 BB G EHBUR - #

e EE &

1R 4 M A% H A 4 T ik 45 0 H B
JEIAA A AN SRR e 4
Wit Ja > ) 2 2 T WA AR R
A m AN B R A o B
i 72 ot 25 BT 4% B HE R b B

RS -RNC) UNGICEIE 2 E8
TR DS O R B
S 1 B — B

A H N B ] 2 [ B2 5 A B
WP AL EE - BRI -
e A~ B S0 L B U R T AR A IR

TP Wi 2 2 O o BOHE 4 B A 4
I A L v 2 A B 2 0 B B
RIS 7 HE 5 A A R A B K
22 ETE B R i A o) e HL TR
Z B BT A R A



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 Significant accounting policies —
continued

Interest in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence. Significant influence
is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is

not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of an
associate are incorporated in the consolidated
financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. The financial statements of an
associate used for equity accounting purposes
are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and
events in similar circumstances. Under the
equity method, an investment in an associate is
initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associate. Changes in net assets of the
associate other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted for
unless such changes resulted in changes in
ownership interest held by the Group. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate
exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate
(which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2022
U 2022 FF 12 A 31 HIL4FE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 Significant accounting policies —
continued

Interest in an associate — continued

An interest in an associate is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate. On acquisition
of the investment in an associate, any excess
of the cost of the investment over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised
as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess
of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in

which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
that the interest in an associate may be impaired.
When any objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and
fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised is
not allocated to any asset, including goodwill,
that forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss
is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to
the extent that the recoverable amount of the

investment subsequently increases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 Significant accounting policies —
continued

Interest in an associate — continued

When the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate, it is accounted for as
a disposal of entire interest in the investee with
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit
or loss. When the Group retains an interest in
the former associate and the retained interest
is a financial asset within the scope of HKFRS
9, the Group measures the retained interest
at fair value at that date and the fair value is
regarded as its fair value on initial recognition.
The difference between the carrying amount of
the associate and the fair value of any retained
interest and any proceeds from disposing of
the relevant interest in the associate is included
in the determination of the gain or loss on
disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to
that associate on the same basis as would be
required if that associate had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if
a gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by that associate would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit
or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) upon

disposal/partial disposal of the relevant associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2022
U 2022 FF 12 A 31 HIL4FE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 Significant accounting policies —
continued

Interest in an associate — continued

When a group entity transacts with an associate
of the Group, profits and losses resulting from
the transactions with the associate are recognised
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associate

that are not related to the Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred

to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services

that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following

criteria is met:

. the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by
the Group’s performance as the Group

performs;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 A e B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
WA 2022 4 12 A 31 HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3. HoWMBHm LR LT
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EHEa R -
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 R EBUOK - M

3.2 Significant accounting policies —

continued

Revenue from contracts with customers
— continued

. the Group’s performance creates or
enhances an asset that the customer

controls as the Group performs; or

. the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to
date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in
time when the customer obtains control of the

distinct good or service.

Sales of jewellery products

For sales of jewellery products is recognised
when control of the goods has transferred,
being when the goods have been shipped to the
customers’ specific location (upon delivery of

goods).

Sales of properties

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised at
a point in time when the completed property is
transferred to customers, being at the point that
the customers obtains control of the completed
property and the Group has present right to
payment and collection of the consideration is

probable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f 7 S 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
U 2022 FF 12 A 31 HIL4FE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3. &Hal
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL il o
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 HEF G BUR - #

3.2 Significant accounting policies —

continued

Revenue from contracts with customers
— continued

Sales of properties — continued

A contract liability represents the Group’s
obligation to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

P[Opc'l‘l’y management fce income

For property management services, the Group
bills a fixed amount for services provided on a
monthly basis and recognises as revenue in the
amount to which the Group has a right to bill
and that corresponds directly with the value of
performance completed. The Group primarily
generate revenue from property management
services income from properties managed under
lump sum basis, the Group entitles to revenue at
the value of property management services fee
received or receivable.

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or
after the date of initial application of HKFRS
16 or arising from business combinations, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains
a lease based on the definition under HKFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition
date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the
contract are subsequently changed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 A e B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
WA 2022 4 12 A 31 HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3. #H
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL LR og
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

it

Wik e o WAL
B -

3.2 Significant accounting policies —

continued

Leases — continued
The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a

contract

For a contract that contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-
lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-
alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease

components.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. Lease payments on short-term
leases are recognised as expense on a straight-
line basis or another systematic basis over the

lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2022
U 2022 FF 12 A 31 HIL4FE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 Significant accounting policies —
continued

Leases — continued
The Group as a lessee — continued
Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of

the lease liability;

. any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, less any lease

incentives received;

. any initial direct costs incurred by the
Group; and
. an estimate of costs to be incurred by

the Group in dismantling and removing
the underlying assets, restoring the site
on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required

by the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease

liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

3.2 Significant accounting policies —
continued

Leases — continued
The Group as a lessee — continued
Right-of-use assets — continued

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful

life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a
separate line item on the consolidated statement

of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at
fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-

use assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2022
U 2022 FF 12 A 31 HIL4FE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 Significant accounting policies —

continued

Leases — continued
The Group as a lessee — continued
Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid
at that date. In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not

readily determinable.

The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any

lease incentives receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities
are adjusted by interest accretion and lease

payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and
makes a corresponding adjustment to the related
right-of-use assets) whenever the lease term as
changed or there is a change in the assessment
of exercise of a purchase option, in which case
the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a

revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of

financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 A e B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
WA 2022 4 12 A 31 HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3. #H
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL LR og
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

it

Wik e o WAL
B -

3.2 Significant accounting policies —

continued

Leases — continued
The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are
classified as finance or operating leases.
Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee,
the contract is classified as a finance lease. All

other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset, and
such costs are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term except for
investment properties measured under fair value

model.

Rental income derived from the Group’s
ordinary course of business is presented as

revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f 7 S 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
U 2022 FF 12 A 31 HIL4FE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 Significant accounting policies —
continued

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of
each individual group entity, transactions in
currencies other than the functional currency
of the entity (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates
of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the retranslation
of monetary items, are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise, except
for exchange differences on monetary items
receivable from or payable to a foreign operation
for which settlement is neither planned nor
likely to occur (therefore forming part of the
net investment in the foreign operation), which
are recognised initially in other comprehensive
income and reclassified from equity to profit
or loss on disposal or partial disposal of the
Group’s interest in an associate.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group’s operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$)
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates
for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case
the exchange rates at the date of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under exchange reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 Significant accounting policies —
continued

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. For properties under development
for which revenue is recognised over time, the
Group ceases to capitalise borrowing costs as
soon as the properties are ready for the Group’s

intended sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding
after the related asset is ready for its intended use
or sale is included in the general borrowing pool
for calculation of capitalisation rate on general
borrowings. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for

capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are

incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2022
U 2022 FF 12 A 31 HIL4FE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 Significant accounting policies —
continued

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until
there is reasonable assurance that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them

and that the grants will be received.

Government grants related to income that are
receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become
receivable. Such grants are presented under

“other income”.

Employee benefits
Retirement benefits costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit
schemes and Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service

entitling them to the contributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 A e B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
WA 2022 4 12 A 31 HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3. HoWMBHm LR LT
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EHEa R -
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 R EBUOK - M

3.2 Significant accounting policies —

continued
Employee benefits — continued

Short-term and other long-term employee

benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised
at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid as and when employees
rendered the services. All short-term employee
benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the

inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries, annual
leave and sick leave) after deducting any amount

already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-
term employee benefits are measured at the
present value of the estimated future cash
outflows expected to be made by the Group in
respect of services provided by employees up to
the reporting date. Any changes in the liabilities’
carrying amounts resulting from service cost,
interest and remeasurements are recognised in
profit or loss except to the extent that another
HKFRS requires or permits their inclusion in

the cost of an asset.

1 B 4 Al - 4
H K] R A = A 1# A #5 F

R B AR A R B PR IR B
B AL TE w1 A S A AR A B R B B 4
RS o BT A 1 IR B AR A T RR
T B S0 BR IR I3 — T A T S R
R N L e R R
MNE AR - RIAE R o

TE 1 BR & 88 STAT 9 4 AT e JE A%
¥ B SR (B TE &
B SRR Do R ) ERE AL o

WAt = 0 4R B A A e R A B
A SE Bt IE B AR Ol BT
& It e B5 38 1515 S AT 89 Al 5F R
B B R BUE FE R o RS
A~ FLE R E R EELENA
1 M R A9 AT o 2 ) Y 1R 45 e
B o M ) — JE A s I R
HE B 7o I O REACE B ORR
A 1 LB B b -

2022 Annual Report 4EFE#A 133



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f 7 S 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
U 2022 FF 12 A 31 HIL4FE

fo 7 B B o A AL e e W
2w EOR - 8

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 BB G EHBUR - #

3.2 Significant accounting policies —

continued
Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to directors and employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to
employees and others providing similar services
are measured at the fair value of the equity

instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the grant date without
taking into consideration all non-market
vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will
eventually vest, with a corresponding increase
in equity (share options reserve). At the end
of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest based on assessment of all
relevant non-market vesting conditions. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the
share options reserve. When the share options
are cancelled after the vesting date or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve

will be transferred to retained profits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 Significant accounting policies —
continued

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the

tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit before taxation because of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of

the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit

nor the accounting profit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2022
U 2022 FF 12 A 31 HIL4FE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 Significant accounting policies —
continued

Taxation — continued

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be

recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the
asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted

by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets

and liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 Significant accounting policies —
continued

Taxation — continued

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the carrying amounts of
such properties are presumed to be recovered
entirely through sale, unless the presumption
is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when
the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale, except for
frechold land, which is always presumed to be

recovered entirely through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
for leasing transactions in which the Group
recognises the right-of-use assets and the related
lease liabilities, the Group first determines
whether the tax deductions are attributable to

the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income taxes levied to
the same taxable entity by the same taxation

authority.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

F 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2022
U 2022 FF 12 A 31 HIL4FE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 Significant accounting policies —
continued

Taxation — continued

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity

respectively.

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax
treatments, the Group considers whether it is
probable that the relevant tax authority will
accept the uncertain tax treatment used, or
proposed to be use by individual group entities
in their income tax filings. If it is probable,
the current and deferred taxes are determined
consistently with the tax treatment in the income
tax filings. If it is not probable that the relevant
taxation authority will accept an uncertain
tax treatment, the effect of each uncertainty is
reflected by using either the most likely amount

or the expected value.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible
assets that are held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes. Property, plant and equipment are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated

impairment losses, if any.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 A e B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
WA 2022 4 12 A 31 HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3. HoWMBHm LR LT
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EHEa R -
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 R EBUOK - M

3.2 Significant accounting policies —

continued

Property, plant and equipment —
continued

If a property becomes an investment property
because its use has changed as evidenced by end
of owner-occupation, any difference between the
carrying amount and the fair value of that item
(including the relevant leaschold land classified
as right-of-use assets) at the date of transfer is
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in property revaluation reserve.
On the subsequent sale or retirement of the
property, the relevant revaluation reserve will be

transferred directly to retained profits.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off
the cost of assets less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a

prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is

recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2022
U 2022 FF 12 A 31 HIL4FE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 Significant accounting policies —
continued

Investment properties

Investment pI‘OpCI‘tiCS are properties held to earn

rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties also include leased
properties which are being recognised as right-
of-use assets and subleased by the Group under

operating leases.

Investment properties are initially measured
at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at fair value,
adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accrued
operating lease income. Gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the

period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal.
A leased property which is recognised as a
right-of-use asset is derecognised if the Group
as intermediate lessor classifies the sublease
as a finance lease. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in the profit or loss in the period in which the

property is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 A e B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
WA 2022 4 12 A 31 HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3. HoWMBHm LR LT
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EHEa R -
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 R EBUOK - M

3.2 Significant accounting policies —

continued

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets to
determine whether there is any indication that
these assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the relevant asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment

loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount individually, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-

generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to the relevant
cash-generating unit when a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be established,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can
be established. The recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit or group
of cash-generating units to which the corporate
asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying
amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or

group of cash-generating units.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 2022 4 12 A 31 HIREE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 Significant accounting policies —
continued

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets —
continued

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) for which the estimates of

future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 A e B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
WA 2022 4 12 A 31 HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3. HoWMBHm LR LT
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EHEa R -
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 R EBUOK - M

3.2 Significant accounting policies —

continued

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets —
continued

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. For corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets which cannot
be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of
cash-generating units, including the carrying
amounts of the corporate assets or portion of
corporate assets allocated to that group of cash-
generating units, with the recoverable amount of
the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the
other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the
group of cash-generating units. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the
highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss
that would otherwise have been allocated to the
asset is allocated pro-rata to the other assets of
the unit or the group of cash-generating units.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in

profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2022
U 2022 FF 12 A 31 HIL4FE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3. oW BH LR RE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EHEa R -
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 BB G EHBUR - #

3.2 Significant accounting policies —

continued

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets —
continued

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-
generating unit or a group of cash-generating
units) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
(or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-
generating units) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in

profit or loss.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale which are intended to be
sold are classified as current assets. Except for
the leasehold land element which is measured at
cost model in accordance with the accounting
policies of right-of-use assets, properties held
for sale are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on a specific
identification basis including allocation of the
related development expenditure incurred and
where appropriate, borrowing costs capitalised.
Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for the properties less estimated cost
to completion and costs necessary to make the
sales. Costs necessary to make the sale include
incremental costs directly attributable to the
sale and non-incremental costs which the Group

must incur to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 Significant accounting policies —
continued

Properties held for sale — continued

The Group transfers a property from properties
held for sales to investment property when there
is a change in use to hold the property to earn
rentals or/and for capital appreciation rather
than for sale in the ordinary course of business,
which is evidenced by the inception of an
operating lease to another party. Any difference
between the fair value of the property at the date
of transfer and its previous carrying amounts is

recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Costs of inventories are
determined on a first-in, first-out method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the
sale. Costs necessary to make the sale include
incremental costs directly attributable to the
sale and non-incremental costs which the Group

must incur to make the sale.

Provisions and contingent liablities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that the
Group will be required to settle that obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the

amount of the obligation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f 7 S 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
U 2022 FF 12 A 31 HIL4FE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3. oW BH LR RE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EHEa R -
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 BB G EHBUR - #

3.2 Significant accounting policies —
continued

B S sk B -

Provisions and contingent liablities —
continued
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its carrying amount is the present value of those #R)

The amount recognised as a provision is the
best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the i & >
reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
When a provision is measured using the cash

flows estimated to settle the present obligation,

cash flows (when the effect of the time value of

money is material).
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A contingent liability is a possible obligation

that arises from past events and whose existence

will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the
Group. It can also be a present obligation arising
from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that an outflow of economic
resources will be required to settle the obligation
or the amount of obligation cannot be measured

reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but
is disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that the
outflow is probable, it will then be recognised
as a provision in the consolidated financial
statements in the reporting period in which the

change in probability occurs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 Significant accounting policies —
continued

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the
consolidated statement of financial position
include cash, which comprises cash on hand,
bank balances and demand deposits that are
readily convertible to a known amount of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk
changes in value. Cash equivalents are held
for the purpose of meeting short-term cash
commitments rather than for investment or other
purposes. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are included as a component
of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of
the consolidated statement of cash flows. Such
overdrafts are presented as bank overdrafts in

the consolidated statement of financial position.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when the Group becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the

market place.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2022
U 2022 FF 12 A 31 HIL4FE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 Significant accounting policies —
continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value except for trade
receivables arising from contracts with customers
which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (“HKFRS 157). Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit and loss (“FVTPL”))
are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL

are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the

net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 A e B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
WA 2022 4 12 A 31 HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3. HoWMBHm LR LT
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EHEa R -
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 Significant accounting policies — 3.2 HEFFBUOR -
continued
Financial instruments — continued A B T H - 48
Financial assets BB E
Classification and subsequent measurement of M EE SR EER &
financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following TF A AR A0 B & = H AR
conditions are subsequently measured at 2 48 58 A R

amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business e JAHBAIWEA A B &S
model whose objective is to collect M EB A RNFFE 2 W H
contractual cash flows; and HE M

. the contractual terms give rise on specified o BRIMHOE BN R E B E
dates to cash flows that are solely payments A AR S SO AR A KR B
of principal and interest on the principal EASHEANEWB SR E -

amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently R SRS O < ) N /N
measured at FVTPL, except that at initial B wH A8t 5 & > MR D 46 B AR
recognition of a financial asset the Group may W85 o R 4R T AT RE AN AT L
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes B b, 728 43 A I At & 1T R A5 2 90 i
in fair value of an equity investment in other HMRENSTHEHZHELEZET > i
comprehensive income if that equity investment ZERALEN FFEHEE - 5
is neither held for trading nor contingent I W B Ty s A s BB i T R
consideration recognised by an acquirer in W3R EH LB EH G
a business combination to which HKFRS 3 F o e 58 2 AR AR o

Business Combination applies.
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F 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2022
U 2022 FF 12 A 31 HIL4FE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 Significant accounting policies —
continued

Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets — continued

Classification and subsequent measurement of

financial assets — continued

A financial asset is held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the

purpose of selling in the near term; or

. on initial recognition it is a part of
a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of

short-term profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and

effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate
a financial asset that are required to be measured
at the amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) as measured
at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly

reduces an accounting mismatch.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 R EBUOK - M

3.2 Significant accounting policies —

continued

Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets — continued

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income
is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired. For
financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset from the
next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves
so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit-

impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f 7 S 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
U 2022 FF 12 A 31 HIL4FE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3. oW BH LR RE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EHEa R -
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 BB G EHBUR - #

3.2 Significant accounting policies —

continued

Financial instruments — continued S =

Financial assets — continued BB B -

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI S(EDEl K (/N SR (= i NS =W o 1}
Wt 2 I HE T A

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI
are subsequently measured at fair value with
gains and losses arising from changes in fair
value recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the assets revaluation
reserve; and are not subject to impairment
assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will not
be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the
equity investments, and will be transferred to

retained profits.

Dividends from these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss
when the Group’s right to receive the dividends
is established, unless the dividends clearly
represent a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Dividends are included in the “other

income” line item in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 Significant accounting policies —
continued

Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets — continued
Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI
are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period,
with any fair value gains or losses recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included in
the “other gains and losses” line item. Dividend
and interest earned on the financial asset are

included in the “other income” line item.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2022
U 2022 FF 12 A 31 HIL4FE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3. oW BH LR RE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EHEa R -
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 BB G EHBUR - #

3.2 Significant accounting policies —

continued
Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets subject to

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment
under expected credit loss (‘ECL”) model on
financial assets (including trade and other
receivables, loan receivable from an associate,
rental deposits, bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents) which are subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of
ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect

changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result
from all possible default events over the expected
life of the relevant instrument. In contrast,
12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result
from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date. Assessment are
done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors, general economic conditions and
an assessment of both the current conditions
at the reporting date as well as the forecast of

future conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

3.2 Significant accounting policies —
continued

Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 —

continued

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for

trade receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures
the loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless

there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, in which case the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment
of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood
or risk of a default occurring since initial

recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2022
U 2022 FF 12 A 31 HIL4FE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 Significant accounting policies —
continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets subject to

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 —

continued

(i)

156 Perfect Group International Holdings Limited %845 5] [5 [22 fBA5 FRZA 7]

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk
of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue

cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is
taken into account when assessing whether

credit risk has increased significantly:

. an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available) or

internal credit rating;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 Significant accounting policies —
continued

Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 —

continued

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk —

continued

. significant deterioration in external
market indicators of credit risk, e.g.
a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

*  existing or forecast adverse changes
in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause
a significant decrease in the debtor’s

ability to meet its debt obligations;

. an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results
of the debtor; or

. an actual or expected significant
adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in
the debtor’s ability to meet its debt

obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

F 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2022
U 2022 FF 12 A 31 HIL4FE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 Significant accounting policies —
continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets subject to

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 —

continued

(i)
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Significant increase in credit risk —

continued

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates

otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the
effectiveness of the criteria used to identify
whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase
in credit risk before the amount becomes

past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 Significant accounting policies —
continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets subject to

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 —

continued

(ii)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the
Group considers an event of default occurs
when information developed internally or
obtained from external sources indicates
that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full

(without taking into account any collaterals

held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group
considers that default has occurred when
a financial asset is more than 90 days past
due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate
that a more lagging default criterion is

more appropriate.

3 A e B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
WA 2022 4 12 A 31 HILFE

B 7 T B e o A AL R [ W
E RHEOR - 8

3.2 R EBUOK - M

Mg TH - 4
B E -

AR 4% 7 s 1 5 ik o 4 B 5 9 5%
VE 80 (E R Al 1 B 55 A W (E

(i) % %) FE R

NS R e YT
A B T RE By o 0 A R A AR B
SR AT 1 RS o B
NAR 7T BE 2 3% 1) o HE N (&2
TH R 5 H) 7 HOR 5 ORRF &
7 4R T i R AAT: AT R A )
HI 38 A A A o

0 G bl AR o AT o i B
W& Moo H - A%
MRS EEY > BEA
A A KA B
Fr iy & R} 0 R R &
# R L A > I 55 R

"E}HAH’ o

2022 Annual Report 4EFE#A 159



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f 7 S 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
U 2022 FF 12 A 31 HIL4FE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 Significant accounting policies —
continued

Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 —

continued
(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when
one or more events of default that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset
is credit-impaired includes observable data

about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the

issuer or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default

or past due event;

(¢) the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise

consider;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 Significant accounting policies —
continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets subject to

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 —

continued

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets —

(iv)

continued

(d) it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or

other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market
for that financial asset because of
financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset
when there is information indicating that
the counterparty is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when
the counterparty has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade
receivables, when the amounts are over
three years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may
still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group’s recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent

recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2022
U 2022 FF 12 A 31 HIL4FE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 Significant accounting policies —
continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets subject to

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 —

continued

v)

162 Perfect Group International Holdings Limited %842 5] [5B[4 PR 7]

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function
of the probability of default, loss given
default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at
default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based
on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount
that is determined with the respective
risks of default occurring as the weights.
The Group uses a practical expedient in
estimating ECL on trade receivables using a
provision matrix taking into consideration
historical credit loss experience and
forward looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
In addition, certain significant balances
of trade receivables and credit-impaired

debrtors are assessed for ECL individually.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 Significant accounting policies —
continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets subject to

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 —

continued

v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL —

continued

Generally, the ECL is the difference
between all contractual cash flows that
are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial

recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial
asset unless the financial asset is credit-
impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the

financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade
receivables where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss

allowance account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2022
U 2022 FF 12 A 31 HIL4FE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3. oW BH LR RE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EHEa R -
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 BB G EHBUR - #

3.2 Significant accounting policies —

continued

Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets — continued
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another

entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured
at amortised cost, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is

recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity
instcrument which the Group has elected on
initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated
in the assets revaluation reserve will not be
reclassified to profit or loss, but transferred to

retained profits.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial

liability and an equity instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 A e B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
WA 2022 4 12 A 31 HILFE

B 7 T B e o A AL R [ W
E RHEOR - 8

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 R EBUOK - M

3.2 Significant accounting policies —

continued

Financial instruments — continued
Financial liabilities and equity — continued
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the group entities are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct

issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted directly
in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity

instruments.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other
payables, bank loans and bank overdrafts are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using

the effective interest method.

Derecognition/modification of financial
liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in

profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2022
U 2022 FF 12 A 31 HIL4FE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3. oW BH LR RE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EHEa R -
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 BB G EHBUR - #

3.2 Significant accounting policies —

continued
Financial instruments — continued

Derecognition/modification of financial

liabilities — continued

Changes in the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows as a result of interest rate

benchmark reform

For changes in the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows of a financial asset or
financial liability to which the amortised cost
measurement applies as a result of interest
rate benchmark reform, the Group applies the
practical expedient to account for these changes
by updating the effective interest rate, such
change in effective interest rate normally has no
significant effect on the carrying amount of the

relevant financial asset or financial liability.

A change in the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows is required by interest
rate benchmark reform if and only if, both these

conditions are met:

. the change is necessary as a direct
consequence of interest rate benchmark

reform; and

o the new basis for determining the
contractual cash flows is economically
equivalent to the previous basis (i.e. the

basis immediately preceding the change).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 Significant accounting policies —
continued

Financial instruments — continued

Derecognition/modification of financial

liabilities — continued
Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value
at the date when derivative contracts are entered
into and are subsequently remeasured to their
fair value at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or

loss.

Offsetting a financial asset and a financial
liability

A financial asset and a financial liability are
offset and the net amount presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position
when, and only when, the Group currently has a
legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts; and intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the

liability simultaneously.

3 A e B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2022
U 2022 FF 12 A 31 HIL4FE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING 4, K & 5 A B & Ah 5HA B B

JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Critical judgements in applying
accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising
from investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the directors of the Company
have reviewed the Group’s investment property
portfolios and concluded that the Group’s investment
properties are held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time. Therefore, in determining
the deferred taxation on investment properties, the
directors of the Company have determined that the
presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties measured using the fair value model are
recovered entirely through sale is rebutted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - continued

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that
may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year.

Allowances of inventories for finished goods

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value of inventories
is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimation costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal. In determining the allowance to be made
on the finished goods, management considers
the current market conditions, estimated selling
prices, subsequent sales of similar products and the
valuation of selected inventory items performed by
an independent professional valuer. Allowances on
inventories can change significantly as a result of
changes in these factors. The Group will reassess the
estimation at the end of each year. As at 31 December
2022, the carrying amount of finished goods is
HK$102,358,000 (2021: HK$104,195,000).

3 A e B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2022
U 2022 FF 12 A 31 HIL4FE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING 4, K & 5 A B & Ah 5HA B B

JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - continued

Key sources of estimation uncertainty —
continued

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based
on the valuation performed by independent and
qualified professional valuer. The determination of
the fair value involves certain assumptions of market

conditions which are set out in note 17.

In relying on the valuation report, the directors of
the Company have exercised their judgement and are
satisfied that the method of valuation is reflective
of the current market conditions. The Group has
a designated team to determine the appropriate
valuation techniques and key inputs for fair value
measurements of the Group’s investment properties.
At the end of each reporting period, the management
works closely with the independent firm of qualified
professional property valuer to establish and
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and
key inputs for fair value measurements. Where there
is a material change in the fair value of the assets, the
causes of the fluctuations will be reported to directors
of the Company. Information about the valuation
techniques and key inputs used in determining the
fair value of the Group’s investment properties is

disclosed in note 17.

As at 31 December 2022, the fair value of
investment properties was HK$283,267,000 (2021:
HK$300,256,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - continued

Key sources of estimation uncertainty —
continued

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

Trade receivables with significant balances and credit-

impaired are assessed for ECL individually.

In addition, the Group uses practical expedient
in estimating ECL on trade receivables which
are not assessed individually using a provision
matrix. The provision rates are based on aging of
debtors as groupings of various debtors taking into
consideration the Group’s historical default rates and
forward-looking information that is reasonable and
supportable available without undue costs or effort. At
every reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-

looking information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL and the
Group’s trade receivables are disclosed in notes 41 and

23 respectively.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount
of trade receivables was HK$56,625,000,
net of allowance for expected credit losses
of HK$24,092,000 (2021: HK$87,248,000,
net of allowance for expected credit losses of
HK$7,204,000).

3 A e B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2022
U 2022 FF 12 A 31 HIL4FE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

Analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as

W i M o1 #8E R

LATR 7% A 58 B 4 A U 2 2 93 AT

follows:

2022 2021
20224 20214F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T 0 T T
(Restated)
(%8 & 7))

Revenue recognised at a point in time e — IR B T R i AR
Sales of jewellery products B 8 2R E 326,575 338,525
Sales of properties Y 2 25,042 48,683

Revenue recognised over time Wi 1R ] R 4

Property management fee income (note) LES-8: -3/ QNI 6,519 5,426
Revenue from contracts with customers HL & F )45 #0055 358,136 392,634
Rental income el A 15,913 14,333
374,049 406,967

Note: In the current year, property management income which
is derived from the Group’s ordinary course of business
is presented as revenue. Accordingly, the property
management income included in other income in prior
year has been reclassified to revenue and the related costs
incurred directly in the generation of such income included
in general and administrative expenses in prior year has
been reclassified to cost of goods sold, to be consistent with

current year’s presentation.

Sales of properties, property management fee income
and rental income are derived from property business
segment, while sales of jewellery products is derived
from jewellery business segment. Details of the

segment information are set out in note 5.

Sales of jewellery products

Revenue from sales of jewellery products is recognised
when control of the goods has transferred, being when
the goods have been shipped to the customers’ specific

location (upon delivery of goods).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT

INFORMATION - continued
Sales of properties

For contracts entered into with customers on sales
of properties, the relevant properties specified in the
contracts are not based on customer’s specifications.
Revenue from sales of properties is therefore
recognised at a point in time when the property is
transferred to customers, being at the point that
the customer obtains the control of the completed
property and the Group has present right to payment

and collection of the consideration is probable.

All of the Group’s sales contracts for jewellery
products and properties have an original expected
duration of one year or less. As permitted under
HKEFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to the
remaining performance obligation for these contracts

is not disclosed.

(a) Segment revenue and results

Information reported to the executive directors
of the Company, being the chief operating
decision maker (“CODM?”), for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on the revenues and profits

from different types of business divisions.

3 A e B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
= 2022 4 12 A 31 HIEFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 2022 4 12 A 31 HIREE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION - continued

Sales of properties — continued
(a) Segment revenue and results — continued

The Group’s operating and reportable segments
under HKFRS 8 Operating Segments are as

follows:

(i) Manufacturing and sales of jewellery
products business represents manufacturing
and sales of jewellery products including
rings, earrings, pendants, bangles,
necklaces and bracelets (“Jewellery

business”); and

(ii) Property business represents the investment
in development, sales and rental of
properties for the Group’s integrated and
comprehensive industry park project and
property management business (“Property

business”).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION - continued

Sales of properties — continued

(a) Segment revenue and results — continued

The following is an analysis of the Group’s

3 A e B

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE 2022 4£ 12 H 31 AIL&EE

5. Wodk Koy W& R - B

Wk o - M
(a) /\ :‘LB q&fﬂl&%nﬁ C ;»E
B S 06 T 4 4 4

revenue and results by operating and reportable A AR B AR N SE A A
segment:
For the year ended 31 December 2022 B E 202241231 H 1L 4
Jewellery Property
business business  Consolidated
k9 2 0 LUE -+ %71 R
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt Tt Tt
Segment revenue i 326,575 47,474 374,049
Segment results A% 43,741 19,949 63,690
Impairment losses under ECL T8 1 15 B G HE A Y
model ERCAEN F (20,661)
Unallocated corporate income A 43 it 4> 3£ Y A 373
Unallocated corporate expenses A< 43 Fii i 2 B 3¢ (3,071)
Unallocated finance costs 74 i B %% 2 A (1,003)
Share of result of an associate 434G — T W 4 2
E (884)
Profit before taxation 5% B 1T I8 A 38,444
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f 7 S 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 2022 4 12 A 31 HIREE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION - continued

Sales of properties — continued
(a) Segment revenue and results — continued

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Restated)

5. Wik o aBE R - 48

Y3 88— A
@) 4 HRU o M 2E 4R - A
B E 2021412 H31H 1E4F B (K &

51)

Jewellery Property
business business Consolidated
EEY EE gy
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T oo T 0
Segment revenue 73 B i 338,525 68,442 406,967
Segment results A% 27,694 48,622 76,316

Reversal of impairment losses TH A5 6 e 1A

under ECL model LU ORGSR IEY CFi=
$ [ 1,427
Unallocated corporate income E e SN 734
Unallocated corporate expenses 7 73 Bl 18 2 B 3 (3,512)
Unallocated finance costs x4y H B 5 2 (797)
Share of result of an associate o3 Al — [ 2 A )
E¥5 40
Profit before taxation % BT i ) 74,208

The accounting policies of the operating
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting

policies described in note 3.

Segment results represent the profit earned
or loss incurred by each segment and hence is
arrived at without allocation of (impairment
losses) reversal of impairment losses under
ECL model, share of result of an associate, and
certain unallocated income and expenses and
finance costs. This is the measure reported to
the CODM of the Company, for the purposes of
resources allocation and assessment of segment

performance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION - continued

Sales of properties — continued

(a) Segment revenue and results — continued

The comparative figures of the segment revenue

and results were re-presented to conform with

current year’s presentation.

(b) Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s

segment assets and segment liabilities by

3 A e B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
WA 2022 4 12 A 31 HILFE

5. Wodk Koy W& R - B

ES
AL S ET

T T2 L T =
1 K AE I 2 2507 RS -

(b) 7 #BEE KRR

5 2y 4 KA B nT i i E B )
AW I TR E oy WA AR )

operating and reportable segment: Hr -
At 31 December 2022 72022412 H31H
Jewellery Property
business business  Consolidated
IR LUE ¥ %71 o
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T ¥ o0 T ¥ 0 T 0
Assets & E
Segment assets 4B E E 328,547 494,501 823,048
Interest in an associate A — TH W )
F) HE 25 —
Equity instruments at e P EFEA
FVTOCI HC At 4 T R R
2T R 1,043
Deferred tax assets I 4t Bl JH & = 429
Unallocated corporate assets &y e Ak 2E
B 12,007
Consolidated total assets A EEME 836,527
Liabilities A
Segment liabilities o =K 68,170 23,411 91,581
Taxation payable JRE 44 Bi T 66,576
Deferred tax liabilities A JE Bl IH A 30,432
Unallocated corporate 43 B A 26 A fH
liabilities 1,034
Consolidated total liabilities A AEAE 189,623
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 2022 4 12 A 31 HIREE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT

INFORMATION - continued

Sales of properties — continued

(b) Segment assets and liabilities — continued

Yook 85 — M
(b) 7 FREE KA -

5. Wik o aBE R - 48

At 31 December 2021 R20214£12H31H
Jewellery Property
business business Consolidated
HEEW LUEE %7 A
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T+ T Tt T
Assets BE
Segment assets oA E 359,704 542,652 902,356
Interest in an associate 7 — [k A A
1 HE 45 932
Deferred tax assets & fE B JH & R 432
Unallocated corporate assets oA 2
B 3,386
Consolidated total assets A BEMHE 907,106
Liabilities AR
Segment liabilities 73 BB A 72,353 50,372 122,725
Taxation payable JRE 44 i T 65,569
Deferred tax liabilities R A B IH A 32,268
Unallocated corporate X Be A 2 A fE
liabilities 1,256
Consolidated total liabilities A A 221,818
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 A e B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
WA 2022 4 12 A 31 HILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5. W &R E B - 8
INFORMATION - continued
Sales of properties — continued W E - M
(b) Segment assets and liabilities — continued (b) #EE & ERE -

For the purposes of monitoring segment F o =3 R T8 s B 1

performances and allocating resources between fid &R M 5

segments:

— all assets are allocated to operating —  BRTA — [ BB A m) A BE A
segments other than interest in an 2N S w A H At 4 T g
associate, equity instruments at FVTOCI, fa 2 EAE T H - 8 2 B IE &
deferred tax assets, and unallocated EMXESBEAEEEIN - I
corporate assets. ﬁgéﬁjﬁl\@aﬁgg’%ﬁgﬁ °

— all liabilities are allocated to operating — BREHMBIE - EEBIEHA
segments other than taxation payable, BRREAAEAGES -
deferred tax liabilities and unallocated HABEY S E 88555 -

corporate liabilities.

The comparative figures of segment liabilities 4 A KO OB TH 2 HE R B
and taxation payable were re-presented to FETUEIUMSGEAEE L
conform with current year’s presentation. 25755 .

2022 Annual Report 4EFE#A 179



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2022
U 2022 FF 12 A 31 HIL4FE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5. Wi Kk iE B - 8
INFORMATION - continued
Sales of properties — continued Yk - M

(b) 7 ERE E K AR -
Al i AL

LSRN - RN N S R A K-S Y
5,/ 4 8 M B K W 3 M B )

(b) Segment assets and liabilities — continued
Geographical information

Revenue from external customers, based on

location of delivery/transfer to customers and

location of property is as follows: R
2022 2021
20224 20214F
HK$’°000 HK$’000
T Tt
(Restated)
(B E 5

Revenue I i

— Hong Kong — i 227,483 180,527
— Dubai — 68,045 68,122
— PRC — 78,521 158,318
374,049 406,967

b A 45 0l 25 10% 8L DA IR P

Revenue from customers which accounts for

10% or more of the Group’s revenue is as [ (I N
follows:
2022 2021
20224 20214F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T 0 T T
Customer A EFA N/A A i |l * 84,461
Customer B #FB 52,579 47,444
* Revenue from the customer is less than 10% of the * KU & A A AL AR SR A

total revenue of the Group during the year.
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3 A e B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
WA 2022 4 12 A 31 HILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5. W &R E B - 8
INFORMATION - continued
Sales of properties — continued W E - M
(b) Segment assets and liabilities — continued (b) #EE & ERE -
Geographical information — continued M 7 & — A
An analysis of the Group’s non-current assets A 45 IF R B & (R — [
(other than interest in an associate, equity A EHHE B > %A P EFFA HoAb
instruments at FVTOCI and deferred tax assets) AT 2 B RE T OH K AR St Bl
by their physical geographical location is as TH & B BR AN % R B B A B
follows: F TR
2022 2021
20224 20214F
HK$’000 HK$°000
T ¥t T o
PRC H 351,155 377,960
Hong Kong 7 s 853 1,224
Dubai HFE 464 20
352,472 379,204
6. OTHER INCOME 6. H iU A
2022 2021
20224 20214F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# T T
(Restated)
(%8 1 51))
Dividend income from financial assets at /N [ I WNE = U 3
FVTPL T AR R Bl A 711 932
Interest income Bl A ) 755 273
Gain on disposal of property, plant and )2~ RS B R U AR
equipment 72 4
Government grant BT 44 B 740 —
Scrap sales JBE E W) B — 14
Others H A 1,191 654
3,469 1,877

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Group recognised government grant of HK$740,000
(2021: nil) in respect of COVID-19 related subsidies,
which is related to the Employment Support Scheme
provided by the Hong Kong Government.

B, FE 2022 12H31H IEFEE R > A K
i 52 A B COVID-194H BE # 1Y 14 B
N i Bi740,000% JC (20214F @ ) > 3%
i Bl BL A5 W O B R 0 £R e 2R B
B -
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&5 o B R B BE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

#HE 2022 F 12 A 31 HIL4EE

7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7. H bW i &g B
2022 2021
20224 20214F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T oo

Gain from changes in fair value upon transfer B FREELEWE T RE

of properties held for sale to investment WERWATHED
properties K 5,399 19,127
(Loss) gain from changes in fair value of BEMENRN T EHEH
investment properties (&5 18) U %45 (2,367) 2,962
(Loss) gain on changes in fair value of (/N G R WG = E RN
financial assets at FVTPL G RE 2T (H 5 B
(5 18) i 2 (318) 307
Gain on fair value change of derivative i & THA TV EEE
financial instruments g — 861
Net foreign exchange gain (loss) [ 50 % %5 (J5 98) 5 %8 171 (228)
2,885 23,029
8. (IMPAIRMENT LOSSES) 8. THWIfE B H B BT Ay (J A
REVERSAL OF IMPAIRMENT W5 18 el A6 JEs 48 8 ol
LOSSES UNDER EXPECTED
CREDIT LOSS MODEL
2022 2021
20224 20214F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T
(Impairment losses) reversal of impairment TG & AR A T Y O
losses under ECL model on: B K5 18) W (H s 18 5% 1] -
— Trade receivables — E 5 K IE (16,888) 2,633
— Other receivables — Al 3Kk IE — (1,2006)
— Loan receivable from an associate — M — B s AR (3,773) —
(20,661) 1,427

182 Perfect Group International Holdings Limited %842 5] [5 [B422 fBA5 PR 7]



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 A e B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
= 2022 4 12 A 31 HIEFE

9. FINANCE COSTS 9. MHBHEM
2022 2021
20224F 20214F
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts SRAT B B A B 876 433
Interest on lease liabilities ERES=R i Ds) 127 364
1,003 797
10. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 10. B Bt | i A
2022 2021
20224 20214F
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T o
Profit before taxation has been arrived at W B AT I A 0RO B & IR
after charging: B
Directors’ remuneration (note 11) B4 (B a1 8,202 8,202
Other staff’s salaries and other benefits HoAh B T 3 & K H A 48 5 20,104 18,520
Other staff’s retirement benefits scheme HAth B T 38 1k 45 F1
contributions wl # fit 3k 1,364 1,468
Total staff costs B TR A 48 %8 29,670 28,190
Auditor’s remuneration A% Bl T 4 1,230 1,206
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #) 3£ ~ W 5 & 3% fffi 7 & 2,559 3,090
Depreciation of right-of-use assets i ) O T A 1,694 4,313
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses e 58 J BH SR A7 B LA
(included in cost of goods sold) (FFA B & & 5 B AS) 253,072 301,488
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F 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2022
U 2022 FF 12 A 31 HIL4FE

11. = HH &

P T A AF LA B A AR 4 R S
T BAT B BRI s

11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Details of the emoluments paid or payable to the

directors and the chief executive of the Company

during both years are as follows:

Retirement
Salaries benefits
and other scheme
Fees benefits contributions Total
Wi R N
4 H Atb 8 A w3 4 % A8 5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T# T T# T T#& T T#& L
For the year ended B, 20224
31 December 2022 12431 H 1k 4E
Executive directors: AT HE S .
Mr. Kan Kin Kwong i {8 % o6 AR
(note (i) (B 5E @) — 4,500 18 4,518
Ms. Shek Mei Chun IEES i — 1,500 18 1,518
Mr. Chung Chi Keung 8 0 e R — 1,500 18 1,518
Independent non- B IEBAT S
executive directors:
Mr. Fan Chor Ho O 7 I e A 216 — — 216
Mr. Wong Wai Keung A S R
Frederick 216 — — 216
Mr. Lee Ka Wing BRERE 216 — — 216
648 7,500 54 8,202
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11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION -

3 A e B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
= 2022 4 12 A 31 HIEFE

11. EHMW L - H

continued
Retirement
Salaries benefits
and other scheme
Fees benefits  contributions Total
B K B R A8 F
1 4 A 48 F 1 3 4 3 )
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T T
For the year ended #® £ 20214
31 December 2021 12H31H Ik & B
Executive directors: PATE S .
Mr. Kan Kin Kwong T fi 6 o R
(note (i)) (B 3E () S 4,500 18 4,518
Ms. Shek Mei Chun fAE2 L L == 1,500 18 1,518
Mr. Chung Chi Keung # e = 1,500 18 1,518
Independent non- WL IE AT R
executive directors:
Mr. Fan Chor Ho a4k S A 216 = = 216
Mr. Wong Wai Keung B R S A
Frederick 216 e e 216
Mr. Lee Ka Wing TRELE 216 — — 216
648 7,500 54 8,202
Notes: Bff

(i) Mr. Kan Kin Kwong is also Chief Executive of the
Company and his emoluments disclosed above include those

for services rendered by him as Chief Executive.

(ii)  The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
mainly for their services in connection with management of
the affairs of the Company and the Group. The emoluments
of independent non-executive directors shown above were

mainly for their services as directors of the Company.

G e EREAR AR B
U357 TN B % 6 1 AR AT BORR AR AR IR
515 R 4 -

(i) B SCHTR AT B S N R S
ARy T oA S B B R IR B - B
SCRT R B S5 R AT I S e R S
5 I AR o W) 3 21 47 IR o
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f 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2022
U 2022 FF 12 A 31 HIL4FE

11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION - 11.

continued
Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals included three
(2021: three) directors of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2022. Details of whose
emoluments are included above. The emoluments
of the remaining two (2021: two) highest paid

individuals are as follows:

EREMe - &

EIRDAE=F N n

B, E£20224F12H31H 1k 4F E > A &
&N L = A7 (20214F 1 = 4) #E
H oo A 2 BN EE S O B oo HofR
W A7 (20214F = W ) B 3 AN £ 09 %
B 4an T

2022 2021
20224 20214F
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T T

Employees =]
— salaries and other benefits — ¥ & B H A 4w A 1,538 1,374
— retirement benefits scheme contributions — — & K48 F] 51 # fit 3% 36 36
1,574 1,410

Their emoluments were within the following band:

8 55 B9 387 I A P DA o A

2022 2021
20224 20214F
Number of Number of
employees employees

e B A\ 8 & B A\ %

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z £ 1,000,000% JC

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the directors of the Company or the five
highest paid individuals (including directors and
employees) as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office. None
of the directors have waived any emoluments during

both years.
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3 A e B

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE 2022 4F 12 H 31 H1E4E
12. TAXATION 12. BiJE
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T 5T
The taxation charge comprises: il JH 3 AL 4

Hong Kong Profits Tax s F 15 Bl 3,560 1,705

PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) FR [ A ZE BT AR B
(T4 & Pr 15 8L 1) 4,207 6,705

PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) PR - B4 R B
(I 39 (H B D) 2,501 22,025
10,268 30,435
Deferred tax charge (note 20) AE 2 Bl IH 57 (B 5E20) 761 5,496
11,029 35,931

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime of
Hong Kong Profits Tax, the first HK$2 million of
assessable profits of the qualifying group entity will
be taxed at 8.25%, and assessable profits above HK$2
million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group
entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate
of 16.5%. Accordingly, the Hong Kong Profits Tax
of the qualifying group entity is calculated at 8.25%
on the first HK$2 million of the estimated assessable
profits and at 16.5% on the estimated assessable

profits above HK$2 million.

Under the Law of the PRC on EIT and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%.

R 45 7 s Rl 45 Bl W 5k il A A5 Bl R
B AEMEBR TN 288 ofh
AT SR B v A Bl R £58.25% 1 B
M2 E s AN T SRR i A B R
$516.5% ° A FF A R 15 BLw 4% Hil 2 4
B A R R K A A 1R16.5% B — B
KRB I & &A% E B HEE2
T T Al TR SR B i I Y 4%8.25%
B R 5T A s R A5 B 1 2l
B T I Ah T RE R B R B 4216.5%
M Bl RFHA -

R 95 B A ZE TS B ik R B Am A
rh R B a2 T B R F525% o
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f 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2022
U 2022 FF 12 A 31 HIL4FE

12. TAXATION - continued 12. P JEH — 4§

The Group is engaged in manufacturing of fine
jewellery products through processing factories in
the PRC under contract processing arrangement.
Accordingly, under such 50:50 onshore/offshore
arrangement between the Group and the processing
factories, certain profits of the Group are not taxable
under Hong Kong Profits Tax during both years.
In addition, the processing factories of the Group
is subject to the PRC EIT at a rate of 25% on the
deemed profit generated in the PRC.

The provision of LAT is estimated according to the
requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws
and regulations. LAT has been levied at progressive
rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation
of land value, represented by the excess of sales
proceeds of properties over prescribed direct costs.
Prescribed direct costs are defined to include costs of
land, development and construction costs, as well as
certain costs relating to the property development.
According to the State Administration of Taxation’s
official circulars, LAT shall be payable provisionally
upon sales of the properties, followed by final
ascertainment of the gain at the completion of the

properties development.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 A e B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
WA 2022 4 12 A 31 HILFE

12. TAXATION - continued 12, Bt IH - #
Taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to the A N B TE ST M n] B AR S A K A &
profit before taxation per the consolidated statement TH] WA 3% A Y o I 6 ) 3B HR A0 R
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
follows:
2022 2021
20224 20214F
HK$’°000 HK$000
T# T T 7T
Profit before taxation I Bt T vas A 38,444 74,208
Tax at the applicable income tax rate at 16.5% % # i JT 13 Bi %£16.5% #1 #
HY B IH 6,343 12,244
Tax effect of share of result of an associate A Ay — ] ng oA R
Bl B 5 %2 146 (7)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax /N AJ 1 BL B 32 1) BL T 5 2
purpose 4,599 5,717
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax T 78 B B A Y B35 o 28
purpose (1,075) (1,776)
Utilisation of tax loss previously not ) 1 S i R e R R B TE B 18
recognised (179) (239)
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences A< ffE 58 1] 11 3k B IRF M 25 %6 (Y
not recognised Tl %5 5 % 1,063 1,659
Effect of profit under 50:50 arrangement 50 504 HE N I i R 5 2 (3,793) (2,192)
Tax effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries K% 5 B % 3 [t i /A 7 2
operating in the PRC NG %3 1,840 2,319
PRC LAT H [ ot 1 (E B 2,501 22,025
Tax effect of PRC LAT recognition resulting a i 58 " B0 1 Hh 14 (B Bl 45 3¢
reduction in income tax Fir 15 B8 D 2 B R (413) (3,634)
Tax effect of two tiered profits tax rate regime F| 15 B W &% il Bi 2 il B 2
U A (165) (165)
Others HoAth 162 (20)
Taxation charge for the year GGy 11,029 35,931
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f 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2022
U 2022 FF 12 A 31 HIL4FE

13. DIVIDEND 13. ik B
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HKS$’000
T# ot T JC
Dividends recognised as distribution during — 4F A O H#E 58 5 70 IR 2 [l &
the year:
Final dividend for 2021 of HK$0.02 (2020:  20214F AR i 245 8£0.02% 7T
HK$0.02) per share (20204 : & fIZ0.02#5 JT) 27,000 27,000
The directors proposed to declare a final dividend #OE AR R B £20224F12H31H 1k
of HK$0.02 per share, totalling HK$26,820,180 in R Z ORI B ko.028 T - 3
respect of the year ended 31 December 2022, payable 26,820,180 7T > T R20234F6H14H %
to the shareholders whose names appear on the G A 25w i R 44 2 R o

Company’s register of members on 14 June 2023.
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14. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per
share attributable to owners of the Company is based

on the following data:

3 A e B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
= 2022 4 12 A 31 HIEFE

14. & W 8 A

A F AN B A A e I A I 4

I T5AR 45 T 51 B P55
2022 2021
20224F 20214F
HK$’000 HK$°000
Tt T

Profit for the year attributable to owners of AL A A N AL A R
the Company and earnings for the purposes Vi Fll S %t 51 5 & I 1 48 It

of calculating basic and diluted earnings B R 2 BLR

per share

29,400 38,758

Number of shares

Ji& 6y ¥ H
’000 ’000
Tt T
Weighted average number of ordinary shares i 5t 53 5 & 5k A K # # 21 |
for the purpose of calculating both basic 2 A B HE ST 5
and diluted earnings per share 1,348,077 1,350,000

The computation of diluted earnings per share
for both years does not assume the exercise of the
Company’s options because the exercise price of those
options was higher than the average market price of

the shares for both years.

TR 4 I 5 P4 8
CEGYENTT Y B P
B 1 HE 2 7 G 8 T 1 47 7 7 7
B P2 T4 -

2022 Annual Report 4FfE#HE 191



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 2022 4 12 A 31 HIREE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 15. W3 ~ W s B ik s

EQUIPMENT
Leasehold land Plantand  Furniture and
and buildings machinery fixtures  Motor vehicles Total
iNER Y £ o 7 B 1 G KRRKE R Ht
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T T T
Year ended 31 December 2022 # £20224
12A31H k4§
At 1 January 2022 #20224 1A 1H
Cost A 64,082 5,374 15,529 5,175 90,160
Accumulated depreciation 2t & (4,607) (5,306) (14,009) (3,973) (27,895)
Exchange realignment [ 5o 5 % 4,988 —_ 29 3 5,020
Carrying amount JETH {8 04,463 68 1,549 1,205 67,285
At 1 January 2022 #2022 1410 64,463 68 1,549 1,205 67,285
Additions NE 52 — 68 516 636
Depreciation e (1,630) (68) (436) (425) (2,559)
Disposals ik - — 6) — ©)
Exchange realignment E i 7 % (5,128) — (106) (7) (5,241)
At 31 December 2022 1202241231 57,757 - 1,069 1,289 60,115
At 31 December 2022 20224
12H31H
Cost A 64,134 5,374 15,540 5,249 90,297
Accumulated depreciation A5 E (6,237) (5,374) (14,394) (3,956) (29,961)
Exchange realignment 1 i (140) — (77) (4) (221
At 31 December 2022 120225 121311 57,757 — 1,069 1,289 60,115
Representing: f#&:
Carrying amount i T 57,757 — 1,069 1,289 60,115
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3 A e B
For the year ended 31 December 2022
= 2022 4 12 A 31 HIEFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 15. W3 - W Kkt -

EQUIPMENT - continued

Leasehold land Plant Furniture and
and buildings and machinery fixtures Motor vehicles Total
MELMRET i R B GRR%E R M5t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TET T T T T
Year ended 31 December 2021  # 220214
12A31H 14
At 1 January 2021 R202141 1 1H
Cost A 77,028 5,374 14,840 4,577 101,819
Accumulated depreciation A E (2,779) (5,238) (13,245) (3,543) (24,805)
Exchange realignment E i 37 % 2,866 == (14) 2 2,850
Carrying amount M 77,115 136 1,581 1,032 79,864
At 1 January 2021 20211 A1A 77,115 136 1,581 1,032 79,864
Additions KA 323 — 713 598 1,634
Transfer to investment properties ¥ 7 £ % ¢/ES
(note 17) (W 3E17) (16,815) = - = (16,815)
Transfer from properties held for € #5 fF it & 4 ¥ ¥ 7%
sale 3,546 = = — 3,546
Depreciation fi# (1,828) (68) (764) (430) (3,090)
Disposals HE - == (24) = (24)
Exchange realignment [ 56 50 & 2,122 - 43 b) 2,170
At 31 December 2021 2021412 /1310 64,463 68 1,549 1,205 67,285
At 31 December 2021 #202141231H
Cost A 64,082 5,374 15,529 5,175 90,160
Accumulated depreciation 2atE (4,607) (5,300) (14,009) (3,973) (27,895)
Exchange realignment [ 5,74 % 4,988 = 29 3 5,020
At 31 December 2021 2021412 /131 H 64,463 68 1,549 1,205 67,285
Representing: f#&:
Carrying amount R T 64,463 68 1,549 1,205 67,285
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f 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2022
U 2022 FF 12 A 31 HIL4FE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 15. Y1 3€ ~ W Bkt — 4
EQUIPMENT - continued
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is o3~ W BR i B T RS RO B Rk
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate sEE S DU H AL E A AR B8 4 AR
their cost or fair value to their residual values over AN TFEERGBEEDT:

their estimated useful lives as follows:

Leaschold land and buildings Over the lease terms & 4 St & #H A
Plant and machinery 20% per annum T 75 % % 5 420%
Furniture and fixtures 20% per annum BARKEE 20%
Motor vehicles 20% per annum KH F20%
16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 16. 1 Fi BE & 7
Fixtures
Leasehold and
land  Buildings equipment Total
iG] By BREREE Iy

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
T T T T itk e

As at 1 January 2022 202241 H1H
Carrying amount AR T R 8,062 3,320 29 11,411
As at 31 December 2022 #2022412H31H
Carrying amount M THG (L 7,269 1,589 — 8,858
For the year ended B, £ 20224F

31 December 2022 12H31H Ik 4 &
Depreciation for the year NPT 155 1,510 29 1,694
Total cash outflow for leases L6 B4 0 AR 1,852
Additions to right-of-use assets {1 I HE & A& iR B N/A A3
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3 A e B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
= 2022 4 12 A 31 HIEFE

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS - 16. 1 F BE & —
continued
Fixtures
Leasechold and
land Buildings  equipment Total
& 1 b ME RARKEE A5t

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T#E  T#w  T#w T

As at 1 January 2021 20214 1H1H

Carrying amount M TH L 6,848 7,300 78 14,226

As at 31 December 2021 #20214:12H31H

Carrying amount R T 8,062 3,320 29 11,411

For the year ended B E 20214

31 December 2021 12H31H 1k 4 B

Depreciation for the year N 164 4,100 49 4,313

Total cash outflow for leases HEH &R EH 4,443

Additions to right-of-use assets fif Jfj HE ¥ 2 ¥y & N/A
For both years, the Group leases various leasehold T A AF B o AS B B R OB E A B
land, buildings and fixtures and equipment for its THE T~ BT K B R e o
operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed HEES AT 29 E504F 19 [ 2 AR -
term of 2 years to 50 years. Lease terms are negotiated FH B HA e 40 1 3 HE B o O L 4% R
on an individual basis and contain a wide range [A] i 3K B Mk R o A E A S R R
of different terms and conditions. In determining At A BT R BS B T 2 HABR I > A 42 3 HE
the lease term and assessing the length of the non- HAEAERIEESOMITH -

cancellable period, the Group applies the definition
of a contract and determines the period for which the

contract is enforceable.
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F 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2022
U 2022 FF 12 A 31 HIL4FE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

17. B & W%

2022 2021
20224 20214F
HK$°000 HK$’000
Tt T
FAIR VALUE 2 PR

At 1 January r1H1H 300,256 220,795
Exchange realignment [ 50, ) & (24,143) 7,704

Changes in fair value recognised in profit or & 5 45 Al R

loss NEEE X (2,367) 2,962
Transfer from properties held for sale (note i) (LG ASES X (kLY R ) 9,521 40,280
Transfer from property, plant and equipment ¥ 0¥ ¥ ~ W5 K& 3%

(note ii) (5 i) — 26,425
Transfer from right-of-use assets (note ii) RS B R A (M AR i) — 2,090
At 31 December R12H31H 283,267 300,256

Notes: B 53

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2022, properties with
fair value at the date of transfer of HK$9,521,000 (2021:
HK$40,280,000) were transferred from properties held
for sale to investment properties due to change of use as a
result of commencement of relevant leases. The fair value
at the date of transfer was determined by an independent
and qualified professional valuer and the excess over the
carrying amount of HK$5,399,000 (2021: HK$19,127,000)
was recognised in other gains and losses at the date of

transfer.

(i)  During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
changed the use of certain of its property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets and leased them to
independent third parties for rental income. The fair value
at the date of transfer was determined by an independent
qualified professional valuer. Upon the transfer to
investment properties, these properties were revalued with a
gain on revaluation of approximately HK$9,610,000. This
amount net of the corresponding to deferred tax liability of
approximately HK$2,403,000 has been credited to property
revaluation reserve. There was no such transfer during the
year ended 31 December 2022.

All of the Group’s properties held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are classified and accounted for as
investment properties and measured using the fair

value model.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES —

continued

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties
at 31 December 2022, the date of transfer from
property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
properties held for sale have been arrived at on the
basis of valuations carried out on the respective dates
by an independent and qualified professional valuer
which has appropriate qualifications and experience in

the valuation of properties in the relevant locations.

The fair value of investment properties located in the
PRC is determined by using income approach. The
income approach is calculated by capitalising the
rental income derived from the existing tenancies with

due provision for any reversionary income potential.

3 A e B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
= 2022 4 12 A 31 HIEFE

17. L EWE - M

A 4L [ & W) % R 20224512 H31H (B
EEAYE - RE R AR
FEURFEREYEZIY Z AT
{8 T AR 98 8 3 K A B S B ZE A (E R 7
FHBE B ORAE AT 2 Ak (B A5 o R% A (E A
A AH B b B 2 Wy AN E TR S
2B K BB o

MRz EY RN FETIR
MM AR E - WAE T BE A A
Z el ABAR 3 WA o T AR 1R

AN (B

Investment Fairvalue  Valuation techniques
properties Fair value hierarchy and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs Sensitivity
1 18 3¢ 1 &
e AFE APHEES  EREAUR RN B A B BB
2022 2021
20225 20015
HK$°000  HK$'000
L FEx
Residential 81,655 89,687 Level 3 Income approach HKS$15 to HK$37 (2021: HK$16 to HK$37)  The higher the market rental, the
propertics in the — market rental per month per square meter higher the fair value
PRC
HEZEENE 81,655 89,687 #38 kAE—Ti5HRE  BABTHRSELZETER mGHEdeE ATERR
(20214 - 163 0 £ 371 )
—term yield Term yield, taking into account of yield The higher the term yield, the
generated by market average selling price and  lower the fair value
the market average rental from comparable
properties and adjustment to reflect the
conditions of the properties, of 2.2% (2021:
2.2%)
& M B A RTELRYE WG R AT R

— reversionary yield

—BR kR

THEE RN FYREREE 2l
S B T e SE AR WL ik 2GR 5 2.29%
(20214 : 2.2%)

Reversionary yield, taking into account of
yield generated by market average selling
price and the market average rental from
comparable properties and adjustment to
reflect the risk associated with the future
rental, of 2.5% (2021: 2.5%)

(RS DTN ER S EFAIR
TR B R FH & Br 2 i
By B W oA AT A I T 1 2
5 2.5% (20214 : 2.5%)

The higher the reversionary
yield, the lower the fair value

S g > A F (1R
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F 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 2022 4 12 A 31 HIREE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES -

17. L& W 3% - #

continued
Investment Fair value Valuation techniques
properties Fair value hierarchy and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs Sensitivity
1A 1 3 5 &
¥k A¥HE APEES  TEBAUE BEARMBE WAL i R JE
2022 2021
0226 20215
HK$°000  HK$'000

T#n T

Industrial buildings 201,612 210,569 Level 3 Income approach HK$24 to HK$44 (2021: HK$25 to HK$46) The higher the market rental, the
in the PRC — market rental per month per square meter higher the fair value

HHZ TXBT 201,612 210,569 #3 Yak—mGEE SRS THRUET Bk wiGE &R AT

—term yield

— reversionary yield

— g i

There is no transfer into or out of Level 3 during year
ended 31 December 2022.
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(20214F + 251 7t E ik TT)

Term yield, taking into account of yield
generated by market average selling price and
the market average rental from comparable
properties and adjustment to reflect the
conditions of the properties, of 4.5% (2021:
4.5%)

ERE > Bt R E R 2 G
FHEFRTSFOREIELE 20 E
T B BB AL AE 2 308 > 45%
(2021 4.5%)

Reversionary yield, taking into account of
yield generated by market average selling
price and the market average rental from
comparable properties and adjustment to
reflect the risk associated with the future
rental, of 5% (2021: 5%)

(IS RETP TN TR EFAE
TR B RSP L 2l
ks Bk AL A o 2
2 5% (20214F - 5%)

The higher the term yield, the

lower the fair value

The higher the reversionary
yield, the lower the fair value

BRR R AR

B E20224F12H31H IEEE WM > 53

YN e A B o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 A e B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
= 2022 4 12 A 31 HIEFE

18. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 18. 7 — [ Wi & 2 W) A RE 4

2022 2021

20224 20214F

HK$’000 HK$’000

Tt T

Cost of investment in an unlisted associate A — T FE b A Y

& A 1,111 1,111

Exchange realignment e ba, 3% 3% (16) 32
Share of post-acquisition loss JRE A% Wi B 1% s 18 (1,095) (211)

— 932
Details of the Group’s associate at 31 December 2022 7 5K [E B N A 2022412 H31H K

and 2021 are as follows:

Name of associate

Wi 8 2 vl 4 1

2021 F 12 A3 IH M FEB T -

Place of
incorporation Proportion of Proportion of
and operation ownership interest voting power held Principal activity
wk B 32 B
A8 W WEARERESR LG Priv RG] B
2022 2021 2022 2021
20224 20214F  20224F 20214

TR A7 3% 2R B S0 Ak
BRRARAF

PRC 19% 19% 19% 19%  Trading of fine jewellery

g WHKEHE S
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&5 o B R B BE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

#HE 2022 F 12 A 31 HIL4EE

19. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT 19. ¥% 2 “F A 5F A H At 4 i W £
FVTOCI Iy fie HE T 5
2022 2021
20224 20214F
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#n T#IT
Investment in unlisted equity securities iR BT AR R R 1,043 —
The Group’s unlisted equity securities investment in A 4R B120224F I B IR 78 5 A A
2022 represent 19% equity interests in a private entity BB LA E TR REREZ
established in the PRC. The directors have elected 19% - #HEOCEE M RME THKEFE
to designate this investment in equity instruments at I /N S |- AN SN o TR g
FVTOCI. Details of fair value measurement are set NS A A AN

out in note 41.
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3 A e B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
= 2022 4 12 A 31 HIEFE

20. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 20. Y& %t Bt JH & & (A 15)
(LIABILITIES)
The movements in deferred tax assets (liabilities) AR R > AR SE B IH K E (BRI E)
during the year are as follows: mTr
Revaluation Fair value

of property, change upon

plant and transfer of Accelerated
equipment properties Fair value tax
upon transfer held for sale changeof  depreciation/
to investment to investment investment accounting
properties properties properties depreciation Total
AR %

HUHEREME MR ERE
REMNE EL ¥4 REMEZ MERETE/

Wi s e % f ATFEEH AFEEH it At
HKS§000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000
T THTT TH T SR TH#TT
At 1 January 2021 20211 A1H (10,062) (13,813) 357 406 (23,112)
Exchange realignment HE 50 3 B (339) (486) = = (829)
(Charge) credit to profit or loss (HE&EMR)
AARE - (4,782) (740) 2 (5,496)
Charge to other comprehensive A4E WA 2T
income for the year il (2,403) = = = (2,403)
At 31 December 2021 2021412317 (12,804) (19,081) (383) 432 (31,836)
Exchange realignment [ 543 % 1,021 1,560 13 — 2,594
(Charge) credit to profit or loss (AR B
i ARG — (1,350) 592 (3) (761)
At 31 December 2022 2022121310 (11,783) (18,871) m 429 (30,003)
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f 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2022
U 2022 FF 12 A 31 HIL4FE

20. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 20. B HE B & E (AR) - #
(LIABILITIES) - continued
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax PATF 72 AR B 85 R R & 2 R S B JH
balance for financial reporting purposes: EEERZ T
2022 2021
20224 20214F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T 0 T
Deferred tax assets 5 4 Bl JH E = 429 432
Deferred tax liabilities I 4E B TE B fE (30,432) (32,268)
(30,003) (31,836)
Deferred taxation has not been recognised in respect 37 4 o B R R 2 WD OB B T
of certain undistributed retained profits earned by the X IR AR B8 ik 71 294,540,000 % JT (2021
subsidiary in the PRC amounting of HK$294,540,000 4 306,620,000 % T ) i 58 K 4E Bl IH
(2021: HK$306,620,000) as the directors are of the R 4 AN 4R E RE A B R ORE M
opinion that the Group is able to control the timing ERBERMH BB R Z8N AT
of the reversal of the temporary differences and it RS N

is probable that the temporary differences will not

reverse in the foreseeable future.

21. INVENTORIES 21. + &
2022 2021
20224F 20214F
HK$°000 HK$°000
T oo Tt
Raw materials JE B R 42,424 40,000
Work in progress TE H 5 7,279 6,388
Finished goods B 102,358 104,195
152,061 150,583
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22. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

3 A e B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
= 2022 4 12 A 31 HIEFE

2. FifEi %

2022 2021

20224F 20214F

HK$’000 HK$’000

Tt T

Properties held for sale e Y2k 129,735 158,625

The properties held for sale were located in the PRC.
Properties held for sale which are expected to be
recovered in more than twelve months after the end of
the reporting period are classified under current assets
as it is expected to be realised in the Group’s normal

operating cycle.

FREY A P B - RS R
R L ACE R/
B AR o DN TE A A R IR R
K RN B -

HK$°000
Analysis of leaschold lands: & Lz T
As at 31 December 2021 2021412 A 31H
Carrying amount MR Th L 8,398
As at 31 December 2022 *20224:12H31H
Carrying amount 0% 1H1 H 5,129

The carrying amount of leasehold lands is measured
under HKFRS 16 at cost less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The residual
values are determined as the estimated disposal value
of the leasehold land component. No depreciation
charge is made on the leasehold lands taking into

account the estimated residual values.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, properties
held for sale with carrying amount of HK$12,614,000
(2021: HK$25,674,000) were sold to third parties.

L b B T (AR R R U B S
e JI R 165 LA AT 1 2 AT K
AF: {7 8 (H s 1R 5 & o R BR f (E 2
bt~ o L O o e = T N
FE LA wE R B (E - R B AR L R
RITEEM -

B FE2022F12H31H 1L > MR (E 5
12,614,000 45 9T (20214F : 25,674,000%%5C)
ZHELEYECHETFTE =0 -
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f 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2022
U 2022 FF 12 A 31 HIL4FE

23. TRADE AND OTHER 23. ¥ 5 B At JRE W K JH
RECEIVABLES
2022 2021
20224 20214F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T 0 T T
Trade receivables B 5 R 3K TE 80,717 94,452
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses W TE WIS Bk 4R 1 A (24,092) (7,204)
56,625 87,248
Other receivables, prepayments and deposics Al JiE i X IH
BT FRIE K A% & 14,789 17,896
Amount due from an associate JRE Wi — H] B /25 2 W] 1 3K IR 366 645
71,780 105,789
The following is an analysis of trade receivable net of B 5 S E WK T 0 B TE AR B
allowance for expected credit losses by age, presented 8 48 4% IR W B B 0 AR BE B
based on the invoice date, which approximates the HHER R MEENEEAE
respective revenue recognition date. 5l o
2022 2021
20224F 20214F
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T T
0-30 days 0% 30H 12,684 35,207
31-60 days 31%60H 11,494 34,152
61-180 days 61 % 180H 25,888 16,943
181-365 days 181 % 365H 5,108 904
Over 1 year —4ERL E 1,451 42
56,625 87,248
The Group allows a credit period of up to 120 days to AEBMEFMENGEENREZ A
its customers. A longer credit period may be granted 120H > K B a & s & A HAS 3T %
to large or long established customers with good RIOMEFAERENEERN -

payment history.
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23. TRADE AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES - continued

Before accepting any new customers, the Group has an
internal credit control system to assess the potential
customers’ credit quality and the board of directors
has delegated management to be responsible for the
determination of credit limits and credit approvals
for customers. Limits attributed to customers are
reviewed periodically.

The Group’s management takes into consideration
of customers’ credit history, settlement patterns,
subsequent settlements, customers’ financial position
and an assessment of both the current and forecast
general economic conditions and aging analysis of
trade receivables in determining the recoverability
of the overdue trade receivables. The directors of the
Company considered that the concentration of credit
risk is limited due to customer base being large and
unrelated.

As at 31 December 2022, following the assessment of
individual balances based on the Group’s historical
default experiences and the individual characteristics
of each customer including but not limited to the
aging profile and financial position together with
other forward looking factors, the Group has provided
an impairment loss on ECL of approximately
HK$16,888,000 on trade receivables for the year.

As at 31 December 2022, included in the Group’s
trade receivables balance are debtors with aggregate
carrying amount of HK$33,585,000 (2021:
HK$29,817,000) which are past due as at the
reporting date. Included in the past due balances
of HK$9,140,000 (2021: HK$2,526,000) has been
past due 90 days or more and is not considered as in
default based on good repayment records for those
customers and continuous business with the Group.
The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
of the Group to ensure relevant information about

specific debtors is updated.

Other receivables, prepayments and deposits mainly
consists of value-added tax recoverable.

3 A e B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
= 2022 4 12 A 31 HIEFE

23. ® 5y B 3L fth Wi SR IH - A

AT M E A A 5 s
REER RS et EEE NG
BHR EFEGIFCHBREHEEAR
fEERFIEERE MEEMZ I
HzEWmat % F #Ht e R -

A 4R B R B T R E Y 5 B
A AT P & B R S
T #k AT S HAR A A
BF 2 B AR UL ~ B Ry K TH B R
RES R UL 2 FE Al DA B B 5 e R 2
MRt o ANFEIEHRS > ARE
JFHERER K ERARB - BUfE B B 2R
g A BR o

R20224E12H31H » #5844 H E &

EAS BR A B B K B 55 1R L) DA B Al
I B 1 (R 2% 50 A 10 19l 465 Bk 1% > A ZE
FNE B S ML Sk TE EE R E B A
5 18 B 8L s 1R 416,888,000 5 7T o

R20224F12H31H - 4 BR H OH &
33,585,000%% JC (20214F : 29,817,000 4% 7C)
ZHRAECFIAAR LR E ) MK IE
e ZEHERRERNC @S -
FHAJE HA &5 85 29,140,000 15 7T (20214F -

2,526,000%5 7o) © 41 HA90 H = DL I » 3%
A% SR P R GG Bk R T B AR 4R [
FREEBHARMABIEREL - HH
KUl A 4L A R O B ET o TR
HABREBEBANZ R HEE R -

Al R W EKE ~ TR BROH KR e
B 45 AT i [B] 4 (5 B
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f 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2022
U 2022 FF 12 A 31 HIL4FE

24. LOAN RECEIVABLE FROM AN 24 W W — [ WG B 2y W] Bk

ASSOCIATE

The amount represented a loan receivable from an % K E AR B — [ 8 A Rl B RN R
associate of Renminbi (“‘RMB”) 11,550,000, net of (TN R 7)) 11,550,0007T (11 Bk 4F 141
impairment allowance of RMB3,253,000 provided T4 e (E 4 N R %°3,253,0007T) (8
during the year (equivalent to approximately B R #113,116,000% 7T - #1158 3,773,000
HK$13,116,000, net of HK$3,773,000) (2021: i 78) (20214 « A R 711,550,0007) (4
RMB11,550,000 (equivalent to HK$14,132,000)) B OR14,132,000%5 JT) - B WAL A
which is unsecured, interest-free and repayable within FT S H ZH B JR T A 4R T 2 K
one year with collaterals assigned to the Group. The —ERER o N BREE F T
repayment date of the loan was extended to September F20234F9H -

2023 during the year.

25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR 25. $% o PR T 8 6 1 B B
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR FE
LOSS
2022 2021
20224 20214F
HK$°000 HK$’000
T oo T # o
Listed equity securities in Hong Kong s i AT 55 6,744 —
Investments in unlisted funds Cit < Sl 807 18,474
7,551 18,474
The unlisted funds represent investments in I bl e AR A FA SR RME AL & 2 B
participating shares of a private equity fund and a 8 R B R AR B EE S ARE o A
unit-linked insurance product. Details of fair value - wt B E I O B EE4L

measurement are set out in note 41.
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26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS/

BANK DEPOSITS/BANK
OVERDRAFTS

Included in cash and cash equivalents are the
following amounts denominated in currencies other

than functional currency of the relevant group

3 A e B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
= 2022 4 12 A 31 HIEFE

26. & RBEFMHD HBITH

S BRATIE L

DA DA Bl 46 1 8 2 AE R W DL AR Y
BRsEMEBEFTAB & B &%
HY

entities:
2022 2021
20224 20214F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T 0 T 5T
HKS$ EEDH 5,664 17,054
United Arab Emirates Dirham (“Dirham”) Bo] g 2 28 0 ([ 28 7 48 1) 1,629 1,148
Australian Dollar T — 449
7,293 18,651

Bank balances carry interest at prevailing market
rates ranged from 0.01% to 0.625% per annum (2021:
0.01% to 0.30% per annum) as at 31 December 2022.

Bank deposits are denominated in United States
Dollar (“US$”), with an original maturity between
four to twelve months carry interests at market rates
ranged from 3.60% to 5.20% per annum (2021: nil)
as at 31 December 2022.

Bank overdrafts carrying interest at market rates of
2.50% (2021: nil) per annum over the Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate as at 31 December 2022.

R20224E12H31H » 847 &5 8% Ty % B
AT A F] 2 0.01% £.0.625% (20214 :
AR #0.01% £0.30%) 7B ©

A20224F12H31H > R 17 £ & ML E
gu(lE ) stE > KB A AT
2 ZE A - &R %3.60% 2
5.20% w1 B (20214F : #E) -

R20224F12H31H > $R 1795 3 1 &/
SR AT IR ZE PR B B T$2.50% 1Y T 35 4E R
ZE B (20214F © ) o
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f 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 2022 4 12 A 31 HIREE

27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 27. ¥ 5 B 3 At JE £F 5K JH
2022 2021
20224 20214F
HK$’000 HK$°000
T # o T
Trade payables Z 5 e A #KIH 40,031 40,553
Accruals and other payables JRE it K T e H At R A kI 20,640 16,715
60,671 57,268
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables JA 5 A R 2 8 SR H O 2 5 19 & B JE At
presented based on invoice date at the end of each FCE P IR AT
year:
2022 2021
20224F 20214F
HK$’000 HK$°000
Tt T
0-60 days 0% 60H 28,761 25,502
61-90 days 61%E90H 1,551 1,632
Over 90 days 90H LI E 9,719 13,419
40,031 40,553
Accruals and other payables mainly consist of payable JRE G T B At M AE ROIE I A 4
of staff salaries and benefits. FE AT B T3 & KoAs A 30H -
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28. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

3 A e B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
= 2022 4 12 A 31 HIEFE

28. A M AME

2022 2021

20224F 20214F

HK$’000 HK$’000

Tt T

Property business L/E %59 6,317 32,492
Jewellery business PR 1,081 3,120
7,398 35,612

As at 1 January 2021, contract liabilities amounted to
HK$77,709,000.

The Group receives deposits from customers when the
sale and purchase agreement is signed for property or
on placing purchase orders for jewellery. The deposits
give rise to contract liabilities being recognised
throughout the period until the customer obtains

control of the completed property or the jewellery.

Included in the contract liabilities at 31 December
2021, a balance of HK$29,324,000 was recognised
as revenue in current year. Contract liabilities at 31
December 2022 are expected to be settled within
a year when control of the completed property is

transferred to the customer.

i

§

R20214E1HIH » & & & 1
77,709,000 4% JC ©

U
iR

A5 IR SR AT W) 36 H R T R BT
TRE IR AT B OR P 4% & o &
EAERBMWHER2EMNEHE H
ERFRGCR TY R SR E 2 5
AL -

R20214F12H31IH W & & B fE &+ > &
829,324,000 JC B 7 A< 4F BE B 58 A
W %5 o TH FFA20224F12H31H 1 & &
BN A O R T S M A T
KFEHE—F NG -
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&5 o B R B BE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

#E 2022 4 12 A 31 HIFEE

29. LEASE LIABILITIES 29. & AfE
2022 2021
20224 20214F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T # o T# T
Lease liabilities payable: JRE A FH B A
Within one year —4E R 1,725 1,818
Within a period of more than one year but — 4 1% 1B W AF R 300
not more than two years 110 1,875
Within a period of more than two years but W 4F & {H #.4F A ] fif]
not more than five years — 119
1,835 3,812
Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 W AMERE AKZ R T2
months shown under current liabilities EDEINER o Wt/ @] (1,725) (1,818)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months HIAE IE i B B 2 R A
shown under non-current liabilities H 1% 2 1A &5 B 2~ 3K IH 110 1,994
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates GERSOER T R D i I
applied to lease liabilities ranges from 4.75% to 5.13% REF- 2 8L T 4.75% £5.13% (20214F :

(2021: from 4.75% to 5.13%). 4.75% 2.5.13%) °
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3 A e B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
= 2022 4 12 A 31 HIEFE

BANK LOANS 30. RAT H %
2022 2021
20224 20214F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# T T
The carrying amount of bank loans SRAT B AR WA S WA %
containing a repayment on demand clause 2R B R 3K (5 1 I B)
(shown under current liabilities) but BE) HHRRLT Jy E R
repayable as follows:
Within one year — R 6,187 6,187
Within a period of more than one year but — 4 A2 (H A i W A 5
not exceeding two years 6,187 6,187
Within a period of more than two years but T 4F % {H 7N i #8 F4F HA i
not exceeding five years 7,829 14,017
20,203 26,391

The Group’s bank loans are unsecured, contain a
repayment on demand clause and carry variable

interest rate ranging from 2.69% to 6.63% per annum

(2021: 2.58% to 2.70% per annum).

PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE

PAYMENTS

The provision for long service payments is determined

with reference to the employees’ remuneration and

their years of services.

F2.70%) °

31. 4= I MR %5 < 5t i

5 WY IR B 4F 1 E o

A 4R GR AT B RO R B WA
BORAMEE R K > B FH2.69% £.6.63%
M B A R R (20214 ¢ B F2.58%

R WM B & 82 % R E M E R

2022 2021

20224 20214

HK$°000 HK$000

T#n T o

At 1 January and 31 December WAUH1H K&12H31H 898 898
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f 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2022
U 2022 FF 12 A 31 HIL4FE

32. SHARE CAPITAL 32. B A
2022 2021
20224 20214F
HK$’°000 HK$’000
T# 5t T T
Authorised: iE
3,000,000,000 ordinary shares of one third ~ 3,000,000,000 % %5 fi% T {E
Hong Kong cent each (2021: =zl 2z
3,000,000,000 ordinary shares of one WOy (20214F ¢
third Hong Kong cent each) 3,000,000,000 % &
HHE=/rz—# il
A ) 10,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: CEAT AR
1,341,009,000 ordinary shares of one third ~ 1,341,009,000 8% 5 i i {6
Hong Kong cent each (2021: a2zl
1,350,000,000 ordinary shares of one A (20214F -
third Hong Kong cent each) 1,350,000,000 /5% %5 i
=02z —# il z
2 1) 4,470 4,500

212 Petfect Group International Holdings Limited %845 5] [5 B 428 fBA5 FRZA 7]



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

32. SHARE CAPITAL - continued

The movements in the Company’s share capital for
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2022 were as

3 A e B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
= 2022 4 12 A 31 HIEFE

32. A — 78

B E 20214 K 2022512 H31H I F % »
AN A 2 B AS 5 B 5 AR

follows:
Nominal value
Number of of ordinary
ordinary shares shares
% B H A i B A
HK$’000
T L
Authorised: HE
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021 and 202141 A1H -
31 December 2022 20214F12 A31H &
20224F12H31H 3,000,000,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: AT B
At 1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021  A20214E1H1H &
20214F12H31H 1,350,000,000 4,500
Repurchase and cancellation of shares B Ay B85 1) K2 g 8 (B &%)
(note) (8,991,000) (30)
At 31 December 2022 R2022412H31H 1,341,009,000 4,470

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company
repurchased 8,991,000 of its own shares from the market
which were subsequently cancelled (2021: nil). The
shares were acquired at prices ranging from HK$0.205 to
HK$0.23, with an average price of HK$0.216 per share.

33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Pursuant to written resolutions passed on 14
December 2015, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”). The Share
Option Scheme was valid for a period of 10 years

commencing on 14 December 2015.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Group to grant options to selected participants
as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the

Group.

33.

Bff5E 0 #& £20224F12A31H 1k 4F B AN AR
7 55 1§ 518,991,000 i Bt 4% > 5% 25 Bt 4y it
Wi 15 B GE B (20214F © ) o 3% % Mk
i (B A% A T-0.205% o€ £0.23 W LA >
B BT 24918 4% £50.21676 I -

VA B By 32 Ak sk JE

MR8 A 2 A iR2015F12 H14H 3 8 1
PR AN E DR AR
ah B (7B B SE B ) o B A ME 51 81
20154F12 H 14 H 51 A 80104 -

B HEE ) 2 Y R A R AT L)
R 2 2 BB IR T B > LA SO B
BHBEAEETEZETR -
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f 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2022
U 2022 FF 12 A 31 HIL4FE

33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS — 33. DA 2 4°F sk JE - 28

continued

Under the Share Option Scheme, the directors of
the Company may, at its discretion, grant options
to subscribe for shares in the Company to eligible
participants (“Eligible Participants”) who contribute
to the long-term growth and profitability of the
Company. Eligible Participants include (i) any
employee (whether full-time or part-time including
any executive director but excluding any non-
executive director) of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any entity (“Invested Entity”) in which
any member of the Group holds an equity interest; (ii)
any non-executive directors (including independent
non-executive directors) of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity; (iii) any supplier
of goods or services to any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity; (iv) any customer of any member
of the Group or any Invested Entity; (v) any person
or entity that provides research, development or other
technological support to any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity; (vi) any sharcholder of any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity or any
holder of any securities issued by any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity; (vii) any adviser
(professional or otherwise) or consultant to any area
of business or business development of any member
of the Group or any Invested Entity; and (viii) any
other group or classes of participants who have
contributed or may contribute by way of joint venture,
business alliance or other business arrangement to the

development and growth of the Group.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under this scheme and any other
share option schemes adopted by the Group shall not
exceed 30% of the share capital of the Company in

issue from time to time.

214 Perfect Group International Holdings Limited i %555 [ [ [ 2 e A7 R

R P B AR ST B AR W B RE
SE ] 2 AN A 2 R i R R R B R e
FHERMZEEBZHE((FEKS
B2 ) $2 T 0T R B AR N R R 0y 2 I
e REKSHELR : OAAA -
AT o7 B B 28 ) B rh A 42 BT AT i B
AR R 2 MERE(RE
B AT TR B (45 2 0k o 3R
I BUATHE S M A I AT
HH) 5 (@) AN F - HAT ] 8 A F
ST TR EEE A MEAITEE (G
5 8 57 I AT ) 5 (i) A< 4 AT AT
BMEAR SR ETEBZEMEY
ol IR B AL E 7 5 (iv) A 4 BT A A B A
AT R EERZEMBEE: 05
A A [ AT ] % B 2N B BT ] 4% H
P AL T - BH B Bl A 4 1 SR 2 AT
fa] R N BB B 5 (vi) AS B BT T B A
] B AT A 18 8 B AT AT R > B R
A A AT AT R B 2\ ST AT %
BT B AT 2 AT A 5 S 2 AT N £
(vii) 1E o] 1] A% 48 B AT ] i B 2 7 5k AT
o $ & B Y AT o] 3£ B I o 26 9
BAEH A L (A e HAh) 5
B s K&(vii)) B A E - EHE N
Aty i 3 22 BRI S A 4R 2 8 R RN B
1% 1 B R T BE 1 B R 2 AT A
ity 25 81 25 4 A Bk 0 A o

AR B 0 R # R A 4R T T Bk A 2 AT
fu] Ay Ve i ME wH B © 4% B E SR AT (8
2 BT A T R R A AT T T e R AT 2 I
EREEE AEERARXNFARD
BT A Z230% o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS -

continued

The total number of shares which may be allotted
and issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under this scheme and any other share option of
the Group must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares in issue as at the date of passing of the relevant

resolution adopting this scheme.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time or with an aggregate value (based on the price
of the Company’s shares at the date of the grant) in
excess of HK$5,000,000, within any twelve-month
period, are subject to sharecholders’ approval in

advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 21 days from the date of the offer, upon
payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in
total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share
options granted is determinable by the directors of
the Company, save that such period shall not be
more than ten years from the date of the offer of
the share options, subject to the provisions for early
termination as set out in the Share Option Scheme.
Unless otherwise determined by the directors at
their absolute discretion, there is no requirement of
a minimum period for which an option must be held
before an option can be exercised. In addition, there is
no performance target which must be achieved before

any of the options can be exercised.

3 A e B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
= 2022 4 12 A 31 HIEFE

33. VA A S A K - 4

PR 4 ot 5t ) K A A AT AT A i
P T K T % 2 BT A R A AT
i1 AT QA% R AT 2 RO A LR
5 60 0 R B AN e T B 2 A B R
ZEHCBEITRMEEZ10% °

WP AANFAESR - ITHRARK EER
B> B S AT 0] B N 2 B R RE
S8 7E 25 i A5 8 5 JE AT B S L o
11 R {2 o [ i 0 SN " i N/
TR R Bk o AT E S B
AT AT Bk B8N b 2 AT o] 8 P HE > AE AT AT
B fi 5 760 38 A A 7 EL B AT I8 22.0.1% >
s HBECIRSE 2 AN A RE
7)) # #5,000,000% JC - ZH & AR
JBE TR b A R A A o

152t M M M 2 A AT R B A H O 21 H
A R 3R N LA L T 2 4 38 AR
fE AR o P % i I T HE 2 4T i 0 e A
N FEE S PE o M A AT BCHE H
EEE o AN RE R AR 3l ZH 2 I
w1 T A 2 2 A L R O S T R A
Bk I Fh A R B E
Sl J B A b JH RR R RO E
IR BR 46 AT A7 > e Ab > IR M B E JH
B AR R B AR GG AT AT A
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33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS - 33. VLB 34T s - A

continued

The exercise price of the share options is determinable WERRE AT EB A AR E R E
by the directors of the Company, but may not be less MR RER A AT 2 s 8 () 7E I R
than the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing ME B 4 B B AR 2 | I A0 A Wk 52 BT 2 Uk
price of the Company’s shares on the date of the offer T 5 (1) 76 T A RE 40 B 3 A7 O
of the share options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange ENE NP NN SR R s ol
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five W K Gi) = A HAA LR RG22
business days immediately preceding the date of the THIH °

offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s

shares on the date of the offer.

A summary of movements of the outstanding share O TARA G ERS B E K5I
options granted to and held by the Company’s Eligible R A 2 i AR AT (0 2 5 A
Participants:

Number of share options

i Jot S H
Outstanding at Lapsed Outstanding at
1 January during the 31 December Adjusted
Date of grant 2021 year 2021 & 2022  exercise price
20214 &
20214 20224
1A1H 12A31H
i H B WARGHE  FROKK WARAT O AW R AT
’000 7000 7000 HK$
T4 T T # 7t
Directors ¥ 31.5.2017 5,670 — 5,670 1.07
Other eligible persons Hihg&EHAL 31.5.2017 20,655 (3,510) 17,145 1.07
Total At 26,325 (3,510) 22,815
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33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS -

continued

During the year ended 31 December 2021, share
options with a carrying value of HK$1,351,000 have
lapsed and have been transferred to retained profits of

the Group.

The share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme are exercisable commencing from 31 May
2018 to 30 May 2023 (both dates inclusive) for the
first tranche (“Tranche 17) and from 31 May 2019
to 30 May 2024 (both dates inclusive) for the second
tranche (“Tranche 27). The closing price of the
Company’s shares immediately before 31 May 2017,
the date on which the share options were granted was
HK$1.07 after the effect of the share subdivision on
13 September 2017. For Tranche 1, the fair values of
the share options determined at the dates of grant
using the binomial model for share options granted to
directors of the Company and other eligible persons
were HK$0.37 and HK$0.36, respectively after the
effect of share subdivision. For Tranche 2, the fair
values of the share options determined at the dates
of grant using the binomial model for share options
granted to directors of the Company and other eligible
persons were HK$0.42 and HK$0.41, respectively

after the effect of share subdivision.

3 A e B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
= 2022 4 12 A 31 HIEFE

33. VA A S A K - 4

] E22021F12H31H I F EF > EmE
1,351,000 #5 7T 1Y B B A £ 2% %4 I A
A 4 3 R B s A o

AR 45 0 PR A ) T 32 1 2 I RO o
O — dit e R RE (55 — it 1) ol 120184F5
H31H £20234F5H30H (B HEMH)
AT M8 > T B8 LR A RE (T35 — #ik ) mT
201945 H31H £20245H30H (B 1§
HREMH) AT E o AN A RGN B
20174F5 A 31 H (B % B E #2215 BA) i
Z W T B £51.07% JT (51 & A 201749 H
130 &0 95 4 2 5% 248 - 3h 58 — it
Mmes > FHZHEAEBEER AL
A N HoA A B A A 2 RORE
B BB 2 B I E A {H 4 Rl 250,37
# o6 2 0.364s Tt (FF K& M 37 8 2 52
A BEE MW E > A HK
BRI E R TAAREF R HMEGE
F& N & 22 W R RE A 1 0 B I RE
288 5 Bl B 0.428 TT 2 0.413 7T (5
BBy 4l 2 5 24 ) o
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33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS -

continued

The following assumptions were used to calculate the

fair values of the share options:

33. VA A S A K H - 2

DATF % wt 5 3 B R 2 F (8 B 6 2 R

2L .
AX -

Tranche 1 Tranche 2
it 5k

Grant date 31 May 2017 31 May 2017
%t H 20174F5H31H 201745 H31H
Grant date share price (adjusted) HK$1.07 HK$1.07
2 AR (8 ) 1.07# 70 1.07# 7T
Exercise Price HK$1.07 HK$1.07
A7 A 1.07# 7t 1.07# 7T
Expected Life 6 years 7 years
T w4 64 74
Expected Volatility 52% 53%
Rt
Dividend Yield 1.87% 1.87%
ik B %
Risk-free interest Rate 1.00% 1.06%
e Ja gy A1) A
Early exercise multiple (Directors) 180% 180%
& L AT A5 B (3 )
Early exercise multiple (Other eligible persons) 120% 120%

AT O B b & AR A ©)

The valuations were carried out by independent
and qualified professional valuer, which were not
connected with the Group. The binomial model had
been used to estimate the fair value of the options.
The variables and assumptions used in computing
the fair value of the share options were based on the
independent and qualified professional valuer’s best
estimate. Changes in variables and assumptions might

result in changes in the fair value of the options.
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34. RETIREMENT BENEFITS

SCHEME
Defined contribution scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.
Under the MPF Scheme, the employees are required
to contribute 5% of their monthly salaries or up to a
maximum of HK$1,500 and they can choose to make
additional contributions. The employer’s monthly
contributions are calculated at 5% of the employee’s
monthly salaries or up to a maximum of HK$1,500
(the “mandatory contributions”). The employees
are entitled to 100% of the employer’s mandatory
contributions upon their retirement at the age of 65,

death or total incapacity.

The employees of the Group’s factory and offices in
the PRC are members of a state-managed retirement
benefit plan operated by the government of the PRC.
The Group are required to contribute a specified
percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefit plan

is to make the specified contributions.

3 A e B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
= 2022 4 12 A 31 HIEFE

34. 38 If 15 A 5t

95 6kt

A% 4L [ AR R A M A BR A T E
A6k 161 7 1 S it 3 0 PR A B SRR
A& K 5 # ([58 R & 5 #0)) o 9o R
ant#l o E B ZEAE A SR H A #5%
5 fix 21,5005 7 1 fit 5> B% % R Al
ERERFEAMEK - B BN A ALK
¥ g B H # 15% 5 B 5 i 21,500
G ([58 il P 4t 2 ) - 8 B nT 65 i
NI 0 e S (N A i R
100% 9 18 = 5 il M 136 3K -

7 4R R B TR R SRR Y R B 2
F I R 2 A A [ 5 BILAR AR A A
AP o A S EZHIE B & AR E A
3 Lo 1] 4B AR AR A EAE AEER RAA
e R AR I o AR SR 1A B AR AR AR A
at & A ME— AR S A R E ke
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f 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 2022 4 12 A 31 HIREE

35. RELATED PARTY 35. BRI U5 22 5
TRANSACTIONS
The Group had the following transactions with 7 A (8] A A 0 B R B T AT AT RS G ¢

related parties during the years:

2022 2021
20224 20214F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T # o0 T
Sales of jewellery products to an associate ] — [ W A D 6 B
Tk B b 155 445
Transactions with subsidiaries or associate B /) HE SRR
companies held by a director of the o8 A B E AR AT 2
Company are as follows: T
Rental payments for lease liabilities HEAK L
— Land and building — b R 3,791 4,054
— Motor vehicles R 2,172 2,172
5,963 6,226
Consultancy income #E A 1,707 2,071
Rental income Al A 133 415
Property management fee income ES-SLE SUPN 48 110
Key management personnel include directors of the FEEHMANBQEALNFNESR LA
Company and other senior management of the Group. A 0 HoAh = A B o R R A
The remuneration paid or payable during the years By ASH 37 I
are as follows:
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$’000
T L T T
Short-term benefits 55 1 4% A 9,022 8,992
Post-employment benefits e ik 1% 4 A 72 72
9,094 9,064
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36.

37.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS - continued

The remuneration of key management personnel is
determined by management of the Company having
regard to the performance of individuals and market

trends.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group provided guarantees amounting to
approximately RMB$13,045,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$14,689,000) as at 31 December
2022 (2021: RMB45,656,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$55,863,000)) to facilitate
mortgage bank loans applications of purchasers of the
properties that were developed by the Group. Such
guarantees will be released by banks upon delivery
of the properties to the purchasers and completion of
registration of the relevant mortgaged properties. In
the opinion of the directors, the fair values of these
guarantee contracts of the Group are insignificant at
initial recognition and the directors consider that the
possibility of default of the parties involved is remote.
Accordingly, no value has been recognised at the
inception of the guarantee contracts and at the end of
the reporting period as at 31 December 2022 and 31
December 2021.

COMMITMENTS
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group did not

have significant commitment contracted for but not

provided in the consolidated financial statements.

35.

36.

37.

3 A e B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
= 2022 4 12 A 31 HIEFE

B8 Wk 5 R o — 4

FEEM A B M h AL E L E 2
%l N R B KT 85 0 8 -

o 28 AL

R20224F12H31H » AEBE M H AR
#13,045,000 7T (FH & > £714,689,000 %5
J6) (20214F = A\ R %45,656,0007C (40 &
i #155,863,0005 70)) 7 2 4% £/ - fE
AT RY) EZE KB RITIR
BWEH - WITHRWELHT TEE
HOH B e 8 4 2 5 w0 F M o8 AR 8
R EERE ERERL ALEZ
GRG0 T H R b TR R
WA K > EERE W& HRW
Al RE M AR /N o L s R 20224F12H31
H %20214F12H31H » £ #& £ & 49 B
G T ¥R 1) ] 4% ok Sl R A RRAT AT
{5 -

R

TA20224F M 2021412 H31H - A 4 [H 4%
M FT A H R A 45 & I 3k b g
52 KK o
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38. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 38. A 2 W] it & 2 vl WS
OF THE COMPANY

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries, all of which are 2022412 H31H K 2021412 H31H » A&
limited liability companies, at 31 December 2022 and 25 v B o\ (B 4 A R D) B
2021 are as follows: LI
Place of
incorporation/
registration/  Issued and fully paid share capital/registered  Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/
Name of subsidiaries operations and paid-up capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
AR 3L/
it/ CHIRERER A/ AAHRi# LB A/
W 25 4 1 EBNE kM A2 e A B 7 i FREH
2022 2021 Directly Indirectly
20224 20214F B fil %
2022 2021 2022 2021
0226 20214 2025 200F
% % % %
Perfect Group International ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares Ordinary shares — — 100 100 Designing, manufacturing
Holdings (HK) Limited HK$10,000,001 HK$10,000,001 and exporting of fine
jewellery
58 5 1 B PR M Eik T T et Bt &
(& i) R4 10,000,001 72 10,000,001 72 it PR 3R E
Perfect Group China Hong Kong Ordinary shares Ordinary shares — — 100 100 Investment holding
Holdings (HK) Limited HK$10,000 HK$10,000
Fik T T e REHE R
10,000 7 10,000
Perfect Group China Hong Kong Ordinary shares Ordinary shares — — 100 100 Investment holding
Investment (HK) HK$10,000 HK$10,000
Limited
Fik i A T iegidli
10,000 7 10,000
DMCC (HK) Investment ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares Ordinary shares — — 100 100 Investment holding
Limited (‘DMCC HK$100,000 HK$100,000
(HK)”) (note)
DMCC (HK) Investment i 4 &4 B R
Limited (DMCC(HK]) 100,000% 7 100,000% 7
()
RRMEREEERN  PRC Registered capital Registered capital — — 100 100 Property development
BHRAA US$30,000,000 US$30,000,000
i ALY kM e B33

30,000,000 G 30,000,000 G
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38. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 A e B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
= 2022 4 12 A 31 HIEFE

38. A 2wl [t & 2 B 0 wE N - AR

OF THE COMPANY- continued

Place of
incorporation/
registration/  Issued and fully paid share capital/registered ~ Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/
Name of subsidiaries operations and paid-up capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
3.0 DV
it/ CRITR AR A/ AR i #5 DB AT A/
W 2+ ) 4 7 L] al It % #4028 ¢ A s B 4 £ B FREH
2022 2021 Directly Indirectly
20224 20214 H % I %
2022 2021 2022 2021
20228 20214 2028 200F
% % % %
(REE KA (PR PRC Registered capital Registered capital — - 100 100 Retailing of fine jewellery
ARAA" US$10,000,000 US$$10,000,000
i kit A LA TERERA
10,000,000 & 10,000,000 &
PmIEEERENE  PRC Registered capital Registered capital — — 100 100 Property management
FRARA A RMB500,000 RMBS00,000
H it e A ERLYES BT 3
ARH500,000% AR HS00,0007
ERESRHKEHRAT PRC Registered capital Registered capital — — 51 51 Manufacturing of the
RMB10,000,000 RMB10,000,000 jewellery
i i it ¢ A it e HEHE
A R#10,000,0007 A 10,000,000
LMWAKLERNAE  PRC Registered capital Registered capital — — 100 100 Investment holding
R RMB1,000,000 RMBL,000,000
| it e A ALY &S fE
ARH1,000,000% AR H1,000,0007
Perfect Group International ~ BVI Ordinary shares Ordinary shares 100 100 — —  Investment holding
Holdings Limited US$10,000 US$10,000
(RE EMA R R REELHE g1 W fiaseidli
ARAA 10,0003 7 10,000% 7
Perfect Group China BVI Ordinary shares Ordinary shares 100 100 — —  Investment holding
Holdings (BVI) Limited US$10,000 US$10,000
EBELAHE g1 gL BB
10,000 75 10,0005 7T
Perfect Group China BVI Ordinary shares Ordinary shares 100 100 - —  Investment holding
Investment Limited US$10,000 US$10,000
REELRE T i B
10,0003 7 10,000% 70
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38. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 38. K AWM B AFRFERE - 8

OF THE COMPANY- continued

Place of
incorporation/
registration/  Issued and fully paid share capital/registered  Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/
Name of subsidiaries operations and paid-up capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
R MR 3L/
it/ CRGRAER A/ AAT i # DB TR A/
M 25 ) 2 7 AR k% 482 e A w1 B 4 b FUREH
2022 2021 Directly Indirectly
20225 20214 H#% i 8%
2022 2021 2022 2021
0226 2024 2028 202F
% % % %
Hong Kong Perfect Jewellery Dubai Ordinary shares Ordinary shares — — 100 100 Retailing of fine jewellery,
DMCC (note) DIRHAM50,000 DIRHAMS50,000 logistics and marketing
activities
Hong Kong Perfect Jewellery 18 5 ik LR FEEEKE MR
DMCC (Hf3t) 50,000 50,0004 1 1 M A D)
FARERHMEERS DRC Registered capital Registered capital - — 60 60 Retailing of fine jewellery
RAHe RMBS,000,000 RMBS,000,000
i LAUT REM A TERERE
A RH5,000,0007 A K 5,000,007
BRREEAXMLME  PRC Registered capital Registered capital - - 67 67 Retailing of fine jewellery
il UNTN RMBS5,000,000 RMB5,000,000 and marketing activities
i ik e A kM e A FEBERE AN
A RH5,000,00078 A B 5,000,007 L
PRIl E LS R PRC Registered capital Registered capital - - 100 100 Property management
BRARAA: RMB500,000 RMB500,000
i itk ¢ A it M e A WEEH
ARH500,0000  ARH 5000007
REE KA (I PRC Registered capital Registered capital - — 100 100 Retailing of fine jewellery
LR RMB,000,000 RMB1,000,000
i LAUT REM A TERERE
A BB1,000,00006 A R1,000,0007
i EENEERE  PRC Registered capital N/A - — 100 N/A Property management
YN RMB500,000
HH ik e A AEH AER WEEH
A RH#500,0007
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38. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
OF THE COMPANY- continued

Note:

The entity is established in the PRC in the form of sino-

foreign owned enterprise.

The entity is established in the PRC in the form of wholly

foreign-owned enterprise.

These entities are established in the PRC in the form of
domestic limited liability company.

On 3 January 2020, DMCC (HK) was incorporated
and set up in Hong Kong and its sole shareholder is a
director of the Company holding 100% of equity share of
DMCC (HK) on behalf of the Group under a contractual
arrangement in which a declaration of trust is signed by the
director on 9 March 2020. As a result of the contractual
arrangement, the Group has rights to variable returns from
its involvement with DMCC (HK) and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over DMCC (HK)
and is considered to control DMCC (HK). The directors of
the Company are of the opinion that, having considered all
facts and circumstances, the Group has control over them
and owns 100% equity interest of DMCC (HK). During the
year ended 31 December 2020, Perfect Group International
Holdings (HK) Limited transfer 100% equity interest of
Hong Kong Perfect Jewellery DMCC to DMCC (HK) and
Hong Kong Perfect Jewellery DMCC become a wholly
owned subsidiary of DMCC (HK).

B

3 A e B
For the year ended 31 December 2022
= 2022 4 12 A 31 HIEFE

38. A 2wl [t & 2 B 0 wE N - AR

T8 LA S 4 8 A 2 1 T ST oh BT

B DL AN B A 2 1 T TR o T

TR A R A R R A
Ji 5L o

202041 H3H > DMCC (HK)# & ¥ 5%
A o7 B 5% ar o HoeE — B R A AR A
M) — & 3 25> MR 4% 5% it 20204F3 H
IHZEEBEMGE BTG LM
WAL K A E FFADMCC (HK)100% %
e M AHLH AEHEHERS
HDMCC (HK)% % Jir 15 19 n] 5 8] #
S Al % i H SDMCCHK)RY HE ) 5 2
W% 55 (0] i Ol B W 2 DMCC (HK)#E
BRI RAFEER L Kak T
G DL AR SR T A P R
AF % ADMCC(HK)100% 8% fE o 7t # =
20204F12 H31 H 1k 4F B - ff 5% 5 18 B %
P (& dk) A BR 2 B I H A Hong Kong
Perfect Jewellery DMCCZ 100%/% HE 5
# FDMCC (HK) > #lHong Kong Perfect
Jewellery DMCCH ZDMCC(HK)Z — [H
A Bt A A o
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f 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2022
U 2022 FF 12 A 31 HIL4FE

39. RECONCILIATION OF
LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group
liabilities arising from financing activities. Liabilities
arising from financing activities are those for which
cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified

in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as

39. b & W B A E Ak AaZ Bk

SR RE S A G T OO ) P EE A R
Z A o FE IR )T E R 2 AR
B RO 8Ok A B & R R A
EHGEBeRBERDT AR ERE
HHEeRBZAMN-

cash flows from financing activities.

Lease Bank Dividend

liabilities loans payable Total

LB A AT 8% JRE A it B A8 5t

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000

T# T T# T T#& T T#& L

At 1 January 2021 ®20214E1H1H 7,756 — — 7,756
Exchange realignment FEE 58, 3 % 135 — — 135
Financing cash flow il B A (4,443) 25,958 (27,000) (5,485)
Dividend declared B = IR K E = = 27,000 27,000
Interest accrued JE =1 A 364 433 — 797
At 31 December 2021 #20214£12H31H 3,812 26,391 — 30,203
Exchange realignment i 58, 3 % (252) o == (252)
Financing cash flow ISR (1,852) (7,064) (27,000) (35,916)
Dividend declared EEIRKE — — 27,000 27,000
Interest accrued = A 127 876 — 1,003
At 31 December 2022 20224212 H31H 1,835 20,203 — 22,038
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40.

41.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to owners through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged over the

years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity
attributable to owners of the Group, comprising share
capital, share premium, retained profits and other
reserves as disclosed in the consolidated financial

statements.

Management of the Group reviews the capital
structure regularly. The Group considers the cost
of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital, and will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new shares issue as

well as the raising of bank loans.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Details of the significant accounting policies
and methods adopted, including the criteria for
recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis
on which income and expenses are recognised, in
respect of each class of financial assets and financial

liabilities are disclosed in note 3.

40.

41.

3 A e B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
= 2022 4 12 A 31 HIEFE

& K R By B

A 4L B4 P L AR DL R A 4R g T
M A A 0 R RS R B LR
Kot g V- > B EA N AR oK ml ) o
A A ) R B OOR MR N 5% 5 4 B A BF
T

AEBMRERER B AEEEAL NE
R MEA R > B4 S M B WM ERD
P #E AR~ B s A - R T R &
A i Af

AR A PE R g E W ke R B AR SR
AL TR G AR RS EA W
B JEL B Ht#l%mtdfﬁﬁﬁiu L AT
I I 3 R R AT > DA flir HL AR A
BN -

B TR

A BB EE LM B ABRAN
R G FIBUR Ko ik (B4 i 58 12 e

Al 3 ME R W Rk AR B S S i)
FEAE o R B R3NP EE o
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f 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2022
U 2022 FF 12 A 31 HIL4FE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS -

41, B LT H - 4

continued

Categories of financial instruments

% T H B

2022 2021
20224F 20214F
HK$’°000 HK$’000
T#x T T
Financial assets W B &
Financial assets at amortised cost i i 8 A 51 IR 2
W5 190,613 187,680
Financial assets at FVTPL NP EFFA B &S0
W 7,551 18,474
Equity instruments at FVTOCI P wEA A 2 T
W i B A HE T H 1,043 —
Financial liabilities i =
Amortised cost O M 5 A 75,781 77,131

Financial risk management objectives
and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
equity instruments at FVTOCI, financial assets at
FVTPL, trade and other receivables, loan receivable
from an associate, bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, rental deposits, trade and other payables,
bank loans and bank overdrafts. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in the respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (including currency
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. Management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are

implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 A e B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
WA 2022 4 12 A 31 HILFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - 41. % T H -
continued
Financial risk management objectives S %5 B B A BE H B B BUSR - 4
and policies — continued
Currency risk 5 R B
The Group has limited currency exposure as the H 7 A 4 [ R 5 40 i a5 DA AH BE 4R B
majority of the revenue were denominated in 8 1O 2 Be B W RE(E o R A 4R 1 T T
functional currency of the relevant group entities. BB R RA R o R R A
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency EH UM ENEREE KEHEY
denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the end R T S 51 A

of the reporting date are as follows:

2022 2021
20224 20214F
HK$°000 HK$000
T 0 T ¥ oo
Assets &
HKS$ 0 5,664 17,054
RMB N 11 21
Dirham S 1,629 5,884
Liabilities i
HKS$ T 60,235 66,944
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f 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2022
U 2022 FF 12 A 31 HIL4FE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — 41. M T H -

continued

Financial risk management objectives
and policies — continued

Currency risk — continued

The Group mainly exposes to foreign currency of
RMB, HK$ and Dirham which are arising from
relevant group entities” foreign currency denominated
monetary assets and liabilities for the Group’s
operating activities. HK$ and Dirham, however,
are pegged to the functional currency of respective
group entities (i.e. US$), hence the Group’s exposure
to currency risk is not significant and no sensitivity
analysis has been presented. No sensitivity analysis for
the currency risk of RMB is prepared as the directors
of the Company consider the net impact of such

foreign currency risk is insignificant.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate bank deposits and lease liabilities
(details set out in notes 26 and 29). The Group is also
exposed to cash flow interest rate risk through the
impact of rate changes on interest bearing financial
assets and liabilities, mainly interest-bearing cash
and cash equivalents, bank overdrafts and bank loans
(details set out in notes 26 and 30) at variable interest
rates. The Group currently does not have an interest
rate hedging policy. However, management will
consider hedging significant interest rate risk should

the need arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS -

continued

Financial risk management objectives
and policies — continued

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rate risk at the end
of the reporting period. The analysis is prepared
assuming the financial instruments outstanding at
the end of the reporting period were outstanding
for the whole year. A 10 basis points (2021: 10 basis
points) increase or decrease in variable-rate cash
and cash equivalents and a 100 basis points (2021:
100 basis points) increase or decrease in variable-
rate bank loans are used when reporting interest rate
risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates. If interest rates had
been 10 basis points (2021: 10 basis points) in cash
and cash equivalents and 100 basis points (2021: 100
basis points) in bank loans higher/lower and all other
variable were held constant, the Group’s pre-tax profit
for the year ended 31 December 2022 would decrease/
increase by HK$120,000 (2021: decrease/increase by
HK$141,000).

3 A e B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
= 2022 4 12 A 31 HIEFE

41, % T H - 8

St % B\ b A B H B M BUSR - 4

BURE oty

5 IR B 43 BT T 4 ik B R T R 2 R R
JEL g T R o A R 43 BT IR AR R R TR
HRRME R BB TER 24
A A o BE R R R B A A
BiETNIERE > FEH & B4
G HYE B A0 3 2 (20214 : 1018
FE ) (1 38 i SR TR R AT K
ELHE 1001 % B (20214F © 1001/ 3 2)
f14 184 g e R > O A TR S M R T
R A E 25 fh - MBl & Kk
Bl & %AW KR AT B 3K 2 R R 4 R
IR 104 3 B (20214F - 101/ 3
o) F2 10011 3 B (20214F : 10018 £ 2) >
e BT Al s B A RN B R A SE
B, E2022F 124318 1k 4 JE 2 Bk BiAl
s A A D1 120,000 T (2021
AE A 141,000 T) o
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f 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2022
U 2022 FF 12 A 31 HIL4FE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — 41. M T H -

continued

Financial risk management objectives
and policies — continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event of the counterparties failure to perform their
obligations at the end of each year in relation to each
class of recognised financial assets is the carrying
amount of those assets stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position. In order to minimise
the credit risk, management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. Given the long-term
relationships with its customers and the financial
position of these customers, management considers
that the credit risk associated with balances due from
wholesale customers is low. In addition, management
considers the customers’ credit history, settlement
patterns, subsequent settlements and aging analysis
of trade receivables in determining the allowance
for expected credit losses and ensures that adequate
allowance for expected credit losses are made for
irrecoverable amount. In this regard, the directors
of the Group consider that the Group’s credit risk is

significantly reduced.

Except for the amount due from a debtor in the
PRC (the “Debtor”), the Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk in trade receivables, with

exposure spread over a number of counterparties.
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS -

continued

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 A e B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
WA 2022 4 12 A 31 HILFE

Financial risk management objectives
and policies — continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment —

continued

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment

comprises the following categories:

Internal credit

41, % T H - 8

St % B\ b A B H B M BUSR - 4

e BB S B AE WA - A

A 45 [ 2 0 R A B R B g3 8 A R D

S A K

risk categories  Description Trade receivables Other financial assets
W R £ £ L B
Y| o S 5 ME Wk H At 45 78
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not 12-month ECL 12-month ECL
have any past-due amounts
18 Ja B ST 05 i 2 2 R B A BT AT o 8 REAFEMGEEER LEARNGESEER
Watch list Debtor usually settles overdue balances after due date ~ 12-month ECL 12-month ECL
BiELH B AN — M 2038 B % 45 0 1 1 4 REAFEMGEREER LEARENGESEER
Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk Lifetime ECL - not Lifetime ECL - not
since initial recognition based on information from credit-impaired credit-impaired
internal or external resources
R HE RIS E R - fF B R B B R R B 2 I B W EYEEER
W — KR EBIE — FEEBE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired Lifetime ECL — credit-  Lifetime ECL - credit-
impaired impaired
fei 18 AR R B A AR B E 2 WS Sk R EME NG EE R
— fFEWE — fFE M E
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe  Amount is written off N/A
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect against the allowance
of recovery of debts account
e 84 A R BRGNS M R R R B o HLIG R R R S A B A iE M
I i e 5 5 T R IH

The credit risk on bank deposits and cash and cash

equivalents are minimal as such amounts are placed

in banks with good reputation.

R MATHE R LB & B &FEHY
HUERBERFZRT > MHFE

09 N N
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
U 2022 FF 12 A 31 HIL4FE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — 41. M T H -

continued

Financial risk management objectives
and policies — continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment —
continued

The credit risk exposure of the Group’s financial assets
are subject to ECL assessment. As at 31 December
2022, the gross carrying amounts of not credit-
impaired trade receivable and credit-impaired trade
receivable with the loss allowance measured at lifetime
ECL is HK$56,361,000 (2021: HK$88,874,000) and
HK$24,356,000 (2021: HK$5,578,000), respectively;
the gross carrying amounts of other receivable, bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents with the loss
allowance measured at 12m ECL is HK$8,271,000
(2021: HK$6,468,000), HK$63,632,000 (2021:
nil), and HK$48,481,000 (2021: HK$78,935,000),
respectively; and the gross carrying amount of
credit-impaired loan receivable from an associate
with the loss allowance measured at lifetime ECL is

HK$13,116,000 (2021: HK$14,132,000).

The Group applies the simplified approach in HKFRS
9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL for
trade receivables. Except for certain trade receivables

with credit-impaired which are assessed individually.
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS -

continued

Financial risk management objectives
and policies — continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment —
continued

Management assessed the ECL on trade receivables
by provision matrix based on shared credit risk
characteristics with reference to historical credit
loss experience, general economic conditions of
the industry in which the debtors operate and an
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast

direction of conditions at the reporting date.

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there
is information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or when the trade receivables are over

three years past due, whichever occurs earlier.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Debtor
with gross carrying amount of trade receivables of
approximately HK$19,105,000, was determined by the
management to be credit-impaired, as it was evident
that the Debtor was in significant financial difficulty
and there was no realistic prospect of recovery as a
creditor had filed a bankruptcy petition with the
local PRC court (the “Court”) against the Debtor.
Accordingly, an impairment loss for the whole amount
was recognised for the amount due from the Debtor.
On 5 January 2023, the Debtor was ordered for a
financial reorganisation and a receiver was appointed
by the Court.

3 A e B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
= 2022 4 12 A 31 HIEFE
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EHE2EZREGEEHRLCH &
B N K85 P A 47 36 2 B R AR SR L B
B R it F3 S AT M TR DL gE R
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MEEER -

fisl A& R BR8N B R BB
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R20224E12H31H 1k 4 F R E B
N W& 5 B Wi 3k TE 1 Bk T AR (E 4 F
19,105,000 7T - 45 P JE 58 & H 5 5
WE > R B R 8 E K HE
B R R B (T3 B ) B &
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS -

continued

Financial risk management objectives

and policies — continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment —

continued

41, B LT H - 4

As part of the Group’s credit risk management,

for the trade receivables excluding the Debtor, the

Group uses debtors’ aging to assess the impairment

for its customers in relation to its operation because

these customers consist of a large number of small

customers with common risk characteristics that

are representative of the customers’ abilities to pay

all amounts due in accordance with the contractual

terms. The following tables provides information

about the exposure to credit risk for trade receivables

excluding the Debtor:

S 0 A B A PR HOBR B BOSR - A
{5 B B S e 7T A - AR

P57 7R 56 70 HL B oy E SRk T (BR T
B 5N 15 & b 22—
H 5% %5 % 5 A48 R B A 3L ) L B 4
Bz /ANEF > ez E SR E R
PR & A I B A s Re h >
b AR SR B 92O R B N AR T AN A
B 5B 2 WE o R R A B
B oy E ORI (BR T LB A Ah) 15 6 Ja
B &R

Year ended 31 December 2022 B £20224E12H31H 1L 4 B

Gross Net
carrying Average Loss carrying
amount loss rate allowance amount
MR AR P E R i 18 B TR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt Tt Tt

Trade receivables B 7 e K IE
0-90 days past due i #10-90 K 48,253 1.59% (768) 47,485
91-180 days past due i 1 91-180 K 8,041 4.76% (383) 7,658
Over 180 days past due 1 9] A 180 K 5,318 72.14% (3,836) 1,482
61,612 (4,987) 56,625
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3 A e B
For the year ended 31 December 2022
= 2022 4 12 A 31 HIEFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - 41. W T H - #]
continued
Financial risk management objectives S %5 B B A BE H B B BUSR - 4
and policies — continued
Credit risk and impairment assessment — 15 8 B\ B S W (E BT Al — 48
continued
Year ended 31 December 2021 £ 20214F12 A31H 1L 4F &
Gross Net
carrying Average Loss carrying
amount loss rate allowance amount
IREARE FHEEE i 45 158 45 R T 3
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T T T# T
Trade receivables B 5 e 5K IA
0-90 days past due i #1090 K 86,129 1.54% (1,325) 84,804
91-180 days past due i #191-180 K 1,674 4.46% (75) 1,599
Over 180 days past due %1 0] R 4 180 K 6,649 87.28% (5,804) 845
94,452 (7,204) 87,248
The estimated loss rates are estimated based on Al T G 48 22 )5 B 8 1 B 5T 15 1Y &
historical observed default rates and are adjusted ALY > UG TE B A ) B A B
for forward-looking information that is available B3 A B Y R BE RO R R o
without undue cost or effort. The grouping is M E WA SRS o L DUBE DR 8
regularly reviewed by management to ensure relevant BB N AR B RO R o

information about specific debtors is updated.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
U 2022 FF 12 A 31 HIL4FE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS -

continued

Financial risk management objectives
and policies — continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment —
continued

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s balance of
allowance for impairment for trade receivables was
HK$24,092,000 (2021: HK$7,204,000), determined
based on either provision matrix or individual
assessment. Balance of allowance for impairment
of HK$22,933,000 (2021: HK$5,578,000) and
HK$1,159,000 (2021: HK$1,626,000) were made in
respect of credit-impaired and not credit-impaired

debtors, respectively.

The following table shows the movement in lifetime

ECL that has been recognised for trade receivables

41, B LT H - 4

S 0 A B A PR HOBR B BOSR - A
{5 B B S e 7T A - AR

2022412 431 H » A 4 E R 5 5
R L % A 0 R A R B 5 T A R I R 4R
UL 135 1 45 8% 24,092,000 5 7C (20214F :
7,204,000%5 70) o 5t & B A5 B B (E 5
I A5 B BAE TR W B A R Rl
£422,933,000% JC (20214F : 5,578,000 %
J6) $1,159,000% JG (20214F © 1,626,000
W ot) o

R SRR AL kR R S R
FEMNEHHAFEEERZS -

under the simplified approach.

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Tortal
REER fREEH
(FE 5 £ fH) (f5 B W) Mt
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T T# T T# T
As at 31 December 2020 *2020412 4311 2327 7,863 10,190
Changes due to financial instruments recognised 202141 A 1H A
asat 1 January 2021 R HTRZ 88
— Transfer to credit-impaired — R EEFEWE (517) 517 —
— Impairment losses recognised — CHER = 89 89
— Impairment losses reversed — WA B R — (3,002) (3,002)
— Reversal of impairment losses recognised —BHEET R
under provision matrix i (B 65 48 13 e (184) = (184)
New financial assets originated or purchased ] YN
i — 464 464
Written off Hil 4 — (353) (353)
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3 A e B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
WA 2022 4 12 A 31 HILFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - 41. ¥ T H - #
continued
Financial risk management objectives S %5 B B A BE H B B BUSR - 4
and policies — continued
Credit risk and impairment assessment — & & 8 B M i (E 7F Al — 48
continued

Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL

(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total

2 MM 2 M

e £ e B

(5 B ) (f EEWAE) it
HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T T Tt
As at 31 December 2021 2021412 A31H 1,626 5,578 7,204
Changes due to financial instruments recognised J#20224F1 H1H A #E
asat | January 2022 R H TR 88
— Transfer to credit-impaired — R (75) 75 —
— Impairment losses reversed — A i R 2 — (1,848) (1,848)
— Reversal of impairment losses recognised — BT R
under provision matrix RN 2k 40 (392) — (392)
New financial assets originated or purchased e YN
BB E — 19,128 19,128
As at 31 December 2022 1 20224F12 431 H 1,159 22,933 24,092
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f 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2022
U 2022 FF 12 A 31 HIL4FE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — 41. M T H -

continued

Financial risk management objectives
and policies — continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment —
continued

In determining the ECL for other receivables,
management of the Group makes periodic collective
assessment as well as individual assessment on the
recoverability of other receivables based on the
historical default experience and forward-looking
information, as appropriate. During the year ended
31 December 2021, management has determined that
gross amount of other receivables of HK$1,206,000
was credit-impaired and the amount was written
off and charged to profit or loss in the prior year.
Apart for the foregoing, the Group has considered
the remaining other receivables have low default
risk, and concluded that credit risk inherent in the
Group’s remaining outstanding other receivables are

insignificant.

In determining the ECL for loan receivable from an
associate, management of the Group makes periodic
individual assessment on the recoverability of loan
receivable from an associate based on the historical
default experience and forward-looking information,
as appropriate. During the year ended 31 December
2022, the management has determined that there was
a significant increase in credit risk on the balance and
accordingly an impairment loss of HK$3,773,000 was
made on the loan receivable from an associate. The
Group has considered the letter of collaterals from the

associate during their assessment of the ECL.

24() Perfect Group International Holdings Limited i %555 [ [ F& 742 e A R4

S 0 A B A PR HOBR B BOSR - A
{5 B B S e 7T A - AR

e A K E 2 EHIE S
Bis A£EEHEECREREE
A %0 Bk B AT R B R (A ) B
JIE WAC K T 2 AT A [ A AT A B RE B T
il K AR R SEAS o 7 # 22021412 31
HIE4F B > % 2 g B e E 52451,206,000
T T 118 JEL At B i SR IE ) Hh B B RE
EENTEEC M AEER
HIBR o B EaEIHDLAN > AL A
R 2 S A R SR T 1Y) 99 MR JRL I A I
S A5 A% S 3 AR 5 IR Al R i R
TH 2 [ A {5 8 R B I N H K o

T R — M E AR R RZHE
WEEEAENS  AEEEHEECR
PR 1R 2 A R0 Bk SR RE MG R (i
FI) S i — [ B A ) B SR 2 AT IR
] P 3 47 5 B8 AR AL o 7 #K 22022
12H31H IEF B> B O E &
i {5 B8 A B K 1 o DR O R RE i —
] M 5 ) D R A KA o DM RS 4R
3,773,000% 70 ° A< 4E [ A B AL B
B0 1R IR % 18 2K B B A | 2 HK
fl R o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS -

continued

Financial risk management objectives
and policies — continued

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management
rests with the directors of the Company, which
has built an appropriate liquidity risk management
framework for the management of the Group’s
short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The Group manages
liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves,
banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities,
by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash
flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial
assets and liabilities. As at 31 December 2022, the

Group has available unutilised bank facilities of
HK$60,000,000 (2021: HK$96,462,000).

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. The
table has been drawn up to reflect the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The

table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

3 A e B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
= 2022 4 12 A 31 HIEFE

41, % T H - 8

St % B\ b A B H B M BUSR - 4

Ui B < B

AR ) H B A R B SR
RAEML HECETABHNRIE
G JE B A FHME 28 DAAS B AN 4R A0
FREHESURTREE &S HFEE.
A A E A O A R R e SRAT
ELRMEEERE ZRNSEBERH
B K BB B A U R DL R VT BE B RS
e KB R B A B> 4 T 3R O B
%4 B B o R 20224F 12 A31H - A E
Al K B A 4R AT Rl £560,000,000% 7T
(20214 : 96,462,000 JC) °

RS A S B AR R G BR
AV IIBR o SRR IR A 42 AT B ZOK
i K e BH R R > LA B B A
AR BB & 0 & - T R K4S
FERAGE &HE -
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f 7 S 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 2022 4 12 A 31 HIREE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS -

continued

Financial risk management objectives

and policies — continued

41, B LT H - 4

S 0 A B A PR HOBR B BOSR - A

Ui B < L B

4k

Liquidity risk — continued - M
Weighted ~ On demand Over 1 year  Over 2 years Total
average interest  or less than ~ but not more  but not more  undiscounted Carrying
rate lyear  than2years  than5 years cash flows amount
AEEREL  @BEH BEWEE
mEEEY  AR—ER PRWEN  PREER KBRS
IS R i 2 8 i i 475 I I L
% HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T T T#L T T
At 31 December 2022 20225124 31H
Trade and other payables B 5 R H A
T A 3R — 53,968 — - 53,968 53,968
Bank overdrafts MATEL 6.63 1,610 - - 1,610 1,610
Bank loans AT R K 4.33 7,335 6,931 8,181 22,447 20,203
62,913 6,931 8,181 78,025 75,781
Lease liabilities 5 A 5.05 1,768 147 — 1,915 1,835
At 31 December 2021 12021124310
Trade and other payables B 5 kA
W 5 — 50,740 - - 50,740 50,740
Bank loans RITEK 258 6,795 6,634 14,442 277,871 26,391
57,535 6,034 14,442 78,611 77,131
Lease liabilities AEAK 5.05 1,951 1,921 160 4,032 3,812
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS -

continued

Financial risk management objectives
and policies — continued

Other price risk
The Group is exposed to price risk through its

investments in unlisted private funds and listed equity
securities classified as financial assets at FVTPL as
set out in note 25. The Group also invested in certain
unquoted equity securities for long-term strategic
purposes which had been designated at FVTOCI
(note 19). The directors consider that the Group is not
exposed to significant price fluctuation in its financial
assets at FVTPL and FVTOCI and accordingly no

sensitivity analysis is presented.

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities is determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash

flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair values at

the end of each reporting period.

3 A e B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
WA 2022 4 12 A 31 HILFE

41, % T H - 8

St % B\ b A B H B M BUSR - 4

At A5 A% L B

A S B BUE TR M RE 25 B 2 0 MU K
NFEFIA R a1 B B 2 JF BT
Fh 55 5 4 K by i HE R O R R
R B o A 4R R R R 0 O B Y
BOE T T 2 B R
JBe A @ o 45 R J 1% 4 o {E REACH A
AT 4 (B E19) o FE SRR S A R
/N R R NG & /A - ]
H At 4 T Wi A B B 5 AR AT B
R4 15 A e B o BRI G Sl R 2 A R
Vig T

W5 T i) 2 F (3

MBS B B A A T ER &
R AR E AR R BB R
AT E o

AN FIE GRS o %R A R SRR
BRA B IR AN MR E & AR
MR T (L BEL 980 4% R 4% R I OR B 8 R
HAR -

2022 Annual Repore 4F 4 243



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

F 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2022
U 2022 FF 12 A 31 HIL4FE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS -

continued

Financial risk management objectives
and policies — continued

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that
are measured at fair value

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured
at fair value at the end of the reporting period. The
following table gives information about how the fair

values of these financial assets are determined.

41, B T H - &

Fair value
BF
Fair value
2022 2021 hierarchy

20224 2001 AFHEEHR

HK$°000 HK$°000

S 0 A B A PR HOBR B BOSR - A

AL A EHTEZ M E
B A E

AR S T T S R L R Y
BT (TR o T RBI A B 0T
T % BB R G 2 T A YR -

Valuation techniques and key inputs

(BT PELLIN ¢

Tt T
Financial assets
i
(i) Financial assets at FVTPL - 14,600 Level 3 Share of the net asset values of the investee, determined with reference
—  investment in an unlisted fund to the fair values of underlying assets and liabilities and adjustments
of related expenses, if any
0 HATHFARG NI EERE P ERREHZERFETENGE BEEHREERAR
— FLWEEHE M) 7 {65 DA AR IR 2 R O ) o A
— investment in an unlisted fund 807 3,874 Level 2. Quoted asset value provided by a financial institution
— FEWEGRE PO BRI ARYE A AR
—  listed equity securities 6,744 == Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active markets
— hTREE S F EEAGNEARE
(i) Equity instruments at FVTOCI 1,043 — Level 3 Adjusted net assets approach — the book value of assets and liabilities
— unlisted equity securities of investee are adjusted to their fair value.
(i) HATEFAKBEELEZ F3 HRNBEEFHE-REHZNEERAGMENHEAE S

HHETH
- FLTRREE 5
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3 A e B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
= 2022 4 12 A 31 HIEFE

42. OPERATING LEASE 42. MBEHMB L
ARRANGEMENTS
The Group as a lessor A 5 AR 2 AN
The properties held for rental purposes have FrfE i 2 W A R+ 2 Keh
committed lessees for the next ten years. F oo
Undiscounted lease payments receivable on leases are H B 2 R i o B B B R E 0
as follows:
2022 2021
20224 20214F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# T T T
Within one year — R 10,114 17,194
In the second year o A 3,054 4,777
In the third year EHEmD 1,740 2,393
In the fourth year 55 Y 4F 1,139 659
From the fifth year onwards %A R 2B 2,616 3,371
18,663 28,394
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f 7 S 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 2022 4 12 A 31 HIREE

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 43. A o ] B 555K Dl %
POSITION OF THE COMPANY
2022 2021
20224 20214F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T 0 T T
Non-current asset FREEE
Interest in subsidiaries A B 2N | B RE 4R 348,859 348,859
Current assets B E A
Other receivables and prepayments H At R Wi K TE B TE AN SO 677 656
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE WA o Jeg A D K IE 19,991 18,991
Financial assets at fair value through 2N FEFFA IR %5 1
profit or loss PA & 6,744 -
Cash and cash equivalents He kB &% EHY 1,911 1,006
29,323 20,653
Current liabilities Ui B A fE
Accruals and other payables JRE it 2 B H At A 3KOH 731 731
Amounts due to subsidiaries JRE AST B Jigg > ] 3k H 45,495 8,779
46,226 9,510
Net current (liabilities) assets WE (A EETFE (16,903) 11,143
Total assets less current liabilities B AAE O B AR 331,956 360,002
Share capital and reserves JBe A K fih
Share capital B A 4,470 4,500
Reserves (note) GRORGES) 327,486 355,502
331,956 360,002
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3 A e B
For the year ended 31 December 2022
= 2022 4 12 A 31 HIEFE

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 43. A 2 ) A5 5IR Dk -
POSITION OF THE COMPANY -
continued
Note: R 5 -
Movement of reserves fifi Al 5 )
(Accumulated
Share loss)/
Share Special options retained
premium reserve reserve profits Total
(Riti#),/
e 4 i FERIGEAE R R B i A
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
T T T# T Tt
At 1 January 2021 R20215 1 H1H 93,840 278,804 10,201 (226) 382,619
Total comprehensive expense for the year — 4F 1] 22 [ff B 3 AL 1 — — — (117) 117)
Dividend (note 1) B B (Fit 5 13) (27,000) — — — (27,000)
Share option lapsed and transferred to IR g
retained profits (note 33) R B8 i 1 (B 32 33) = = (1,351) 1,351 —
At 31 December 2021 R2021412431H 66,840 278,804 8,850 1,008 355,502
Total comprehensive income for the year — 4F A1 42 ffj UL 4t 48 % = = = 907 907
Dividend (note 13) T B (it 5513 (27,000) - — — (27,000)
Repurchase and cancellation of shares A 0 B R 8 MR O (1,923) — S = (1,923)
At 31 December 2022 #20224F12431H 37,917 278,804 8,850 1,915 327,486
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Financial Summary

BA 5 B2

The following is a summary of the published results and R G A G E A A TR B B
assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial WL LEELABEME -

years.

For the years ended 31 December

M E12H31H IE4FE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
20224 20214F 20204F 20194F 20184F

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T 7T T T T# T T# T
(Restated) (Restated)
(R HE 51 (R HE 51

Revenue I i 374,049 406,967 371,970 787,207 522,005
Gross profit T A 114,669 101,844 157,422 294,364 167,985
Profit for the year A Vi A 27,415 38,277 76,490 182,651 71,572

As at 31 December

W12 H31H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
20224F 20214F 20204F 20194F 20184E

HK$’000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
Tt T T T T AR T T

Total assets B E ME 836,527 907,106 852,966 1,089,719 1,064,020
Total liabilities BEAE 189,623 221,818 201,333 530,305 505,685
Net assets EEFE 646,904 685,288 651,633 559,414 558,335
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